Prq 2o NT  ComMPANT ACCLL NS Fol
Cviiv2e N CoMmMeAlcATIONS Lo Ty,

—ClogiBSR P9 132

Centaur Media plc
Annual Report & Financial Statements
For the year ending 31 December 2016
Company Registered No. 4948078

=9

[m]

v

o

)

T *L6F YA4UH"

LD3 28/09/2017 #194
COMPANIES HOUSE
T “AGS6DEAH"
Ao 0B/06/2017 #36

COMPANIES HOUSE



CENTAUR MEDIAPLC

ANNUAL REPORT AND
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

.

2016

CENTAYR®




CENTAUR MEDIA:
INSPIRES
AND ENABLES

Expert content and insight, engaging events,
smart digital technology




CONTENTS

INTRODUCTION 4

PART 1 - PERFORMANCE REPDRT

Chairman’s Statement 5
Strategic Report &
Chief Executive's Report 6
Overview [
Current trading and outlook &
Results and dividend s
Group Operating Review 7
Review of operations 8
Paortfalio review 9
Peaople 14
Strategy 15
Business Model 15
Key Performance Indicators 17
Financial Review 18
Risk Management 23
Corporate Responsibility 27
PART 2 - GOVERNANCE
Board of Directors 30
Executive Committee N
Directors’ Report a3
Directors Staterment on Carporate Governance 37
Audit Commitiee Report 42
Nomination Committee Report 47
Remuneration Committee Report ’ 4B
Statement of Directars’ Respansibilities &4
PART 3 - INDEPENDENT AUDITCRS' REPORT 65
PART 4 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income 75
Consotidated Statement of Changes in Equity 76
Company Statement of Changes in Equity ”
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 78
Company Statement of Financial Position 79
Consclidated Cash Flow Statement 80
Company Cash Flow Staterment 81
Notes to the Financial Statements a2
OTHER INFORMATION
Five Year Record 133

Oirectors, Advisors and Other Corpuratle lnformalion 134



INTRODUCTION

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

® Reported revenues +3% to £72.5m; underlying' revenues +2%
« Digital premium content revenues +19% reported and underlying'l
* Underlying live events revenues +10%; reported live events revenues +13%
» Advertising revenues -10% [reported and underlying’]

® Adjusted operating profits? £9.1m [2015: £10.5mi; adjusted? operating margin 12.6% (2015: 14.9%]
® Reported operating loss narrowed to £3.9m [2015: £4.7m])

® Strong cash flow performance:
* £12.4m positive working capital swing from a £6.4m outflow in 2015 to a £6.0m inflow in 2014
« Adjusted operating cash flow® of £13.9m {2015: £3.3m] with cash conversion® of 153% [2015: 31%|. Operating cash flow
of £15.3m (2013: €6.1ml
* Further reduction in net debt® to £14.1m (2015: £17.9m]

® Areported loss before tax of £4.4m [2015: £3 érn] was driven by a non-cash impairment of goodwill charge of £7.2m [2015:
£11.9m]. an additional, separately reported charge for impairment of trade receivables of £1.8m [2015: €nill and £1.2m [2015:
£0.7m)] of exceptional operating costs relating to restructuring.

& Adjusted? diluted EPS of 4.5 pence down 15% {2015: 5.3 pencel. Diluted EPS of (3.8] pence (2015: [4.8] pence]

®Finat dividend of 1.5p making total for the year of 3.0p, in line with tast year

STRONG DPERATIONAL PROGRESS

| mproving revenue mix:
+ Digital revenues increase by 9% from £27.6m to £30.0m
+ Digital premium content increase by 19% from €14.5m to £17.3m
= Underlying® exhibition revenues increase by 13% fram £13,9m [excluding AMS) to £15.3m

™ Focusing on priarity markets:
» Oystercatchers acquisition adds additional dimension to Marketing segment offer
« Evaluating acquisition opportunities in core markets to further reinforce B2B core offering
« Exploring disposal of Home Interest during 2617

® Manetising contenit:
» Lawyer.com paywall in place, premium content growth +48%
» Marketing Week launches successful Elearning platform

8 Digital publishing migration:
s Application of WordPress platform
» Improved unique users across all publishing brand sites

® Swag Mukerji appointed to Board as Chief Financial Qfficer

8 The fall in high margin advertising revenues will result in a 2017 profit reduction which is expected to reverse in 2018 as the
strategy to address the industry trend by monetising content and expertise materialises




CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
Dear Shareholder

In last year's Chairman’s Staternent, | referred to Centaur's
transformation programme and | am pleased to report a
year of further encouraging progress. The investrnent made
in the tast three years in our ptatform infrastructure has
improved our operational capabilities and as a result we
have seen further good growth in our digilal offering and a
strengthening of our leading brands.

The industry-wide headwinds of falling advertising
expenditure, especially in relation to print, continued in 2016
and these accelerated as a result of uncertainty introduced by
the EU referendum. Centaur reacted promptly by addressing
our actual and planned cost base to save £2m of costs.

The reduction in pnint advertising had a negative impact
on Group profit margins due ta the high "drop through'

of this revenue stream. This has further reinforced our
determination to reduce as far as possible our reliance on
advertising revenues, whilst focusing our efforts on those
seclors that offer attractive long-term growth and profit
oppartunity,

We continue to seek carefully targeted acquisitions in
these priorily sectors and we were pleased to acquire
Oystercatchers, a specialist marketing consultancy, in
September. Oystercatchers is already having a positive
impact across the business as a whole. It has an excellent
raster of clients, as well as talented management. Together
with Econsuitancy and Centaur’s other marketing assets,
Oystercatchers enhances our Group-wide marketing
services capabilities, offering opportunities for us to cross-
sell services to a wider client base as well as a broader
geography.

The Board believes that the Horme Interest portfolio is no
longer core te Centaur's B2B focus and that as a distinct
business unit, it will accelerate its growth under more aligned
ownership. Acrordingly, during 2017 we have commenced a
process to sell this portfolic.

The Beard is confident that the Group is headed firmly in the
right direction and the strengthening of the management
team in 2016 will ensure this remains the case, Centaur has
a number of leading brands, the value of which will become
increasingly apparent over time,

Results and dividend

In 2014, Centaur's underlying? revenues were up 2% to
£71.3m, and up 3% to £72.5m on a reported basis. Adjusted
operating profit? declined by 13% to £9.1m, and adjusted?
diluted earnings per share fell by 15% to

45 pence t

In light of this performance, the Board is recommending a
final dividend of 1.5 pence per share, to give an unchanged
total dividend for the year of 3.0 pence per share.

Governance

Centaur remains fully committed to the highest standards

of corporate governance, and the Board takes very seriously
its duties to operate with integrity. transparency and clear
accountability. It also pays close attention to understanding
and managing risk. Detail of whal this means in practice,
including the Board's oversight of the order to cash cycle
foltgwing the implementation of a new accounting system in
the second half of 2015, for the Board and its Committees, is
contained within the Governance section of the annual report.

Board changes

Qur Senior Independent Director, Chris Satterthwaite,
stepped down during 2016 after 9 years as a Non-Executive
Directar of the Group. Chris’s commitment and contribution
to Centaur were outstanding, and 1 would like to thank him
on behalf of everyone at Centaur for his wise counsel over the
years.

Chris was succeeded as Senior Independent Director by
William Eccleshare who is Chairman and CEQ of Clear
Channel Internationat. William jeined the Beard on 1 Juty
2016 and his experience in the media industry will be of great
benefit to Centaur going forward.

We were very pleased to appoint Swag Mukerji as Chief
Financial Officer and to the Board in October 2016.

Prewiously Swag had a number of semor finance and general
management roles with both blue chip FMCG companies

and private equity backed businesses. Swag replaced Mark
Kerswell who resigned as Group Finance Director in July 2014
after five years with the Group. | am delighted to welcome
William and Swag to the Group.

20146 has been a year of steady progress despite a more .
challenging trading background. | would like to extend

my thanks ta everyone in the Group for working se hard to

achieve this.

Ron Sandler
Chairman
28 March 2017

& On a reported basis the Group made an operating loss of £3 9m
{2015. loss of E4.7m). This included a non-cash charge in relation
to an impairment of goodwill of £7.2m 12015: £11.9ml, and an
additional, separately reported charge for impairment of trade
receivables of £1.8m [2015: Enill. Diluted EPS is [3.8) pence [2015:
[ 8) pencel.




PERFORMANCE REPORT

STRATEGIC REPORT

CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REPORT

Overview

"We ve delivered results for the year in line with expectations despite continuing headwinds in the advertising market.

We achieved these results whilst managing significant change in the business, as we reposition Centaur for the future
We have made good progress with our revenue mix, with digital increasing to 41% of total revenues.

Whilst the state of the advertising market continues to present us with near term challenges in some of our portfalio, we
expect increasing digital subscription revenues to benefit performance in future years. We are confident that gur strategy of
converting non-paying readers into paying customers is building long term value for our shareholders.”

Andria Vidler, CED

Despite a challenging marketplace, we are pleased to report a year of progress. The investments made over the past three
years in our infrastructure have improved our operational capabilities. As a result, we have seen further good growth in our
digital offering and a strengthening of our leading brands.

The challenging trading environment, particularly in relation to print accelerated in the run up to the EU referendum. Centaur
reacted prornptly, by saving and avoiding £2m of costs.

The falt in htgh margin advertising revenues will inevitably result in a short-term profit reduction, However cur strategy is to
address this industry trend by monetising our content and expertise. The growth of our digital prernium content demonstrates
progress in this strateqgy and we are canfident that thes will benefit our financial performance i the medwm term.

We constantly assess opportunities to the Group's portfolio around our BZB portfolio and continue to seek acquisitions that
enhance our offer to our customers. In September, we acquired Oystercatchers, a speciatist marketing consultancy, which is
already adding value.

Current trading and outtook

We have delivered results for 2016 in line with expectations, despite a strong headwind in the advertising market. We achieved
these resuits whilst managing further significant changes in the business.

In the first months of the current financial year, the advertising market remains challenging. We are therefore committed to
focusing even harder on building digital subscriptions and de-emphasising our print revenues.

As we enter the next chapter in reshaping Centaur, the investrment we are making into aur digital products and impraved
averall revenue mix witl increasingly enhance performance going forward. We remain confident that our strategy is building
long-term value faor our shareholders.

Results and dividend

Revenues for the year ended 3% December 20146 were £72.5m. with underlying' revenue growth of 2% [reported revenue
growth of 3%}, driven principally by growth in digital premium content and live events. Adjusted operating profits? for the same
penod were £9.1m (2015 €10.5ml, with an adjusted operating profit margin of 12.6% (2015: 14.9%]. On 2 reported basis the
Group made an operating loss of £3.9rm [2015: loss of £4.7m), driven by a non-cash charge in relation to an impairment of
goodwill, an additional, separately reported charge relating to an impairment of trade receivables of £1.8m (2015: £nil) and an
exceptional restructuring charge of £1.2m (2015; £0.7m). Diluted EPS was (3.8] pence [2015: (4.8 pencel.




Net debt® at 31 Decemnber was £14.1m [2015: £17.9m), reflecting a very significant improvement in cash conversion®
throughout 2016 at 153% (2015: 31%).

In 2016 our digital premium content revenues grew by 19% and our total digitat and live events révenues accounted for 84% of
Group revenues (2015: 78%)|.

We responded 1o the decline in advertising by initiating a programme of restructuring and cost reduction across central
overheads as well as those parts of the business that remain advertising dependent. These initiatives were completed in the
second hatf af 2016 and delivered annualised savings of £2m. We continue to focus on our costs during the current year.

In light of this performance, the Board is recommending a final dividend of 1.5 pence per share, 1o give an unchanged total
dividend for the year of 3.0 pence per share.

Group Operating Review

Revenues and operating results for the years ended 31 December 2014 and 31 Decernber 2015 are set out below.

2016 2045 Reported growth Underlying growth'
£m £m % %
Revenue 725 m5 3% 2%
Operating loss (3.9 (4.7 17%
Operating margin . [5.4)% [6.71%
Adjusted operating praofit? 9.1 10.5 [131%
Adjusted operating margin? 12.6% 14.9%

Also summarised on the same basis as above are the trends across the Group's three core revenue cateqories: premium
content, live events and advertising.

2014 2015 Reported growth Underlying growth!
€m €m % %
Premium content 20.8 199 5% 5%
Live events 20.7 272 13% 10%
Advertising 20.2 225 (10/% [101%
Other 08 a9 (11]% 1%
Total revenues 72.5 70.5 3% %

On an underlying® basis, digital premium content revenues grew by 19% to £17.3m {2015: £14.5m] and total premium content
revenues grew by 5%, with good momentum across the Group's digital subscription products, including Celebrity Intelligence,
Fashion & Beauty Monitor and Econsultancy.

Reported live events revenues reflect the acquisition of Oystercatchersin 2016 and the biennial AMS event in 2016. Adiusted
tor these items, undertying® revenues grew by 10%, reflecting further strong performances from the larger events in the
Broup, offset by weakness in smaller, more spensorship-dependent events. Exhibition revenues contributed £15.3m [2015:
£13.5m) to underlying® live events revenues in 2016.

Total advertising revenues declined by 10%, with a weakening ahead of the UK’s EU referendum. Within this, digital revenues
were down 3%, while print advertising declined by 20%. This weakness accelerated through the year, with total advertising
revenyes falling by 6% in the first half and 13% in the second half, as compared to 2015.

Deferred revenues at 31 December 2016 of £16.9m were in line with the same time (ast year (Z015: £17.0m!. Growth in
digital and live events deferred revenues has been offset by a decline in prini deferred revenue and tirmng differences around
invoicing.




PERFORMANCE REPORT

Adjusted operating profits? of £9.1m {20153 €10.9m] declined by £1.4m, reflecting strong performances in Marketing and Home
Interest offset by a decline in advertising revenues and an in¢rease in commercial investment. The fall in adjusted operating
profit? margins to 12.6% {2015: 14.9%] reflects these trends with a high level of operational gearing attached to advertising
revenues. After adjusting items. the Group made an operating loss of £3.9m (2015: £4.7m], primarity driven by a non-cash
impairment of goodwill in the Financial Services sector [2015: Prafessional sector), an additional, separately reported charge
in relation to the impairment of trade receivables of £1.8m [2015: £nill and exceptional restructuring costs of £1.2m [2015:
£0.7m).

Significant progress has been made on reducing receivables and collecting cash during the year, with receivables falling to
£14.6m from £20.6m in December 2015 (and £22.4m in March 20141 The rate of cash conversion® was 153% [2015: 31%]

driving a reduction of net debt® ta £14,1m at the end of December 2016 (2015: £17.9m|. Leverage [net debt to adjusted
EBITDA] at 31 December 2046 was 1.1 times [2015: 1.3 bmes), and 1.0 times excluding the impact of Oystercatchers.

Review of operations

Centaur has evolved from its contralled circulation advertising legacy to a more focused, digitally aligned group. It now offers
market insight, data, advice. consultancy and events that enable businesses to optimise their performance. By using the skills,
data, communities and unigue market knowledge from our publishing heritage we are increasingly producing and distributing
thought leadership, specialist content and effective online tools. Together with the bespoke marketing sotutions that leverage
our deep relationships, these products and services are highly valued and are increasingly monetised by direct sale to our
customers, rather than being suppoerted by advertising revenue.

Despite market chatlenges, we have benefited from good progress with a number of our initiatives:

* All publishing sites are now functioning on a comman, fully-responsive digital platform

« 'DoubleClick For Fublishers’ rotled out across all publishing sites to enable better insight and use of available inventory as
well as programmatic products to ensure inventory is being sold acruss all available segments

* Re-energised legacy brands, with improved product offering enabling aur teams 1o begin new conversations with clients,
in turn leading to stronger partner-client relationships around content marketing

* Sales teams mostly operating on the same CRM system, enabling each portfolie to identify key account managers wha
could facilitate broader conversations across the Group

In respect of our four market segments, 69% of Group revenues are weighted towards the Marketing and Professional
segments, with Financial Services and Home [nterest accounting for the remamder.

Across each of these segments we are pursuing commeon operational strategies that:

* Put our customers at the heart of what we do by evalving the brands they trust and developing new products that
sigrificantly enhance to their performance

* Accelerate our digital growth and reduce our exposure to print advertising

= improve customer experience in every contact with the Group, ensuring high customer satisfaction and a business
partnership relationship

« Increase agility, co-operation and efficiency across ali of our operations

7 Refer to note 1[b] to the flinancial statements for explanation and reconciliation of adjusted EBITDA




Portfolio Review
Marketing

This segment includes alt of the Group's brands that serve markeling and creative professions in key market sectors, including
Econsultancy, Marketing Week, Festival of Marketing, Celebrity Intelligence, Fashion & Beauty Monitor. Design Week. Creative
Review and Qystercatchers.

Drwing digital innovation has been the key focus for the segment during 2016 with around 20% of its underlying’ revenue
growth caming from new product development. Marketing Week, in conjunction with Econsultancy, launched its first digital
Elearning course {the Mini MBA in Marketing) as part of developing a Centaur-wide anline ¢classroom platferm to increase both
public and corporate training revenue streams.

Marketing Week, alongside Creatjve Review and Design Week, has also introduced new specialist content including career
development and leadership seminars which proved popular and has enabled them to launch new paid-for praducts. Due
to the success of Marketing Week s digital offering we have been able to accelerate the shift away from print-based revenue
streams. Marketing Week reduced the frequency of its print magazine issues in 2014 and will continue this shift in 2017,

Focused on connecting media agencies and brands with data, news, events and content, Fashion & Beauty Monitor and
Celebrity intetligence both improved their performance by intraducing market insight and research reparts. During 2017, the
incorporation of real-time data feeds will enable greater autoration and cost reduction, and improve the product offering and
market cormpetitiveness,

Eronsultancy performed well in 2016 with 25% growth in subscription revenues which now represent 46% [2015: 41%) of

its total revenues. Our sales and content teams have now been realigned on a core sector basis te bulld deeper customer-
focused relationships through enterprise partnerships, tailored marketing and more sector specific content. Econsultancy
also launched an online classroom in response to market demand for customised capability 2nd on-demand solutions, This
innovation will enable increased yields as part of its new premium subscription offering.

While Oystercatchers was only part of Centaur for the final quarter, its strong pertormance in 2016 confirms the reasons for its
acquisition. Its expanded offering covers five disciplines of consuitancy, predominantly focused around building more effective
agency/client relationships: ways of warking, agency evatuation, marketing model recommendation, training and pitches.

This expansion has enabled it to attract a powerful client portfolic lincluding Caca Cola, EY, Sainsbury’s, TSB and Royal

Maill. In addition, its Marketing Excellence Training programme was named the UK's most acclaimed by TMT News in 2016,
Oystercatchers, with its agency and consulting heritage, and Econsuitancy, with its digital performance and training heritage,
naturally form a strong combinatian, It is envisaged that Oystercatchers’ senior client relationships will bring wider benefits to
Centaur as a whole,

The Marketing segment has made significant progress, developing deep client relationships in order to sell multiple products
across multiple brands. Revenues from the top 20 clients grew by 60% year on year, with three clients [2015: one client)
delivertng more than £0.5m of revenue through a combination of advertising, premium content and live events.




PERFORMANCE REPQORT

Operating Performance

2016 2015 Reported growth Underlying growth'
£m Em % %
Revenue 9.7 270 10% &%
Operating profit c.9 22 159)%
Operating margin 3.0% 8 1%
Adjusted operating profit? 4.2 4.1 2%
Adjusted operating margin? 14.1% 15.2%

There was good momenturn across both digitat premium content and live events revenues offset by a 7% dectine in advertising
revenues, Around 45% of this segment’s revenues are derived from premium content, with 33% from live events and 22% from
advertising. Oystercatchers contributed to reported revenue growth of 10% in this segment, with growth on an underlying’
basis of £%.

Digital premium content revenues grew by 13% in 2014, contributing £12.4m [42%l to reported revenues of £29.7m (2015:
£11.0m, 41%). The sector experienced volatility in advertising revenues consistent with other parts of the Group, which
finished the year 7% down vs prior year.

Festival of Marketing ran in Navember 2016 and reported revenues of £2.1m, in line with the 2015 edition of this event.
Delegate and table revenues grew by 21%, offsetting the 9% decline in sponsorship income. The event featured arourd 250
speakers and more than 150 hours of content. Natable speakers included Apple founder Steve Wozniak and WPP's Sir Martin
Sorrell. Customer satistaction scores [NPS] have increased by 26 points year on year. Festival of Marketing is the only global
event in its sector to have brand marketers now camprise over 0% of its customer base [competitors such as Cannes Lions
and Advertising Week have 10-15%].

The decline in adjusted operating profits? and margin reflects the impact of weaker advertising revenues, investment

inta content and comrercial teams and a higher depreciation charge reflecting the ongoing investment into the digital
platforms across the Marketing segment. Reported operating profits were impacted by earn-out charges and relating to the
Oystercatchers acquisition of £0.6m (2015: £nill, an additional, separately reported charge relating to the impairment of trade
recewables of £0.8m [2015: £nil] and exceptional operating expenses of £0.4m {2015: £0.1m].

Dutlook: this segment is expected to exhibit strong growth inta 2017 driven by recurring digital premium content revenues and
synergies arising from the Oystercatchers integration.

Professional

The Professional segment includes four subsidiary markets: Legal, Engineering, HR and Travel & Meetings, with around 0%
of its revenue coming from live events. The Legal portfolio includes the print, digital and live event activities associated with
The Lawyer and Ctean Energy Pipeline. The principal assets in the segment are exhibitions, with supporting digital and print
assets. Within the Engineering portfolio are The Engineerand Subcon, an exhibition that serves the sub-contractor industry,
The HR portiolio includes FEM, Employee Benefits and Employee Benefits Live, and Travel & Meetings includes two exhititions
serving the Business Travel and Meetings markets.

The development of The Lawyer’s content strategy continued to progress successfully, and in May we moved The Lawyer’s
premium content behind 3 pay wall, leaving recruitment and a minority of editorial content free to view. This is a significant
gevelopment for The Lawyer brand following 25 years as a controlled circulation magazine which has now given The Lawyer
a platform with reach, internaticnal opportunity and the ability to scale new premium content and data. The majority of top
50 UK law firms purchased a subscription to The Lawyer’s premium content within the first six weeks of its launch. This
development required investment during H1, but since launch has had a strang uptake and premium content revenue growth
over the year was 48%.

The Lawyer Market Reports expenenced impressiwe growth in 2016 with an increase in revenue of 65% year on year. A total
of 16 reports were published in 2016 inctuding the launch af the Global 200, a unique report containing the strategy, capability
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and performance of the {argest 200 (aw firms in the world ranked by their global revenues,

Behind the TheLawyercom and The Lawyer Market Reports is an experienced content and research team which meticulously
researches its market, gathers insight and uses its experience to layer trend analysis and comment onto data. Thisis a
respected and highly-skilled team which understands the key take-outs and summaries that our customers want,

There is also a dedicated cammercial team which account manages the top law firms to ensure that they get the best out of
our reports service and data, enabling the business to sell additional products and drive higher renewal rates.

Across the Professional segment, the remaining assets are principally event based and performed well. Collectively,
underlying' growth in exhibitions revenue was 19% [13% on a reported basis).

At The Engineer, the focus has been on the ongoing development of its digital products and onling audience. Monthly page
views have grown, with unique visitars up 8% year on year, and an increase in digital marketing solutions revenues of 4%.
Good progress was made with developing brand-led events and the ‘Collaborate to Innovate’ conference was (aunched, a
unigue awards/conference event in its marketplace.

Subcon performed well with 8% visitor growth and strong underlying? revenue growth {excluding the biennial impact of AMS)
supported by the launch of three new supplier zones and a focus on strengthening repeat business, along with a dedicated
buyers pragramme.

Revenues at the Business Travet Show grew for the fifth successive year, up 32% from £1.7m to £2.3m. The year also saw the
taunch of the inaugural Business Travel Summit Amsterdam and a one-day London Business Travel Summit. Exhibitor and
visitor satigfaction ratings continued to exceed industry benchmark standards, and visitor numbers rose by 6%, following a
24% rise in 2015.

Operating Performance

2018 2015 Reported growth Underlying growth’
£m £€m % %
Revenuve 20.2 19.7 3% 5%
Operating prafit / {toss] 1.0 i9.9) [1101%
Dperating margin 5.0% 150.3]%
Adjusted operating profit? 21 22 [51%
Adjusted aperating margin? 10.4% 11.2%

The broad revenue split across the segment is 60% live events, 30% advertising and 10% premium cantent,

Legal revenues of £7.7m were 4% higher than last year, reftecting good growth in premium content revenues, offsel by weaker
advertising and live events revenues. Deferred revenues in the Legal portfolio were £0.9m at 31 December 2015, compared to
E0.8m at the same time last year.

The Engineering partfolio reported revenues of £3.2m [2015: £3.6m). Adjusted for the absence of the briennial AMS event,
underlying' revenues were flat. The HR portfolip reported revenues of £3.9m (2015: £4.6m] with ongoing weakness across all
revenue streams. The Meetings Show continued to develop well in its fourth edition, but despite good revenue growth it is not
yet achieving a satisfactory profit margin. Overall, the Travel & Meetings portfolio reparted revenues of €5.4m {2015: £4. 1ml.

The decline in adjusted operating margins from 11.2% to 10.4% reflects weaker advertising revenues across the Legal, HR and
Engineering portfolios with high drap through ta prolit, and the cost of strengthening the Legal portfolio’'s premium content
offering. The segment saw a return to operating profitability following a nan-cash charge relating to impairment of googwill
during 2015.

Outlaok: 1his segment remains mixed, however it has encouraging opportunities across both The Lawyer and the exhibition
brands, particularly Business Travel, which are all expected to add to the Graup's recurring revenue streams through growing
exhibition and digital subscription revenues.

1



PERFORMANCE REPORT

Financial Services

Serving the retail financial services industry. this segment includes Money Marketing, Fund Strategy, Mortgage Strategy.
Corporate Advisor, Taxbriefs, Headline Money and Platforurm.

Piatforum continued o build on its reputation as a key reference point for asset managers, life compames and platforms
on retail investrnent distribution. Its research was referenced in earnings reports by industry leaders including Aegon and
Hargreaves Lansdown. New research areas introduced in 2016 included the changing market for discretionary managed
portfolios on platforms, and the rise of active and passive ETFs [‘exchange-traded funds] as well as digital benchmarking.

tmportantly, Platforum completed its transition to a subscriptions research business resulting in increased digital revenues
of 123% [down 9% overall after accounting for the cessation of print revenues). Platforum deferred income increased 77%,
dermonstrating a strong pipeline of future subscription revenues. A key driver of growth in 2016 was Platforums series of
reporis on European Fund Distribution which, due to a change in structure, now offer more in-depth analysis 1o custorners,
On thé events front, the European Fund Distribution and DC2 events, and the launch of the Money Marketing Interactive
Conference, were particular highlights.

Beyond Platfarum, the Financial Services segment continued to offer a futl annual calendar of events for all sectors of the
financial services community including large scale multi-streamed events, awards which celebrate the best of the industry
and exclusive invitation-only summits for industry leaders. We successfully leveraged the power and reach of the brands to
develop sponsorship packages and used a central delegate sales team lo ensure that we had the right calibre and volume of
VIPs in attendance to give sponsors value and return on their investment.

2016 saw a marked improvement in customer satisfaction levels due to high quality engagement and far-reaching marketing
and social media activity which has increased brand awareness for print and digital content platforms, as well as the

transitioning of Corporate Advisor from print to digital format.

Operating Performance

20146 2015 Reparted growth Underlying growth'
£m £m % %
Revenue 9.7 120 (19]% 1191%
Operating [loss] / profit 7.2 15 {580]%
Operating margin [76.21% 125%
Adjusted operating profit? 0.6 21 iM%
Adjusted operating margin? 6.2% 17.5%

This segment’s revenues remain retiant on agvertising, at 44% of the revenue mix, with 33% from premium content and 23%
from live events. Reflecting the wider economic environment, advertising revenues of £4.2m (2015: £5.6m] declined by 25%
year on year, with weakness being seen across both print and digital formats. The second half of the year was particularly
volatile, with advertising revenues 35% below the same period last year. This weakness in advertising revenues masked strong
growth in digital premium content revenues, aided by Piatforum’s transitian from a report-based revenue stream to a digital
subscription model,

Reflecting the weaker outlook in earnings relating te print and advertising earnings, a non-cash impairment of goodwitl of
£7.2m [2015: £nil) has been recorded in operating expenses, which is presented as an adjusting item. Digital premium content
growth was offset by declines in print formats, leading to a fall in total premiurn content revenues of 15%. This segment’s

live events revenues depend on sponsorship and were impacted by the general fall in advertising spend, and as such were
disappainting, with reported revenues of £2.2m, £0.2m lower than 2615. The decline in adjusted operating prafit margins
principally reflects the impact of high levels of operational gearing attached to weaker advertising revenues.

Qutlook: despite the weakness reported during 2016, Financial Services has strong brands, premium content and an
increasingly agile delivery platform. Changes in the sector arising from the UK's EU referendum result present a clear
opportunity for the segment.
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Home Interest

Homebuilding & Renovating { HB&R| is the market-leading brand for delivering information and trusted advice for selt-build
projects and renovatian work. The Home Interest segment also includes the live events and publishing assets across the
Homebuilding & Renovating, Rea!l Homes and Period Living brands.

This market segment has undergane a significant transformation over the last three years, delivering revenue CAGR of 9%. R
is now the UK's leading provider of homebuilding and rengvating inforrmation and boasts unrivalled scale and reach.

Qriginally separaled between exhibitions and magazines, it now has a single management team that delivers a multi-channel
portfolio that provides vital information and tools to its audience. The segment has 7 market leading extibitions that are
supported by print and digital assets. The integration of the three brands with a single commercial and content team has
created a virtuous circle, with each brand driving additional revenue for portfolio products and services.

The investment priarity for HB&R in 2016 was to grow its exhibitions business by attracting additional high-value visitors
and quality exhibitors. The brand added more content slages and advice centres at exhibitions and implemented strategic
marketing campaigns to attract more of its target audience. This marketing strategy resulted in a 12% increase in exhibitors
and 9% increase in visitors, as well as a record 16% revenue growth and 70% re-book rate.

Data and subscriptions were also a focus in 2016, The HB&R brand has experienced a significant increase in digital
engagement and its combined digital and print subscription offering, with a §% increase in annual subscribers and 11%
increase on our digitak-only services. Since 2015, online advertising revenues and data-driven camgaigns have increased by
28%, and mobile traffic has increased by 23%. Registrations far HB&R's 'Build Cost Calculator’, an online tool that enables
users to calcuiate the cost of building their own home, grew by [9% year on year.

Operating Performance

2016 2015 Reported growth Underlying growth®
€m £m % %
Revenue 12.9 nsg 9% 9%
Operating profit 14 15 (7%
Operating margin 10.9% 12.7%
Adjusted operating profit? 2.2 21 5%
Adjusted operating margin? 17.1% 17.8%

This segment continues to perform strongly. The broad revenue split across the segment is 50% live events, 30% advertising
and 20% premivm content. The live events portfolio has been consolidated areund the HB&R brand and continues to
demonstrate good momentum, with 2014 live events revenues 14% higher than 2015. Forward bookings for the Homebuilding
& Renovating exhibitions are 10% ahead of the same period last year, Advertising revenues in this sector were resilient, with
an increase of 14% year on year,

Adjusted operating profits? for the year were 5% higher than the £2.1m reported in 2015, with adjusted? operating margins
at 17.1% (2015: 17.8%). This slight reduction in margin reflects the impact of higher depreciation and amortisation charges
resulting from commercial investment.

Qutlook: positive, as this business is in good shape to capitalise on strong brands and take advantage of increased demand
around renovation and sell-build.

The Board of Centaur believe that Ihe Hame Interest portfolio 15 no tonger core to the Group's B2B focus and that as a distinct
business unit, it witl accelerate its growth under mare aligned ownership. Accordingly, we have commenced a process to sell
the business.
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People

tn order to maximise Centaur’s potential the business needs a strong and talented team. In 2016 we restructured our senior
team te position the business more strongly going forward. Linda Smith - who was a commercial consultant to Centaur

in 2014 - joined us as Chief Operating Officer and Jane Turner joined us to head up the Marketing portfolio. Both bring a
wealth of media-based management skills with them. Suki Thompson, one of the founders of Oystercatchers also joined the
Executive Committee and Swag Mukerji, our new Chief Financial Officer, has replaced Mark Kerswell. | am delighted to have
their collective experience on our leadership team.

This was the first full year of activity for the Development Board, a diverse team of employees selected for their commitment
to Centaur’'s values whose remit is to thange Centaur for good’, acting as a communication channel between our wider
workforce and the Executive Committee. The Development Board's feedback initiated a range of engaging initiatives such as
our ‘Skills and Support” programme of internal training, an inaugural ‘Wellness Week™ and 3 programme of social events and
activities.

We adopt a proactive approach to diversity. according to factors including but not limited to gender, ethaicity, professional
experience, nationality and age. In 2016, our male to female ratio was fairly balanced with an overall split of 57% women

to 41% men and we have 3 particutarly strang representation of women at a senior level. Two out of six {33%] of our Board
members are female, and five out of seven {71%] of our Executive Committee are female. We proudly support flexible working
opportunities, and 9% of staff are erployed on a part-time basis.

The talent of some of our people has aiso received external acknowledgement. At the 2016 British Media Awards, Faye Bell,
one of our Econsultancy team, won the Rising Star Award, while the Content Sales Team at The Profile Group and Festival of
Marketing team both made the podium. Marketing Week's editor Russell Parsons won the New Editor of the Year award at
The British Saciety of Magazine Editors Awards, and Employee Benefits won Pension/Benefits Publication of the Year at the
Willis Towers Watson Media Awards.

Thig year's charity sponsorship, Chitdline, was a great success. Collections at our events raised £101,947, in addition to a
£8,454 contribution from staff.

| would like to thank every member of the Centaur team for their hard work and commitment to the transformation of our
business.

Summary

Centaur’s heritage in creating market leading publishing brands has given us a deep understanding of the sectors in which
we operate. We are committed to providing the best sclutions far our customers, helping thern optimise the growth of their
businesses. As our progress in 2016 shows, we are investing in and evolving cur leading brands to deliver this outcome to our
customers as well as improving the quality and growth of our earnings for our shareholders.

In the first months of the current financial year, the advertising market has shown no signs of recovering. We are therefore
accelerating our strategy to de-emphasise our print revenues in favour of digital subscriptians and smproving accessibility to
our digital content, whilst reducing the frequency of our print publications.

As we enter the next chapter in reshaping Centaur, the investment we are making into our digital products and improved
overall revenue mix will increasingly enhance performance gaing forward, We remain confident that our strategy is building
long-term value for our shareholders.

Andria Vidler
Chief Executive Officer
28 March 2017
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STRATEGY

Centaur Media offers professionals products and services that accelerate their business performance. Our core objective is to
deliver sustainable growth in revenues, profits and cash flow, and in turn increase shareholder value. Ta achieve this we have
set out four strategic priorities. These are set out below alongside the iniliatives we are taking to deliver these, the associated
risks and the metrics against which we measure progress internally, certain of which contain other KPls as set out on page 17.
See pages 23 to 24 for a detailed exptanation of the Group's principal risks.

PRIORITY

Ta be the most
knowledgeable,
connectad and
authoritative expert
our markets

To generate sustainable
growth in profits and
cash flows with high

guality, recurring revenue

streams and an efficient
and scalable operating
madel

Ta create preducts and
services that are both
innovative and market-
feading, backed by
strong digital and events
expertise

To be a united team ot
entrepreneurial, multi-
skilled prefessionals

Business Model

ACTIONS

The Group focuses on core
markets enabling a deeper
understanding and connection
with the community

The Group 15 leveraging its
expertise across tive events

ang digital premivm content to
grow these recurring revenus
streams. The central expert
teams and Group functions
provide béth economies of scale
and benehts of shared best
praclice

The focus across our core
markets and the creation of
expert ieams enable the Group
to prioritise investment and te
create a strong pipeline of new
product offerings

Creation of a "One Centaur
Media’ culture, Alignment
of incentive plans and link to
portiolio and Group metrics

KEY RISKS

» Reptication of our products by
competitars, potentially at a
reduced cast for customers

« Failure to manage change
effectively exacerbates staff
recryuitment and retention
difficulties, leading to loss of key
senior staff

L]

Ecanamic and political factors
alfecting the stability of the UK
market and our key market sectors
reduce demand for our products

Shrinking revenues from print
advertising and sales of print
products are nol repiaced

* Sericus systems failure or breach
of network security contrals
causes loss of information or
operational disruption, such as the
unavailability of our digitat products

Serious physical incident at a live
even{ causes Injury, death or other
significant darmage, 1mpacting
directly on revenue and our
reputation

Replication of our praducts by
competitors, potentially at &
reduced cost for customers

Shrinking revenues from print
advertising and sales of print
products are not replaced

Economic and political factors
affecting the stability of the UK
market and our key market sectors
reduce demand for our products

Failure to manage change effectively
exacerbates staff recruitment and
retention difficulties, leading lo loss
of key senior staff

METRICS
»Industry recognition
» Client engagement

e Market share

* lncreasing share of live
events and premium content
revenues

= Growth in subscription
invoiced contract values

* Adjusted operating margin

« Revenue per employee

* Successful taunches
measured against return on
investment, revenues and
operating margin

+ Market share

« Statf relention and
engagement

The Group's activities are categorised across four market segments: Marketing, Professional, Financial Services and Home
Interest. These activities are supported by expert teams across digital product develapment, production, live events and
exhibition operations, data, research and client services.
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The Group generates revenues from three primary revenue sources: premium content, live events and advertising.
® Premium content revenues include:

« Subscriptions; These are the fees that customers pay to receive access to the Group's information through online access
ta various databases or through regular delivery of soft copy research or hard copy magazines. Subscription revenue is
recognised over the period of the subscription.

« Copy sales: These are generated primarily across the Group’s Home Interest print titles, Homebuilding & Renovating,
Real Homes and Period Living. and selectively across the Group’s business magazines, including Creative Review. This
area also covers the sale of market reports and other one-off sales of products. Revenues are recognised in line with the
publication schedule for these preducts. '

= |ive events revenues are all recognised when the event is held. These include:

» Exhibitor revenues: This represents space sold at our events enabling our customers to raise awareness and sell their
products and services. Exhibiting at one of our events is an ideal way for our customers to forge new relationships
through face-to-face meetings and to showcase their products.

» Sponsorship revenues: Each of our events has partners that want lo be associated with it and pay to place brand
advertising across the event. Through their sponsership of our events, our partners can create, develop and increase
brand awareness, furthering their credibility within a target audience and enabling them to develop contacts and exposure
for their business.

+ Attendee revenues: Our consumer-focused exhibitians, Festival of Marketing and award events all charge a fee for
attendees to access the event. The Group also generates revenues from sales of tables to companies and individuals
attending the verious ndustry awards evenings. Some award events also generate revenues from paid-for award entries.

« Training revenues: The Group provides marketing training services to customers in the UK and overseas through the
Econsultancy and Oystercatchers businesses. These services are delivered through public training courses and through
the delivery of bespoke services to clients. The revenues are recognised when the training is delivered.

® Advertising revenues represent the fees that customers pay to place an advertisement through ene or more of the Group's
delivery channels, either online, in print or on mobile, There are products where advertising is the main driver and others
where advertising 15 a supplemental earnings stream. This includes display, classified, sponsored content, content marketing,
native advertising and other publication-based marketing sclutions, acress the delivery platforms. Revenue is recognised on
publication.

We build a deeper understanding of the commercial opportunities across each market through an unremitting focus on our
markets and audience. We know that our customers want flexible content that works seamlessly across multiple platforms.
By leveraging this market insight and understanding of our customer requirements we are abie ta offer a higher-value
customer proposition. This is delivered in whichever format our clients want, whether that isn print, digital or as a live event.

"£ach market segment has clear growth plans focused on new digital products, new revenue streams, mutti-platform content
and clear competitor differentials.

Supporting gach of these markets, we have centralised expert teams across digital product development, production, live
events and exhibition operations, data, research and client services.

These teams provide the expertise and scale that allows us to suppart the business efficiently. The expert teams alsc enable
us to manage our cost base effectively and to pricntise tnvestment across the business.
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All areas of the business are suppaorted by group functions including finance. HR, building services. legal and IT.

We regutarly review aur cost base and seek to maintain as flexible and scalable an operating model a5 possible. autsaurcing or
consolidating shared activities where possible.

This structure creates the potential 10 scaie opportunities that alongside underlying' revenue growth enables good progression
in adjusted? operating margins. It also creates the opportunity ta effectively bolt on acquisitions to accelerate revenue and

margin growth.

While our business remains primarily UK-focused, we aim to grow our presence in North America and the international reach

of aur products.

Key Performance indicators

The Group has set out the following core financial metrics to measure our performance.

KPI

Unterlying' revenue growlh

Adjusted operating margin?

Adjusted? diluted EPS

Cash conversion®

- Development of recurring revenue
streams

Return on investment on
acquisitions and new product
development

DESCRIPTION

Total revenues adjusted for the impacl of acquisitions,
disposals and event phasing

Adjusled operating profits? as a percentage of
revenues

Adjusted earnings attributable to each share,
calculated on a diluted basis, as set out in more detail
in note 8 to the financial statements

The percentage by which adjusted operating cash flow?
covers adjusted operating profit?, as set out in the
Financial Review

The percentage of total revenues derived from live
events and premiurmn content

The incremental cash flows generated from an
investment relative to the toial cash invesiment lo
acquire or develop the assel

PERFORMANCE

. 2016 +2% [2015: +4%]

» 2074: 13% (2015: 15%|

¢ 2016: 6.5 pence {26G15: 5.3 pencel
» 2016: 153% (2015: 31%lI

» Live events and premium content
revenues accounted for 71% of total
2014 revenues [2015: 67%]

¢ Return on investment on new
product development in 2015 and
2014 exceeded internal benchmarks

The KPIls are within the Board's expectations and the ongoing fotus on these measures will support its successful strategy.
These indicators are discussed in more detail in the Chief Executive’s Review and in the Financial Review.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
Non-statutory measures

In these results we refer to ‘adjusted’ and ‘statutory’ results, as well as other non-GAAP performance measures. Adjusted
resulls are prepared to pravide a more comparable indication of the Group’s core business performance by removing the
impact of certain items including exceptional items [material and non-recurring), and volatile items predominantty relating
to investment activittes and other separately reported items. Adjusted results exclude adjusting items as set out in the
Consotidated Income Statement and below, with further details given in notes 1{b) and 4 of the financial statements. In
addition, the Group also measures and presents performance in relation to various other non-GAAP measures, such as
underlying revenue growth, adjusted operating cash flow, adjusted EBITDA and net debt.

Adjusted results are not intended to replace statutory results. These have been presented to provide users with additionat
information and analysis of the Group’s performance consistent with how the Board also monitors results. Further rationale
for each of the adjusting iterns used in these measures, as well as reconciliations to their statutory equivalents, can be found
in note 1(b to the financial statements.

The Group's activities are predominantly UK-based and therefore currency movements do not have a material impact on the
Group's results.

Statutory loss before tax reconciles to adjusted operating profit as follows:

2016 2015
Note £m £m
Statutory loss befare tax 14.4] (5.4)
Adjusting items
Impairment of goodwill 9 7.2 1.9
Amortisation of acquired intangible assets 10 23 2.2
Share-based payments 24 [0.1) . 0.7
Earn-gut consideration 13 0.6 0.1
Additional impairment of trade receivables 4 1.8 -
Exceptional operating costs ‘ 4 1.2 07
Profit on disposal of trade and assets 4 - 10.4]
Exceptional finance costs 4 - 0.2
Adjusted profit before tax 8.4 9.8
Agjusted finance cosls 5 0.5 0.7
Adjusted operating profit 9.1 10.5

Summary
Commentary on revenues and operating results is set out within the Chief Executive’'s Report.

2016 was a challenging year, with tough trading conditions leading to a marked decline particularly in advertising revenues,
with a high drog through to profitability, and a reduced adjusted operating margin? of 13% [2015: 15%|. We have rigorously
reviewed our coslt base and have made significant progress in right-sizing Group overhead expenditure.

The Group has made good progress in reducing its net debt%, which has fallen to £14.1m at the end of December 2016 {2015:
£17.9m|. The rate of cash conversion® was 153% [2015: 31%]. Leverage {net debt® to adjusted EBITDA?) at 31 December 2014
was 1.7 tirmes (2015. 1.3 times], and 1.0 times excluding the impact of Oystercatchers.

In 2016, reftecting a reduced growth outlook in the Financial Services segment, the Group recognised a non-cash impairment
charge of £7.2m against goodwill. In 2015, an impairment charge of £11.9m was recognised against goodwill in the
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Professional segment, During 2016, an additional impairment of trade receivables of £1.8m (2015: £nil] was separately
reported as an adjusting item, and exceptional restructuring costs of £1.2m (2015: £0.7m] resulting from the re-organisation of
senior management and strategic corporate restructuring activities were incurred.

Revenues

Revenues in 2016 were £72.5m (2015: £70.5m). Underlying' trends, adjusting for the biennial show, AMS, and the acquisition
of Oystercatchers, show growth of 2%. Further information on the divisional revenue performance and the mix of revenues
across premium content, live events and advertising is included in the Chief Executive’s Report.

Gperating profit

Adjusted operating profits? for the year were £9.1m [2015: £10.5m)], with an adjusted operating profit margin? of 12.6% (2015
16.9%I. Further information on the divisional adjusted operating profit performance is included in the Chief Executive’s Report.

Net adjusted? cperating expenses were £63.4m (2015: £40.0m). Adjusted® employee retated expenses in the year were £29.8m
(2015: £29.5m], and the average number of permanent employees was 554 {2015: 564). See below for discussion of items
impacting reported operating losses for the year of £3.9m {2015: £4.7m).

Reported operating losses of £3.9m [2015: £4.7m] were impacted by the adjusting items detailed below.

Adjusting items

The Directors believe that adjusted results and adjusted earnings per share provide additional useful information on the core
operational performance of the Group to shareholders, and review the results of the Group on an adjusted basis internatly.
Details of the Group's accounting policy in relation to adjusting items are shown in note 1{b] to the financiat statements,

Adjusting items generated a loss before tax of £13.0m (2015: £15.4m}, which includes an impairment charge of £7,2m relating
to goodwilt in the Financial Services segment (2015 £11.9m in the Professional segment].

Exceptional operating costs of £1.2m (2015: £0.7¢n] include statf-related restructuring costs of £0.9m (2015: £0.6m] which
principally relate to the reorganisation of the operational and senior management structure linked to the cost reduction
programme, and costs relating to specific corporate restructuring initiatives of £0.3m (2015 £0.1m). Whilst similar costs have
been incurred previously, such costs linked to the Groug's transtormation pregramme are not expec(ed to recur once thisis
completed, and as such these are deemed to be exceptional in nature.

In addition, a separately reported charge for the impairment of trade receivables of £1.8m [2015: £nil} has been treated as

an adjusting item. Following the disappainting working capital performance in 2015, and notwithstanding the return to
strong cash generation in 2016, there remains a legacy of debt which arose during a period of disruption during the second
half of 2015 and into the early part of 2014 arising from the introduction of 8 new accounting platform during 2015. Whilst
the Group continues to make every effort in cotlecting all amounts due to it, given the extended age and magnitude of this
outstanding debt by year end, the Directors believe there 15 now increased uncertainty in being able to collect these aged
amounts and therefore consider these debts to be impaired. Substantial improvements to front-end billing and credit control
processes have been made during the course of the year and the Group continues to make good progress on collecting current
receivables ang reducing the amount of days’ sales outstanding { DS0'). These have reduced to 79 days at 31 Oecember 20146
(2015: 88 days), which is an improvemnent of 17 days since the peak in March 2014, The additional charge of £1.8m {2015: £nil]
is considered to be significant to understanding current year performance, and has therefore been separately reported as an
adjusting item to operating profit. In addition, a charge of £0.5m (2015: £0.6m| has been recarded 1n operating profit, which is
considered to be in line with histarical provisioning requirements.

Earn-out costs of £0.6m (2015: £0.1m | relate to the earn-out arrangement on the acquisition of Oystercatchers, which are
treated as a remuneration expense through the statement of comprehensive income. In 2015 the earn-ouf charges of £0.1m
related to the acquisition of Venture Business Research. A gain on the disposal of the trade and assets ot Aidex of £0.4m arose
in 2015.
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Other adjusting items include amortisalion of acquired intangible assets of £2.3m (2015: £2.2m] and a share-based payment
credit of £0.1m (2015: charge of £0.7m).

Further analysis on these adjusting items is included in the Basis of Preparation section of notes 1(b) and 4 to the financial
statements.

Net finance costs

Adjusted net finance costs were £0.5m (2015: £0.7m]. The reduction in finance costs reflects lower net debt® during 2016
compared to 2015. Reported net finance costs were £0.5m [2015: £0.9m), and in 2015 included exceptional unamortised facility
costs [£0.1m] and legal fees [£0.1m] associated with the re-financing of the Group’s revalving credit facility in in that year.

Taxation

Atax charge of £1.0m [2015: £1.3m} has been recognised for the year. The adjusted tax charge was £1.8m {2015: £1.9m) giving
an adjusted effective tax rate [compared to adjusted? profit before tax] of 20.9% (2015: 19.4%]. The Company's profits were
taxed in the UK at a blended rate of 20.0% {2015: 20.25%}, with the fall in the main rate of UK Corporation tax being offset by
the impact of impact of overseas earnings taxed at different rates. On a reported basis, the effective tax rate of [22.7)% (2015:
(23.2]%) was impacted primarity by charges relating to the impairment of goodwill and other non-deductible expenses. See
note 7 for a reconciliation between the statutory andg reported tax charge,

Share-based payments

Share-based payments in 2016 decreased to a credit of £0.1m [2015: charge of £0.7ml. as a result of lapses in the LTIP
schemes following changes in seniar management and performance under non-market performance conditions.

Earnings per share

The Group has detivered adjusted? diluted earnings per share for the year of 4.5p (2015: 5.3pl. Losses per share for the year
were (3.8]p (2015 [4.8]p). Full details of the earnings per share calculations can be found in note 8 to the financial statements.

Dividend

An interim dividend of 1.5p per share was paid in respect of the period January to June 2016 [January to June 2015: 1.5p). A
final dividend in respect of the pertod July to December 2016 of 1.5p per share [July to December 2015: 1.5p] is proposed by the
Directors, giving a total dividend for the year ended 31 December 2016 of 3.0p [2015: 3.0pl, in line with 2015.

The final dividend in respect of the year is subject to sharehalder approvat at the Annual Generat Meeting and, if approved, will
be paid on 26 May 2017 to all ordinary sharehoiders an the register at close of business on 12 May 2017.

Adjusted dividend cover in the year was 1.6 times [2015: 1.8 times] and it ts intended to move above 2 times in the medium
term.

Cash flow

As set out below, net debt has fatlen to £14.1m from £17.9m at the end of December 2015 and the rate of cash conversion®
was 193% 12015 31%I. Trade receivables are steadily reducing and the rate of cash collection for invoices issued in 2016 is
both satisfactory and steady. There was a £12.4m positive swing in working capital in 2014 compared to 2015, primarily driven
by a significant improvement in the collection of trade receivables following on from the disruption experienced during the
second half af 2015 and into the early part of 2016 from the accounting system change. It is reassuring that the Group has
returned to higher levels of cash generation.
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2016 . 2018

£m £m

Adjusted aperating profit? 9.1 165
Oepraciaticn and amertisation 3.3 30
Movement in warking capital 4.1 [6.9)
Capital expenditure [2.6) 13.3]
Adjusted operating cash flow® 13.9 33
Cash impact of adjusting items (1.3} (0.5)
Taxation f1.3] [1.4]
Interest and finance leases (0.5) i0.9)
Other 0.1 -
Free cash flow 10.9 0%s
Repayment of loan noles n.n -
Acquisitions [1.5}) 0.1
Disposat of trade and assets - 0.4
Share repurchases [0.2) -
Dividends paid to Company’s shareholders [4.3) (4.0)
Decrease { (increase] in net debt 3.8 13.2t
Opening net debt (17.9) 1147
Closing net debt (14.1) (17.9)

Adjusted operating cash flow is not a measure defined by IFRS. It is defined as cash flow from aperations excluding the
impact of adjusting items, which are defined above, and including capitat expenditure. The Directors use this measure to
assess the performance of the Group as it excludes volatile items nat related to the core trading of the Group. and includes
the Group's managernent of capital expenditure. A reconciliation between cash flow from operations and adjusted operating
cash flow is shown in note bl to the financial staternents. The cash impact of adjusting items primarily related to exceptional
restructuring costs in both years.

Acquisitions net of disposals generated a cash outflow of £2.6m {including the repayment of loan notes in retation to the VBR
earn-out] in the year {2015: cash inflow of £0.3ml.

Financing and bank covenants

On 8 June 2015, the Group agreed a four year £25m multi-currency revalving credit facitity, provided by RBS and Lloyds. This
tacility runs to 31 August 2019. The principal financial covenants under the facility are: the ratio of net debt to adjusted EBITDA?
shall not exceed 2.5:1, and the ratio of EBITDA ta net finance charges shall not be less than 4 1. The Group remained within its
banking covenants and has good headroom within its £25m banking facibities.

Acquisition of Oystercatchers

Cn 30 September 2016 the Group completed the purchase of the business and assets of The Qystercatchers LLP for a total
purchase price of £3.5m, including contingent consideration ¢f up to £1.2m. This is subject to the ongoing employment of
specific individuals and the business delivering suficient earnings for the year ended 31 March 2017, and payable in the
second quarter of 2817 once the accounts have been finalised. Imitial consideration of £1.5m was paid on completion in cash
with £0.5m of Centaur Media Plc shares being issued to the vendars. The balance of £0.2m will become due an 30 September
207

Assets acquired include working capital balances of £0.1m, intangible assets comprising customer coniracts, celationships
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and the brand name totalling £1.1m. with resulting goodwill recognised of £1.2m.

As the contingent consideration is dapendent on the continued employment of five key individuals of the Oystercatchers
business it is treated as a post-acquisition employment expense within the statement of comprehensive income. An expense
of £0.6m has been recognised as an adjusting itemn during 2014,

Balance sheet

A summary of the Group’s balance sheet as at 31 December 2016 and 2015 is set qut below:

2016 2015

£m £m

Goodwill and other intangible assets 88.8 96.4
Property, plant and equipment : 240 2.3
Deferred income (16.9] (7.0}
Qther current assets and liabitities 7.5 12.7
Deferred taxaticn {1%5] (0.1)
Net assets befare net debt® 81.2 94.3
Net debt$ (1411 1179
Net assets 671 76.4

The main mavements in the Group’s balance sheet are a reduction of £7.6m in qoodwill and other intangible assets. primarily
caused by the impairment to goodwill of £7.2m [2015: £11.9m), a decrease in other current assets and liabilities, driven by
reduced gross trade receivables balances and increased bad debt prowision, and reduction in net debt®. Further details on
these significant mavements can be found throughout this report.

Conclusion

The Group has made good progress towards its strategic goals within what has been a challenging trading period. The harsh
trading conditions brought about by the falls in advertising demand has impacted the Group's adjusted operating profit? margin
negatively, and we have reviewed our cost base in order to right-size this appropriately. The growth in digital platforms and
event-driven revenues has been positive and we remain vigilant but positive against this backdrop.

Following the difficulties experienced during the second half of 2015 and into the early part of 2016 following the
implementation of the accounting platform, much hard work has been undertaken thraughout 2016 to address
these issues resulting in excellent cash flow performance in the year with a swing in working capital flow of £12.4m,
a resultant cash conversion® of 153% with a reduction in net debt’ to £14,1m, The legacy of cld trade receivables
remains which have proven very difficult to collect and an additional, separately reported, impairment provision of
£1.8m {2015: £nil) has been made to reflect the uncertainty around these remaining amaunts. We continue to make
every eftort to collect all amounts due to the Group.

I am optimistic that the Group is in a strong position for ¢ontinued growth in
digital and tive events revenues that will deliver margin improvement in the medium term,

S by

Swag Mukerji
Chief Financial Qfficer
28 March 2017
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RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk management approach

The Board has averall responsibility for the effectiveness of the Group's system of risk management and internal centrols and
these are regularly monitored by the Audit Committee.

Details of the activities of the Audit Committee in this financial year can be found in the Audit Committee Report on page 42.

The Executive Committee is responsible for identifying, managing and menitoring material risks in each area of the business
and for regularly reviewing and updating the risk register, as well as reporting to the Audit Committee in relation 1o risks,
mitigations and controls. As the Group operates principally fromn one office and with relatively short management reporting
lines, members of the Executive Committee are closely involved in day-to-day matters and able to identify areas of increasing
risk guickly and respond accordingly. The responsibility for each risk identified is assigned to a member of the Executive
Committee. The Audit Committee considers risk management and controls regularty and the Board formally considers risks
to the Group's strategy and plans as welt as the risk management process as part of its strategic review.

The risk register is the core element of the Group's risk management pracess. The register is maintained by the Company
Secretary with input from the Executive Committee. The Executive Committee initially identifies the material risks facing the
Group and then collectively assesses the severity of each risk [by ranking both the likelihood of occurrence of the risk and its
potential impact on the business) and the related mitigating controls.

As part of its risk management processes, the Board considers bath strategic and operational risks, as well as its risk appetite
in terms of the tolerance level it is willing to accept in relation to each principal risk, which is recorded in the Company's

risk register. This appraach recognises that risk cannot always be eliminated at an acceptable cost and that there are some
risks which the Board will, after due and careful consideration, choose to accept. The Group's nisk register, its mathad of
preparation ang the operation of the key controls in the Group's system of internal control are regularly reviewed and overseen
by the Audit Committee with reference to the Group's strategic aims and its operating environment. The register is also
reviewed and ¢onsidered by the Board.

As part of the ongoing enhancement of the Group's risk monitoring activities, we reviewed and updated the procedures by
which we evaluate principal risks and uncertainties during the year.

Principal risks

The Group's risk register currently inctudes operational and strategic risks. The principal risks faced by the Group in 2016,
taken from the register, together with the potential effects and mitigating factors, are set put below. The Directors confirm that
they have undertaken a robust assessment of the principal risks facing the Group.

Trends in print advertising and sales of print products mean that revenues fromn these sources continue to shrink and are
not replaced like-for-like with online or digital products. The non-print media sector has high levels of competition from
a wider group and low barriers to entry. This leads to different pressures on audience and customer retention as welt as
pricing.

These trends continued mare steeply during the latter part of 2016 as direct revenue from print products dipped more than
expected at the start of the year. Our strategy of identifying the type of content our audiences want and how they want to
consume the content means that, in 2046 and early 2017, we reduced the circulation frequency and volume of various of our
print magazines including Marketing Week and Creative Review. We are developing new revenue streams fram products,
such as the Mini MBA in Marketing, which are exclusively digital and derive ne revenue from print advertising. We are also
continuing to develop our technical capability and to support our product innovation by hiring people with relevant experiences
and skills where appropriate. The rale of our Executive Eammittee includes anticipating future changes in the market and
ensuring that aur business can react or accelerate plans accordingly.
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Mavement in risk: J- The Board considers that our exposure to this risk has decreased since the prior year due to the specific
actions we have taken to reduce our dependency on print advertising and sales of print products, including the creation of new
products which are exclusively digital.

Failure to manage change effectively could exacerbate our difficulties in retaining and recruiting staff at an apprepriate cost
in parts of the business, and lead to loss of key senior staff, resulting in increased recruitment and training costs, loss of
productivity, petential loss of clients and potential inability to maintain content quality and deliver our specific plans.

Given the acceleration of eur strategy and associated changes, we will need to manage practical and cultural impacts on
staff, including potential changes to individual roles as well as broader working practices. During the year, and in line with
the changes taking place across the business, we have introduced new measures aimed at improving our ability to recruit and
retain employees and ta track employee engagement. In response to employee feedback, twice-yearly performance review
meetings have been replaced with monthly ‘check-in" meetings, which facilitate more regular discussian about persenal and
career development opportunities between employees and line managers. Further, the Group has replaced its annual staff
engagement and satisfaction survey with an interactive platform which enables employees to provide weekly feedback an
their levels of engagement and satisfaction directly to line managers. All employees have access to training, share schemes
and other benefits and the Group benchmarks its approach against best practice within the sector. Addressing levels of
attrition continues to be a focus for managers' performance targets in 2017 and the Group continues to prioritise the setting
of appropriate remuneration across the Group to ensure we remain competitive within the market. Itis a focus of Portfolio
Directars to ensure that client retationships and content quality are maintained as a team rather than by an individual, where
possible. In addition, most senior employees enter into restrictive cavenants upon starting employment with the Group,

and we are developing specific retention strategies, as well as succession plans, for critical roles and key personnel where
possible.

Movement in risk: T Due lo increased change taking place across the business [caused by, among other things, initiatives
aimed at reducing our reliance on print, together with more generat cost-cutting measures) the Board considers this risk to
have increased since the previous year.

Serious systems failure affecting our core systems and multiple products or business functions, or breach of network
security controls (as a result of a deliberate cyber-attack or unintentional event), results in misappropriation of financial
assets, proprietary er sensitive infarmation or operatienal disruption, such as the unavailability of aur websites and of
our digital products to users or unavailability of support platforms, thereby directly affecting our revenues or collection
activities and damaging our reputation with customers and audiences.

The Group has invested significantly in its IT systems and several key IT system upgrades were completed durning 2016,
including upgrades to the new CRM and finance systems introduced in 2015. Security of our IT systems and business
continuity continues to be a focus for the Board and further IT system improvements are planned for 2017, following
completion of an external audit of the security of our main IT infrastructure and our websites to be carried out by a specialist
third party provider. We have an experienced IT tearn and continue to invest in new roles in this area. Where possible,
implementation of IT system upgrades is supported by internal teams to reduce the risk of relying on third parties and, where
services are autsourced to suppliers, contingency planning is carried out to mitigate risk of supplier failure, During 2015, our
core websites which were hosted on a legacy platform were migrated onto a new and more secure platform which is cloud-
hosted. In 2014, transition of the aperational IT systems for Ecansultancy, Fashien & Beauty Manitor, Year Ahead, Foresight
News and Clean Energy Pipeline into our group-wide IT infrastructure was completed. Both measures have reduced our
vuinerability to a serious breach of network security controls but we consider the external environment a key factor in this risk
so the Board has not reduced its assessment of likelihood

Movement in risk: = The Board considers this risk to be breadly the same as for the prior year.

Fraudutent or accidental breach of our security, or ineffective operation of T and data management systems leads to
loss, theft or misuse of confidential information or personal data or breach of data protection requirements resuiting in
increased regulatory supervision, damage to our reputation and / or direct financial impact.

The central Group IT support function monitars and controls our IT systems, including data management. Appropriate IT
security 1s undertaken for all key processes to keep the IT environment safe. Websites are hosted by specialist third-party
providers who provide warranties relating to security standards, Our core websites have been migrated onto 2 new and more
secure platform which is cloud-hosted and databases have been cleansed and upgraded during 2015 and 2014. External
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access to data is protected and staff are instructed to minimise access ta internal data and the sending of data lists, which are
password protected or encrypted where appropriate. We have a Director of Cata and Analytics whose remit includes building
an the existing cantrols around the use and processing of sensitive data. The Group has a business continuity plan which
includes its IT systems and there is regular back-up of data, stored off-site. We have standardised all privacy policies and
website terms of use for the Group's websites. We are taking steps to ensure Centaur's compliance with the requirements of
the new EU Generat Data Protection Reqgulation, which witl apply to us in 2018.

Movement in risk: = The Board considers this risk to be broadly the same as for the prior year.

The Group runs events and exhibitions that gather large numbers of people in single venues and locations, often in large
cities in the UK and elsewhere. This results in operational health and safety risks including fire safety, food hygiene, crowd
control, security and failure of equipment. As the Group operates events and exhibitions in locations hired from third
parties, including hotels and venue operators, it is generally not in control of safety policies far the locations and depends
upon the third party venue operator to have adequate safety policies, processes and equipment in place and to comply with
health and safety regulations. {f a serious physical incident occurred at an event, physical injury, death and other significant
damage could occur.

Events and exhibitions are the responsibility of a specific tearn withm the Group which has experience and iraining in health
and safety risks and responses. The Group's awn employees are always in attendance at all of our events and exhibitions and,
at our major events and exhibitions, we engage third party floor managers with specialist health and safety expertise. Our
events teams risk assess every event venue in conjunction with the venue operator and key contractors. Wherever possible

we ensure that contracts provide for liability to remain with venue operators whe are best placed to manage the risks and

we maintain insurance to cover our public liability. 1n 2016, we put in place new measures aimed at, among other things,
mitigating risk to the health and safety of our employees and customers in the event of a serious physicat incident at ane of our
events or exhibitions. We revised our business cantinuity plan and also set up 8 mass communication tool and a designated
disaster recovery website enabling urgent messages to be communicated more quickly to employees and, conseguently,
customers.

Movement in risk: - The Board considers this risk to be broadly the same as for the prior year.

A seriaus force majeure event, such as a flood or terrorist attack, could affect the availability of a venue for one of our
large events or exhibitions or of our central London office. For the Group’s larger events and exhibitions, there are enly
a small number of venues availahle for hire in the market from third parties such as hotels, and we have a majority of
outr staff and systems at a single central London lecation, If a venue or our central London office becomes unavailable, it
is unlikely that the Group would be able to transfer an event to a different venue, or our employees to a different office,
at short notice. This could result in damage to our reputation and direct financial impact from revenues that we would
be unable to coltect (because, for exampte, commercial teams are unable to operate etfectivelyl, costs atready incurred,
refunds due to customers or legal claims from customers and suppliers.

QOver the last year, we have taken steps to ensure that, in the event of the unavailability of any venue or our central

London office, our reaction can be quick and well planned. We have a revised business continuity plan, along with a mass
communication tool and disaster recovery website, which facilitate faster communication of urgent messages to employess
and cusiomers. The Group has also fostered closer reiationships with its existing and potential venue providers so that, where
feasible, we have contingency plans for maving events ar exhibitions to alternative venues if necessary. Given the lack of
venues available for hire and the demand for those venues from our competitors, it is impossible o have a plan in place to
deal with all potential situations which coutd cause unavailability of a venue. Where possible, however, we are now securing
longer-term [three yearl contracts with major events and exhibition venue providers, and we continue to review and explore
alternative options for venues to mitigate this risk. fn addition, our Group policy is to contract with suppliers and customers
under our standard terms where possible, which seek to protect us from casts and loss of revenue in the event of force
majeure ar cancellation of events. As we consider the external environment, including in particular the rise in unpredictable
terrorist attacks in major European cities, to be a key factor in this risk however, the Board has not reduced its assessment of
likelihood,

Movement in risk: = The Board considers this risk to be broadly the same as for the prior year.
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The Group’s praducts could be vulnerable ta replication hy competitors in the UK or other markets including, potentially,
those offering content under a different revenue model that reduces or eliminates costs for users.

The Group has continued to invest in its digital product development hub. This team is staffed with experienced digital product
development experts and is adequately resourced. The product pipeline is planned up to 12 months ahead, and progress
against this schedule is reviewed fortnightly to take into account changes in customer requirements and business priorities,
as well as the activities of our cornpetitors. In addition we have invested in our registered intellectual property and we seek to
enforce our legal rights to protect our brands and intellectual property where necessary.

Movement in risk: -> The Board considers this risk to be broadly the same as for the prior year,

Changes to regulations and legal requirements, including in relation te areas such as data protection and direct marketing,
restrict or burden the Group’s activities.

Legal and regulatory matters are deatt with by our tegally qualified Company Secretary, supported by our panel of respected
law firms. Our Company Secretary. with support from internal experts in employment and health and safety matters, is tasked
with updating and advising the Beard on changes to law and regulation that may affect the Group's interests and reguire
alterations to our business practices. We conduct staff training tn-house on key legislation where appropriate, inciuding the
Data Protection Act 1998, the forthcoming EU General Data Protection Regutation, the UK Bribery Act 2010 and the Modern
Slavery Act 2015.

Movement in risk: = The Board considers this risk to be breadly the same as for the prior year,

As Centaur Media's products are primarily sold to specific sectors of the UK market, the Group’s financial performance is
highly sensitive to economic and palitical conditions affecting the UK market and/or the key sectors in which we operate.
Uncertainty about the future economic and political stability of the UK and its impact on sectors including (but not limited
to) the financial and real estate sectors fallowing the UK's vote to leave the EU in 2014 has the potential to reduce customer
demand for aur products and thereby adversely affect the Graup’s revenues.

The Group's strategic plan includes increasing international growth in the mid to longer term, focusing on North America, in
order to mitigate this risk. Many of the Group’s praducts are market-leading in their respective sectors and are an integral part
of our customers’ operational processes, which mitigates the risk of potential reduced demand for our products. The Group
reqularly reviews the political and economic conditions and forecasts for UK and the main sectors in which it operates to
assess whether changes to its product offerings or pricing structures are necessary.

Movement in risk: ‘T> The Board considers this risk to have increased since the prior year due to diminished short and
medium-term expectations for the UK economy following the referendum vote to leave the EU on 23 June 2016, meaning this
risk has been included in the annual report as a principal risk facing the Group for the first time.

Key to movement in risk from last year [after taking into account mitigating controls)
T Increase in risk

—» Risk unchanged

| Decrease in risk

Viability statement

In accordance with provision C.2.2 of the 2014 revision of the UK Corporate Governance Code, the Directors have assessed
the viability of the Group over a four-year period to December 2020, taking account of the Group’s current position, the
Group’s strategy, the Board's risk appetite and, as documented above, the principal risks facing the Group and how these

are managed. This period has increased from three years as disclosed in the 2015 annual report, as a2 result of the Board
performing a full strategic review and financial plan up to 2020 during the year. Based on the results of this analysis, the
Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Company will be able to continue in operation and meet its liabilities as they
fali due over the period to December 2020.

The Board has determined that the four-year period to December 2020 is an appropriate period over which to provide its
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viability statement because the Board's financial planning harizon covers a four-year peried. In making their assessment,
the Directors have taken account of the Group's existing financing arrangements to 2019 (and assumed that financing

witl be available to replace the current facility on similar termsl, cash flows, dividend cover and other key financial ratios
over the period. These metrics are subject to stress testing which involves sensitising a number of the main assumptions
underlying the forecasts bath individually and in unison. The assumptions sensitised include forecasted adjusted EBITDA,
cash conversion and capital expenditure. Where appropriate, this analysis is carried aut to evaluate the potential impact of
the Group's principal risks actually occurring, such as print and advertising revenues continuing to shrink, staff attrition, UK
economic conditions and replication of products by competitors. Sensitising the model for changes in the assumptions and
risks affirmed that the Group would remain viable over the four-year period to 2020.

BGoing concern basis of accounting

fn accordance with provision C.1.3 of the 2014 revision of the UK Corporate Governance Code, the Directors’ statement as to
whether they cansider it appropriate to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the financial statements
and their identificaticn of any material uncertainties to the Group's ability to continue to do so over a period of at least twelve
manths from the date of approval of the financial statements and for the fareseeable future can be found on page 35.

CORPORATE RESPONSIBILITY

Centaur Media is committed to developing a culture of environmental awareness and sacial responsibility and we seek where
appropriate to incarporate environmentally and socially responsible practices into the way we deliver services and products
to our customers and procure goods and services fram third parties. The Group has 2 whistleblowing policy in place enabling
employees to report any concerns about impreper practices, including relating to its environmental and secial responsibility
practices.

Environment

Centaur Media operates in the media sector, predominantly in the United Kingdorn, and consequently, while Centaur
recognises that its business has an impact on the environment, including through the use of energy and paper, our impact on
the environment is less significant than that of companies ogerating in many ather sectors. As we continue to increase our
digital capabilities and products, and to reduce our reliance on print advertising, we are reducing our use of consumable items
such as paper and plastic over time. The majority of our employees work out of a single location in Wells Street, London and
we have only one other UK location in Bromsgrove, meaning that the Group has been able to teke advantage of conselidating
building-related enviranmental impacts and benefitting from Group sharing of items such a5 photocapiers. The Group also
has smalt offices in New York and Singapore.

The Group actively seeks to minimise adverse enwironmental impacts and to promote good environmental practices wherever
possible. We increasingly aim to ensure that our major suppliers are environmentally responsible, For examgle, our main
paper and print supplier hotds the SO 14001 (environmental management] accreditation and is certified by the Forest
Stewardship Council and Pragramme far the Endersement of Forestry Certification.

Some of aur other measures are:

* reducing our water usage, which we use for domestic purposes only [notably flushing and handwashing] by approximately
30% during the period ended 2014 through the refurbishment of our lavatories and basin taps in parts af the Wells Street
building;

« use of energy-efficient Lghting, including replacing existing light fittings with energy efficient LED light fittings in the Wells
Street building - during the year ended 31 December 2016, this programme was extended to include all common parts of

the Wells Street building;

« installation of motion sensors in offices to control tighting;
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+ analysing and adjusting the timing of boilers and chillers for office air conditioning to increase energy efficiency;
« stepping the use of non-recyclable cups and reducing the use of paper hand towels;

+ buying paper that 1s Forest Stewardship Council [FSC'} accredited which means that the paper has been sourced in an
environmentally-friendly, socially responsible and economically viable manner:;

* active engagement in the recycling of cans, tins, plastic, glass, cardboard and paper, inctuding the replacement of
traditianal waste bins with recycling bins throughout the Wells Street building as part of a new centratised recycling
system rolted out in 2015, together with a monthly report showing the percentage of waste collected that was recycled;

» recycling of printer cartridges where possible;
* increasing the use of agueous inks, which limit the release of volatile organic compounds;

« use of eco-friendly taxis and courier vehicles that are less than 3 years old, and use of cyclist couriers, where possible;
+ cycle to work scheme and other measures that facititate cycling to work by employees, such as the provision of showers,
changing rooms and lockers, as well as bike storage facilities at the Wells Street building; and

= encouraging staff to use public transport by proviston of season ticket loans.

Charitable Donations

The Group supports local communities and charitable organisations through direct fundraising, donation and pro-bono
work. Quring the year, a total of £118,855 (comprising employee contributions of £8.454, a Group contribution of £8,454 and
£101,947 in third party contributions raised through our events] was donated to Childline, our chosen charity partner for
2016, In 2015, £111,242 [comprising employee contributions of £11,512, 3 Group contribution of £10,000 and £89,730 in third
party contributions raised through our events) was donated to Mind. We used our events to raise money from third parties
for Childline including requesting donations in return for entry for awards and taking collections at the events. Every year,
the Group offers each employee a paid day off 10 spend volunteering for the not-for-profit cause or charity of their choice.
Employee contributions were raised through a range of company-wide fundraising events including sporting events and bake
sales. We also operate a Give As You-Earn scheme through the payroil. In 2014, contributions amounting to £6.024 [consisting
of emplayee contnibutions of £5,67% plus a matching contribution of E345 from the Groupl were made thraugh this [2015:
£5.723).

Health and Safety

We are committed to the safety of our staff. We have a Health and Safety Policy which sets out Centaur’s responsibilities and
those of its staff cancerning health and safety in the workplace. Qur Health and Safety Committee, which is responsible

far overseeing the application of this Policy, meets at least every 6 months and reports directly to the Board on all material
related matters. Oue to the nature of the business, risk of work-based accidents is relatively low but the Group takes its
responsibilities for the health and safety of its employees seriously. Qur office manager is responsible for maintaining a safe
environment for employees and an Accident Book 1s available to all staff in Reception. We periodically carry out internal health
and safety rewiews, taking follow up action to maintain standards where necessary, and undertake staff iraining in relation to
fire safety. Where work-related activities take place which have a higher risk attached - such as travel, marketing events and
outdoor activities - additional ptanning is undertaken which includes a risk assessment and mutigation plan. To minimise risk
to the health and safety of our employees in the event of a major disaster or emergency, we have recently revised our business
continuity plan and carried out testing of the plan.

Emissions

We continue to measure our carben footprint by monitoring our Energy Usage and we are pleased te confirm that we are
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compliant with the EU Energy Efficiency Directive ‘Energy Saving Opportunity Scheme' [ES0S').
The greenhouse gas ‘GHG" emission from our operations during the year are set out below:

Year ended 31 December 2016 globa! GHG emissions data [tonnes of CO2e:

2016 215

Tonnes CO3 Tonnes CO2

Scope 1 |Gas, Fuel and Car Mileage) 75 157
Scope 2 |Electricity and Steam) 474 581
Tetal GHG emissions 549 738
Average number of employees 550 564
Emissions per employee 1.0 13

Oiversity

Centaur Media strongly encourages diversity across the Group and is committed to recruiting and promoting the most talented
people from the widest pool and providing equal opportunities for alt employees and prospective employees. Ta support

this aim, the Group has an Equal Opportunities Palicy which cavers recruitment and selection, promotion, training and
development and standard contract terms for all staff. We also suppart apprenticeships which increase our talent pool and
demonstrates the Group’s commitment to reaching out to young people from a variety of backgrounds. We offer internships
and work experience opportunities for people from a variety of backgrounds.

As part of aur activities to implement the pravisions of the UK Modern Slavery Act 2015, we have adopted an anti-slavery and
human trafficking policy.

Two out of our six {33%)] Board members are fernale and, five out of seven {71%] of our Executive Committee are fernale and,
as at 31 December 2016, our workforce overall was 59% female (327 employees] and 41% male {227 employees|. We proudly
support flexible warking opportunities, and 9% of staff are employed on a part-time basis.

The Strategic Report was approved by the Board of Directors and signed by order of the Board.

<

Grainhe Brankin
Company Secretary
28 March 2017
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

@ Ron Sandler

Chairman

Ran joined Centaur as Chairman in May 2015. He is 2 member of the advisory board of Palaman Capital Partners. Ris early
career was with the Boston Consulting Group. He was Chief Executive Officer of Lloyd's of Landon from 1995 until 1999,
playing a key role in Lloyd's Reconstruction and Renewal, and subsequently Chief Operating Officer of NatWest Group. Ronis
a past-president of the Chartered Institute of Bankers and in 2002 he led an independent review of the UK Long Term Savings
Industry. He has been chairman of numerous companies, including Northern Rock, Phoenix Group and Paternoster.

€ Wwilliam Eccleshare

Senfor Independent Director

William is Chairman and CEQ of Clear Channel International. He served as a non-executive director of Hays Plc from 2004

to 2014 and has been a board member of the Donmar Warehouse Theatre since 2013. William was a Partner and Leader of
European Branding Practice at McKinsey & Ca. He has previously served in international leadership roles at major advertising
agencies, including as European Chairman and CEQ of BBDO [Omnicom); Eurapean Chairman of Young and Rubicam [WPP
Groupl; Chairman and CED of Ammirati Puris Lintas Northern Europe (Interpublic Groupl; Global Strategic Planning Director
aof J. Walter Thompson Worldwide; and CEQ of PPGH/JWT Amsterdam.

€ Robert Boyle

Non-Executive Director

Robert, a qualified Chartered Accauntant, was a partner of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, where he was Chairman of the PwC
European Entertainment and Media Practice for twelve years, retiring in 2006, He is a Non-Executive Director, and Chairman
of the Audit Cormnmittee, of Maxis Berhad [in Malaysial and Witan Investment Trust Ple.

O Rebecca Miskin

Non-Executive Director

Rebecca is Founder and CEQ of Gloo Networks Ple, a digital transformation company. She began her career in media at Reed
Elsevier launching telecom-based information services across Europe. She has since worked across the USA and UK at Time
Inc.. NBC Universal and maost recently at Hearst Corparation. Rebecca helps re-align media organisations through a data
driven, customer-centric and collaborative operational approach.

© Andria Vidler

Chief Executive Officer

Andria jeined Centaur Media as Chief Executive in November 2013. From August 2009 to July 2013, Andria was Chief Executive
Officer of EMI Music UK & Ireland during which time she successfully transformed the business into a high margin global
rights management enterprise by driving consumer focus and digital innovation. Between April 2008 and August 2009, she
was Chief Marketing Officer of Bauer Media. As part of the UK management team she was responsible for building the Bauer
Media brands to generate greater profitability across the porifolio of 53 magazines, 23 radio stations and all online praducts.
Andria was Managing Director of Magic FM & National Radio from June 2005 to Aprit 2008. Prior to that, she held a number of
managerial, operationat and marketing roles at Capital Radio and the BBC. Andria s a trustee of The Roundhouse Trust and
also sits on industry award panels.

@ Swag Mukeriji

Chief Financial Officer

Swag joined Centaur Media in July 2015 and was appointed Chief Financial Officer in October 2016. Swag has had senior
finance and general management positions with several blue chip FMCG companies including Guinness Ple, Grand
Metropolitan Plc, United Biscuits Ple and Virgin. He was formerly Group Finance Director of Biocompatibles International plc
and since then he has been CFO of three private equity backed businesses, the latest of which was Safetykleen, a Warburg
Pincus Investment, He has successfully delivered shareholder value through top and bottom line growth, restructures and
turnarounds. Swag is a qualified Chartered Accountant and has a Warwick MBA,
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EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

In addition to the Chief Executive and Chief Financial Officer, the Executive Committee comprises the Chief Operating Officer,
two Divisional Managing Directors, CEQ and Founding Partner of Oystercatchers and Company Secretary. The biographies of
the Executive Committee are set out below:

€ Linda Smith

Chief Qperating Officer

Linda was appointed Chief Operating Officer in February 2016 and manages Centaur's centralised expert hubs of 10, Research,
Praducticn, Data and Digital Product Development, as well as IT, HR and client and custormer delivery operations, Linda has
warked at 3 number of media campanies including 1TV, StarcomMediaVest, Capital Radio, RadioCentre and maost recently
Bauer Media. She was a commercial consultant to Centaur Media in 2014, Through her previous roles Linda has developed
operational experience in a number of different areas including M&A, sales and general management and across a broad
spectrum of broadcasting, publishing and digital platforms.

O Steve Newbold

Divisional Managing Director

Steve was apponted Divisional Managing Birector in September 2015, averseeing the Home Interest, Legal, Engineering,
Financial Services, Travel & Meetings and HR portfolios. Prior to jaining Centaur Media Steve held Managing Director roles

at WGSN, i2i Events, Emap Communications {now Ascentiall and Emap Ple. He has experience of running multi-media
businesses in key sectors including homes, legal, retail. and fashion. He has also led and supported key acquisitions including
WGSN, Stylesight, Futuros Events, Broadeast Video Expo and Pure Landon.
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© Jane Turner

Divisional Managing Oirector

Jane’s early career began with publishers Maclean Hunter, Thomas Telford and Argus Press Group, moving on to Mintel
International and Claritas Nielsen and helping drive both companies inte the age of digital distribution. Following this
foundation, her time with agency groups Havas and WPP focused on delivering insight, sales, marketing and digital solutions
for major enterprise clients, In 2005 Jtarie joined Chorion PLC as Managing Director. Latterly, she has run her own digital
applications business whilst also supporting a range of classic digital creative agencies, digital content and Saa$ technolegy
businesses in growing new audiences and developing new channels. Jane joined Centaur as Divisional Managing Director with
respansibility far the Marketing portfolio in March 2016,

@ Suki Thompsaon

CEQ and Founding Partner of Oystercatchers

Suki joined Centaur Media in October 2014 as a result of the acquisition of Oystercatchers and joined the Executive Cornrnittee.
Suki started her career agency-side with companies such as DDB, WWAV, Publicis, TBWA and Y&R in London and Asia

before founding Haystack Consultancy, which created a framework for the madern pitch intermediary. As well as her work at
Oystercatchers, Suki has been the Chair of The Marketing Society, a long-standing member of WACL (Women in Advertising
and Communications London] and is on The Board of Trustees for Macmillan Cancer Support and Touraid. She is a reqular
contribytor to the national and marketing press and speaker at industry conferences. In 2012 Suki was made a Freeman of the
City of London and given an honarary Doctorate by Coventry University for her services to International Business,

€ Grainne Brankin

General Counsel and Company Secretary

Grainne has been with Centaur Media since July 2014 and is General Counsel as well as Company Secretary. Prior to joining
Centaur Media, Grainne was General Counsel at CBS Outdoor Internationat where she was part of the management team
delivering a successful sale of the division by CBS Carp. to Platinum Equity. Grainne had previously worked for 8 years at
Yahoo!'s EMEA HQ in London and then Switzerland for 8 years and held various roles in the legal team including responsibility
for M&A, restructures and employment. Grainne guabified at Clifford Chance in London and worked at law firm Bird & Bird
before joining Yahoo!. She has undertaken a broad range of corporate and commercial work in Europe and the USA within
media, tetecoms and technology industries,
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GIRECTORS' REPORT
The Directors of Centaur Media Plc [the Campany or ‘the Group’l, a company incorporated and domiciled in England and
Wales, present their report an the altairs of the Group and Carmpany together with the audited company and cansalidated

fingncial statements for the year ended 31 Decemnber 2014.

Details of significant events since the balance sheet date zre contained in note 32 to the finantial statements,

Principal activities

The principal activities of the Group are the provision of business information, eveats and marketing solutions to setected
professional and commercial markets. The principal activities of the Cempany are those of a hotding campany.

Business review

The Strategic Report, incorporating the Chief Executive's Report, on pages é to 29 sets out a summary of the Group strategic
objectives, business model, key performance measures, operating and financial reviews, future developments, principal risks
and the corporate responsibility statement.

Greenhouse gas emissions

Detzils of the Group’s greenhouse gas emissions are included in the Corporate Responsibility Section on pages 28 to 29.

Research and development activities

The Group invests in systems and website development activities - see note 10 to the financial statements for the internally
generated amounts capitatised during the year. The Group does not incur any significant research costs.

Dividends

A final dividend in respect of the periad July to December 2016 of 1.5p per share (July to December 2015: 1.5p] is proposed
by the Directors, and subject to shareholder approval at the Annual General Meeting. will be paid on 26 May 2017 to ordinary
shareholders on the register at the close of business on 12 May 2017, With the intenm dividend of 1.5p per share, the total
dividend for the year will be 3.0p per share (2015: 3.0p].

Share capital and substantiat shareholdings
Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note 23 to the financial statements. As at 31 December 2016, and 14

March 2017 [being the tast practicable date prior to publication), notifications of interests at or above 3% in the issued voling
share capital of the Company had been received from the following:
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31 December 2014 14 March 2017
Aberforth Partners LLP 23.3%% 23.3%%
Artemis Investment Management LLP 17.57% 17.57%
IBIS Capital Partners LLP 8.13% 8.02%
Chelverton Asset Management 5.02% 5.02%
Graham Sherren [inc. spouse) 5.73% 5.73%
Argos Funds - Argonaut Fund 5.88% 5.88%
Olg Mutual plec 3.96% 396%
Standard Life Investmentstt 3.35% 3.34%

1 This includes Wellcome Trust Limited which is managed by Aberforth Partners LLP
T+ Figures derived from share register analysis

Al 28 March 2017 and 31 December 20146, 6,870,437 (31 December 2015: 6,472,990 10p ordinary shares are held in treasury,
representing 4,54% {2015; 4.31%] of the issued share capital of the Company as at 31 December 2016. 800,000 (2015: 80G,000]
deferred shares of 10p each carry restricted voting rights and carry no right to receive a dividend payment. The movement in
treasury shares during the period is due to the repurchase of shares by the Company.

Directers and Directors’ interests
The Directors of the Company during the year and up ta the date of this report are detailed below. All directors served from 1

January 2016 unless otherwise stated. The Board have decided to continue shserving best practice by offering themselves for.
re-election annually.

Number of Shares acquired Number of Number of

ordinary shares during the year ordinary shares  ordinary shares

held at 1 January heidat 31 held at 28 March

2016 December 20151 2014

Ranald Sandler B 45,000 45,000 45,000
William Eccleshare lappointed 1 July 2014} - - - -
Christopher Satterthwaite {resigned 27 July 2016) 95,942 - 95,942 N/A
Robert Boyle 117.037 - 117,037 117,037
Rebecca Miskin 14,800 - 14,800 14,800
Andriz Vidler 138,574 15,356 153,930 15,401
Swagatam Muker)i [appainted 1 October 2014) - 30,000 30,000 30,502
Mark Kerswetl {resigned 29 July 2014] 333.108 - 333,108 N/A

10r date of resignatian if earlier

The Directors’ interests in long-term incentive plans are disclased in the Rermuneration Committee Report on pages 59 to 60,

Qualifying third party indemnity provisions
By virtue of article 217 of the Articles of Assaciation of the Company, a qualifying third party indemnity provision (within the
meaning given by section 234 of the Campanies Act 2006] is in force at the date of this report in respect of each Director of the

Campany and was in force throughout the year.

The Company has purchased appropriate insurance in respect of legal achians against Directors and officers.
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Charitable and political donations

During the year the Group made a donation to its nominated charity for 2014, Childline, of £118,855, which included third party
donations collected at events of £101,947 [2015: donation to Mind of £111,242 including third party collections of £111,242).

No political denations were made during the year (2015: £nill.
Employment policy

The Group is an equal opportunities employer and appoints employaes without reference to age, sex, ethnic group or religious
beliefs.

It is the Group's policy to give full consideration to suitable applications tor employment by disabled persons. Opportunilies
also exist for employees of the Group who become disabled to centinue in their employment or to be trained for other positions
in the Group.

The Group actively encourages employee involvement at all levels, both through manthly employee briefings and by direct
access to managers and the Executive Committee. tn addition, the Share Incentive Plan as described in note 24 encourages

erployees’ participation in the Group's performance.

All employees are regularly briefed on the financial and economic factors affecting the Group's performance and new
initiatives through monthly iown hall meetings and management cascade communication.

Significant agreements

The Group’s bank facility agreement, referred to in note 27 to the financial statements, is a significant agreement that is
terminable on a change of control of the Company. In addition, awards under certain of the long-term incentive plans, details
of which are set out in note 24, will vest or may be exchanged for awards of a purchaser’s shares upon a change of control of
the Company.

Conflicts of interest

Following the implementation of legislation on conflicts of interest, reflected in the changes to the Company’s Articles of
Association in 2008, procedures are in place to deal with such conflicts 2nd they have operated effectively.

Financial instruments

A statement in relation te the financial risk management and use of financial instruments by the Group is presented in note 27
to the financial statements.

information required under the listing rules

In accordance with the UK Financial Cenduct Authority's Listing Rules [LR 9.8.4Cl. the information to be included in the annual
report and financial statements, where applicable, under LR 9.8.4, is set out in this Directors’ report, with the exception of
details of transactions wath shareholders which is set out on page 59.

Going concern

The Directors have carefully assessed the Company’s ability to continue trading and have a reasonable expectation that the
Company has adequate resaurces ta continue in aperatienal existence for at teast 12 months from the date of this report and
for the foreseeable future. See note 1 of the financial statements for further details,

Subsidiaries

Details of the subsidiaries of the Company are shown in note 31 to the financial statements.
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Compliance with the UK Corperate Governance Code

See the Directors’ Statement on Corporate Governance for a statement made in respect of the Group's compliance with the
provisions of the UK Corporate Governance Code on page 37.

Disclosure of Information to the Auditors

The Directors confirm that, so far as the Directars are aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Company's
auditors are unaware, and the Directors have taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as Directors in order to make
themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Company's auditors are aware of that information.
This confirmation is given and should be interpreted in accordance with the provisions of 5418 of the Companies Act 2006.

The Directors’ responsibility statement is included on page é4.
Approved by the Board of Directors and signed by order of the Board.

N

Grainne Brankin
Company Secretary
28 March 2017
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DIRECTORS’ STATEMENT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Beard is committed to high standards of corporate governance and supports the UK Corporate Governance Code
published in September 2014. The Board sets out its repart below on how the Group has applied the principles of, and
complied with, the UK Corporate Governance Code during the year.

Compliance statement

The Company has applied the provisions set out in the UK Corporate Governance Code throughout the year. The Board is
cornmitted to maintaining a structure, which establishes a sound corporate gavernance framewark on behalf of the Company's
shareholders. Throughout the year, the Group has complied with all the provisions of the UK Corporate Governance Code,

The Board

As at 31 Decernber 2016 the Board had four Non-Executive Directors and two Executive Directors [Chief Executive and Chief
Financial Officerl, Biographies for each currently serving director are shown on page 30. The Board endeavours to maintain
diversity in its composition with respect to gender, skills, knowledge and length of service in order to ensure the balanced and
effective running of the Company. Ron Sandler is Chairman of the Board and is an independent Nen-Executive Oirector, who
leads the Board and ensures that both Executive and Non-Executive Directors make available sufficient time to carry out their
duties in an appropriate manner, that atl directors receive sufficient financial and operational information, and that there is
proper debate at Board meetings.

The Board is responsible for the leadership of the Company and the Group, and in discharging that responsibility it makes
decisions objectively and in the best interests of the Group. The Board sets the vision, values and standards for the Group. The
balance of the Board, together with the advice sought from the Executive Cammittea members and the Company's external
advisors, ensures that no one individual has unfettered powers of decision. The Board delegates day-1o-day responsibitity for
the running of the Company to the Chief Executive.

The Chairman is responsible for the effective performance of the Board through a schedule of matters reserved for approvat by
the Board [comprising issues considered most significant to the Group in terms of financial impact and risk] and control of the
Board agenda. The Chairman conducts Board and sharehalder meetings and ensures that all directors are properly briefed.
The Chief Executive, supported by the Chief Financial Officer and Executive Committee, is respansible to the Board for running
the business and implementing strategy. The Board reviews the performance of the Executive Directors and the Group against
agreed budgets and against the Group's objectives, strategy and values.

The Senior Independent Director during the first part of the year [1 January to 27 July 2016) was Chris Satterthwaite. From 1
July 2016, he was replaced by William Eccleshare, wha is also @ mernber of the Remuneration and Nomination Committees.
The Company Secretary is Grainne Brankin, who is atso General Counsel, The Company Secretary assists the Chairman

in ensuring there is efficient communication between all directors, the cornmittees and senior management, as well as

the protessional development of directors. Independent advisors including lawyers, remuneration specialists and external
auditors are available to advise the Non-Executive Directors at the Company's expense. All of the Non-Executive Directors
are independent. Committee meetings are held independently of Board meetings and invitations to attend are extended by
the Committee Chairman to other directors, the Group's advisors and management as appropriate, The terms of reference
of the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee, including their roles and the authority
delegated to them by the Board., are available on request from the Company Secretary and will be available at the AGM.
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Board meetings

During the year, the membership of the Board and of each committee was as follows:

Board Role Audit Committee Remuneration Nomination
Committee Committee
Ronald Sandler . .
[appointed 13 May 2015 Chairman Member Mermber Chairman
Christopher Satterthwaite . .
. - M
Iresigned 27 July 2016} Senior Independent Oirector ember Member
Willam Eccleshare . .

. - M
(appointed 1 July 2016l Senior Independent Director Member ember
Robert Boyle Non-Executive Director Chairman Member -
Rebecca Miskin Non-Executive Oirector Member Chairman Member
Andria Vidler® Chief Executive - - -

Swagatam Mukerji

fappointed 1 Qctober 2016] Chief Financial Officer - - -

Mark Kerswell

[resigned 29 July 2016) Group Finance Director - - -

The number of scheduled full Board meetings and cemmittee meetings during the year along with attendance of Birectors
was as follows:

Board Audit Remuneration Nomination
Committee Commitiee Committee
Number of meetings held: " 5 2 3
Meetings  Meetings | Meetings Meetings | Meetings Meetings | Meetings  Meetings
attended eligibleto | attended eligibleto | attended eligibleto | attended eligible to
attend attend attend attend
Ronald Sandler
lappointed 13 May 2015) " " 5 3 2 2 3 3
Christopher Satterthwaite
[resigned 27 July 2014] 4 6 ) i ! 2 ! 1
William Eccleshare
. - - 1
{appaointed 1 July 2014) 6 6 ! ! !
Robert Boyle 1 1 5 5 2 2 - -
Rebecca Miskin 1% 1 5 5 2 2 3 3
Andria Vidler 1" 11 - - - - - -
Swagatam Muker;ji 3 3 ) 3 _ . R R
[appecinted 1 October 2016}
Mark Kerswell 6 & . B _ - - .
{resigned 29 suly 2014]

8 Andria Vidler's married surname is Gibb and she appears as Andria Gibb an some records kept by Comparies House.

38



If a Director is unable to altend 3 meeting he or she is provided with the same level of information as the other directors in
advance of the meeting and given the oppartunity to express views, which will then be shared at the meeting.

in addition to the key items identified for discussion by the Committees above, the Board discussed the following matters at
the Board meetings during the year:

+ Review of financial performance against budget and prior year:

*» Review of Group strategy and objectives for the Executive Directors;

* Review and approval of budgets;

* Review of Group key performance indicators;

= Review of acquisition largets;

« Approval of financial reports and communication to shareholders and investors; and

= Approval of the Group’s internal control policy, including a robust assessment of the principal risks and corporate
gavernance environment.

Board assessment and Directars’ perfarmance evaluation

The Board undertakes a format evaluation of its own perfarmance and that of its committees and individual directors.
Individual evaluation aims to show whether each director continues to contribute effectively and to dennonstrate commitment
to the role lincluding commitment of time for Board and committee meetings and other duties), Evaluations are undertaken
annually by self-assessment and the Chairman'’s performance is also evaluated by the other Non-Executive Directors at a
separate meeting far this purpose each year. (n addition the Chief Executive is subject to an annual performance review with
the Chairman. New directors receive an induction programme and all the directors are encouraged to undertake continuous
professional development programmes as appropriate. The Group oftered training presentations in relation to directors’ duties
to the Board during 2014 and maintains insurance cover in respect of legal action against its directors,

Management structure

The Board delegates the day-to-day running of the Company to the Executive Directors, wha in turn share the operational
running of the Group with the Executive Committee. Throughout the year, the Executive Commitlee was the primary body
implementing operational management across the Group. The role of the Executive Committee is to review:

* Financial performance and budget [at operational level);

+ Human capital management;

« Operational efficiency and developments lincluding Group T, procurement and facilities],
+ Product development;

* Market development;

+ Business planning:

* Acquisition needs;

* Internal and external communications; and

= Business translormation and change management.

The biographies of the members of the Executive Committee are set aut on pages 31 to 32. Suppoarting the Executive
Committee are the Portfolio Directors who are respansible for specific market segments and the expert leaders who lead the
teams delivering functional expertise. The focus on our markets and audience enables us to build a deeper understanding of
the commercial opportunities across each market, We know that our customers want ftexible content that works seamlessty
across multiple platforms. By leveraging this market wasight and an understanding of aur customer requirements we are able
to offer a higher value customer proposition. The expert tearmns provide the expertise and scale that atlows us to effectively

and efficiently support the detivery of commercial opporiunities across each market. The creation of these expert teams also
enables us to effectively manage our cost base and to prioritise investrent across the business.

Relations with sharehalders

The Company encouragés meaningful dialogue with all shareholders. Shareholder communication centres primarily on
the publication of annual reports, periodic press releases, investar presentations and trading updates. The Chairman and
Executive Directors are available for discussions with shareholders throughout the year and particularly around the time
of results announcements, The Senior Independent Director is also available should any shareholder wish to draw any
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matters to his attention. The Directors are available for comment throughout the year and at all General Meetings of the
Company. Centaur Media values the views of its shareholders and recognises their interest in the Company's strategy and
performance, Board membership and quality of management. The Group therefore has an active programme to meet and
make presentations to its current and potential shareholders to discuss its objectives. The AGM is used to communicate with
investars and they are encouraged to attend the AGM and to participate in proceedings formally or sharing their views with
Board members informally after the meeting. The Chairmen of the Audit, Remuneration and Nomination Committees are
available to answer guestions. Separate resolutions are proposed on each issue so that they can be given proper consideration
and there is a resolution to approve the annual report and financial statements. The Cormpany counts all proxy votes and
indicates the level of proxies lodged on each resolution, after it has been vated on by a show of hands. All shareholders can
gain access to the annual reparts, trading updates, announcements, press releases and other information about the Company
through the Company's website, www.centaurmedia.com.

Risk assessment

Risks that affect or may affect the business are identified and assessed, and appropriate controls and systems implemented

to ensure that the risk is managed. The Group's risk register is kept by the Company Secretary with the input of the Executive
Committee and is reviewed by the Audit Committee every six months with appropriate mitigation actions also being reported to
and overseen by the Committee, :

The principal risks facing the Group. with associated mitigating controls, are detailed on pages 23 ta 27 within the Strategic
Report.

Ethics

The Group carries out its business in a fair, honest and open manner, ensuring that it complies with alt relevant laws and
regulations. The Company has specific policies on fraud, director conflict, bribery, whistleblowing and slavery and human
trafficking, which are widely distributed and compliance with these policies is monitored. The Board has aversight of the
Group's actions. The HR team ensures that new job opportunities are made available to existing emnployees as well as to
autside applicants and that all employees are able to benefit from training, career developrment and promotion opportunities
where appropriate. The recruitment of new personnel is made without prejudice and the Group believes in equal opportunity
and encourages diversity. The analysis of the Group’s workforce and Board by gender is set out in the Corporate Responsibility
Report on page 29.

Through all our interaction with our customers and partners we ensure that we treat them fairly and openty whilst abiding by
the terms of contracts and relevant law, Equally, we treat our suppliers fairly and do not exploit them or their employees.

Monitoring of controls

The Board has overall respansibility for the effectiveness of the Graup’s systemn of risk management and internal controls and
these are regularly monitored by the Audit Committee.

Details of the activities of the Audit Committee in this financial year can be found in the Audit Committee Report on page 42.
Greenhouse gas emissions

The disclesure in respect of the greenhouse gas emissions of the Group that are attributable to human activity in tonnes of
carbon dioxide is set out in the Corporate Responsibility Report on pages 28 to 29.

Fraud
Whilst the Group cannot guarantee to prevent fraud, an internal control framewaork is in place to reduce the likelihood of fraud

arising. The Group's whistleblowing policy is available to employees on the Company’s intranet, should any employee become
aware of any incidence of fraud.
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Directors’ conflicts

Group and subsidiary directors are required to notify their employing company of all directorships they hold. Annual conflict
of interest disclosures require thern to disclose such directorships or other relationships, which they or a person connected
to therm may hold. These are reviewed by the Board to assess the impact on the Company and whether it would impair the
Group’s abjectives,

Bribery Act 2010

In response to the Bribery Act 2010, the Board performed a risk assessment across the Group and formalised its policy to
prevent bribery. The Baard has in place processes to prevent corruption or unethical behaviour. The policy explains what is
considered a bribe or facilitation payment, which are prohibited, and pravides guidance over the levels of gifts, entertainment
and hospitality that are considered reasonable. Training has been mandatory for those groups of employees identified and

is available as required ta new joiners, During 2017, an online training programme will be made available to all employees.
The Group's policy is communicated to all appropriate third parties. The more rigarous processes around dectaring directors
interests and idenifying potential conflicts have improved the regular monitoring of the Group's policy.

Whistleblowing

The Company is committed to the highest standards of integrity and honesty. Along with other policies which encourage
this behaviour, the Group's whistieblowing policy is available to employees on the Company's intranet. This policy allows ail
ernployees to disclose openly. in confidence or anonymously, any concerns they may have about possible improper practices,
in financial or other matters, An escalation process has been communicated to employees. Any matters raised will be
investigated and resalved. The Audit Committee will be notified of any issues raised through this process and appropriate
action taken. However, no incidents were noted during the year.

Modern Stavery Act 2015

The Company is committed to implementing and enforcing etfective systems and controls te ensure modern slavery is not
taking place anywhere in its business or in any of its supply chains. The Company's stavery and human trafficking statement
for the purposes of section 54 of the Modern Stavery Act 2015 is available on the Company's website,
www.centaurmedia.cam. The Group has in place an anti-slavery and human trafficking policy which has been made available
to emplayees on the Company’s intranet and, from 2017, will be natified to all new jainers. Training has been provided to key
employees and the policy is communicated to suppliers and other third parties where appropriate.

Capital structure
Information on the share capilal structure is included in the Directors’ Report on page 33 to 34.
Approved by the Board of Directors and signed by order of the Board.

—_

Grainne Brankin
Company Secretary
28 March 2017
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= Discussed the report received from the external auditors regarding their audit in respect of the prior year, which included
cormments on significant financial reporting judgements and their findings on internal controls;

* Met with other management personnel including the Head of Credit; and

* Reviewed and discussed with management and the Chief Financial Officer each formal announcement made by the
Group.

The most significant financial reparting judgements considered by the Audit Committee and discussed with the external
auditors during the year were as follows:

= Carrying value of goodwill and intangible assets

The Audit Committee has reviewed management’s assessment of the recoverabilily of the Group’s goodwill and intangible
assets and whether there is a need for any resulting impairment. The recoverable amount of goodwill has been determined
through value-in-use calcutations of each cash-generating unit {CGU'| based on farmally Board approved forecasts for the
first four years of the value-in-use calculation, and applying a terminal growth rate of 2.0%.

Management's assessment of the recoverabitity of the Group’s goodwili and intangible assets resutted in an impairment of
£7.2m being recognised against the goodwill in the Financial Services segment. This was triggered by a sharp downturn in the
outlook for advertising and print in a sectar which is particularly reliant on these sources of income. The Committee has paid
particular attention to the judgements and assumptions used to forecast cash flows, particutarly around revenue and adjusted
EBITDA growth rates. The Committee was satisfied that the forecasts reflect the CGUs’ historical budgeting performance and
that reasonable sensitivities were performed, that the value-in-use calculation reflects managernent's best estimate, and that
the impairment recognised against goodwill of £7.2m is appropriate. As a result the Audit Committee was satisfied with the
carrying value of goodwill and intangible assets in the Group balance sheet.

Further details on goodwill 2nd the impairment testing are included in note 7 to the financial statements.
= Adjusting items

The Audit Committee has challenged management strongly over recent financial reporting periods with regard ta the
presentation of exceptional items and other alternative performance measures. Adjusting items disclosed in the year

include a significant bad debt prowsion in relation to historical trade receivables balances of £1.8m [2015: £nill which is
separately reported |see further discussion belowl. earn-out consideration and amortisation of acquired intangible assets
mainty in retation to the acquisition of Qystercatchers (see below], and exceptional cests arising in retation to restructuring
activities. The Committee notes that the restructuring activities (both staff-related and corporate} arise from specific change
programmes during the year, and that they are material and cowld therefore distort the user's view of the Group's results. The
Committee is satisfied that it is appropriate to present these items as adjusting items on the basis that they assist the user in
assessing the core operating performance of the Group.

The Committee assesses the appropriateness of all alternative performance measures disclosed as adjusting and the impact
these have on the presentation of the Group's results, and is satisfied that they do not inappropriately replace or obscure (FRS
measures.

I

%,

Further details on adjusting items are included in notes 1(b) and 4 to the financial statements,
* Recoverability of trade receivables

As set gut in the Financial Review, a period of disruption arose from the introduction of a new accounting platform during
2015, which materially impacted the subsequent collection of trade receivables. Whilst the overall quantum and ageing

profile of trade receivables has improved significantly during 2014, with the Group returning to strong cash generation, there

is uncertainty regarding the cotlectabdlity of a legacy of remaining aged debt. At 31 December 2014, gross trade receivables
greater than 90 days overdue were £4.1m [2015: £5.0m). During 2016, an additional separately reported charge far the
impairment of trade receivables of £1.8m {2015: £nil} has been recognised over and above the £0.5m [2015: €0.6m] reported

in adjusted operating profit. This additional charge is material in nature and arises frorn specific conditions up to Q2 2014
following the implementation of a new accounting platform, and the charge has therefore been presented as an adjusting item.
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The Committee notes that collectability of trade recervables is a judgemental area. The Committee has reviewed
managemeni’s detailed assessment of the recoverabibity of the trade receivables balance, and the methodology used to
determine the provision required, which includes a range of sensitivities. It is also noted that the changed circumstances in
2016 arising from a new accounting system implemented during 2015 resulted in an increase in the provision over and above
the level historically required, and this additionzl charge has been treated as an adjusting item in operating expenses in the
income statement,

The Committee is pleased that improvements to front-end billing and credit control processes have been made during the
course of the year and the Group continues to make good progress on coliecting current receivables and reducing the amount
of days' sales outstanding ['DSO’|. Both the Audit Committee and the Board have paid close attention to quantum and ageing
of trade receivables throughout the year, reviewed the processes and controls implemented to manage the risk of these issues
recurring, and have received regular reports from management, including the Head of Credit.

The Committee concurs with management’s judgement that the level of provision recorded is adequate, that it is appropriate
to present the additional charge of £1.8mn as an adjusting itern in 2016, and has concluded that appropriate policies and
measures have been and continue to be taken to address legacy system and process related issues.

Further details on trade receivables and the associated provision are shown in notes 15 and 27.
« Acquisition of Oystercatchers

On 30 September 2016, the Group acquired the business and assets of The Oystercatchers LLP, which constitutes a Business
Combination under IFRS 3. The Committee has reviewed the results of the purchase price allocation exercise performed

by management to identify and value intangible assets. The acquisition resulted in an initial consideration of £2.3m, which
has been allocated to fair value adjustments in relation to identified intangible assets [brand and custamer contracts and
relationships| of £1.7m and goodwill relating primarily to employees acquired of £1.2m. Amortisation of the acquired
intangibles was £0.1m during 2014, and was presented as an adjusting item, consistent with the Group's accounting policy.
Further details on adjusting items can be found in notes 1[bl and 4 to the financial statements,

The agreement also includes contingent consideration relating to an earn-out arrangement of up to £1.2m. Since payment

of this consideration is linked to employees remaining in the business up te 31 March 2017, this has been taken through the
statement of comprehensive income. In 2016, charges of £0.6m have been treated as an adjusting item in line with the Groups
accounting policy.

The Committee notes that the amounts involved are material and require judgement, and concurs with the treatment of the
acquisition, including its presentation, in the financial statements.

Further details on the business combination are presented in note 13 to the financial statements.

Going Concern and Viability

The Audit Committee received a report setting out the going concern review undertaken by management which forms the
basis of the Board's gotng concern conclusion. During 2015, the Group agreed a four year £25.0m multi-currency revolving
bank facility. The Committee notes that the negative working capital trends experienced during 2015 were reversed during
the year. There is significant headroom on all of the financial covenants. On this basis the Committee has concluded that the
adoption of the going concern basis is appropriate.

In addition, the Committee has assessed the statement in relation to the longer-term viability of the Group and the Group's
principat risks to viability, including reviewing the period over which the statement is made, and reviewing qualitative and
guantitative analysis and scenario testing prepared by management. The Committee concluded that the statement in relation
to the longer-term viability of the Group in the Strategic Report is appropriate.

Risk Management

The Group's management is responsible for the identification, assessment and management of risk, as well as for designing
and operating the system of internal control. The Audit Committee has worked closely with management and received
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detailed information to assess the effectiveness of infernal financial control and risk assessment and management systems
and report on them to the Board (which retains ullimate responsibility].

Having monitored the Group’s risk management and infernal control system, and having reviewed the effectiveness of material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls, the Audit Committee confirms on behalf of the Board

that it has not identified any significant control failings or weaknesses at any time during the year and to the date of this
repoart. The Cammittee is satisfied that appropriate actions have been taken to address weaknesses in the order lo cash cycle
following the accounting system implermentation during 2015, and that significant improvements in cash collections have been
demonstrated over the year.

Risk of Fraud

The Audit Cormmittee considered the risk of fraudulent financial reporting in the business, and through its review of the
effectiveness of internal controls and reporting from management. has concluded that adequate controls were in place during
the year.

Whistleblewing

The Committee reviewed the Group’s whistleblowing pelicy and is satisfied that this has met FCA rules and good standards of
corporate gevernance, Further details of the whistleblowing policy are set out within the Directors’ Statement on Corporate
Governance on page 41.

Gther matters
Other matters monitored and approved by the Committee following approgriate presentations during the year were:

* Review of Group tax processes. contrel and compliance, and review of clarity of tax reporting in the financial statements;

« Review of risk register;

« Review of updated non-audit services policy to align with the FRC Revised Ethical Standards 2016 and EU Audit
Regulation;

» Overseeirg the external audit tender process; and

» Review of data protection policies and compliance.

Internat Audit

The Committee considered whether it was appropriate to appeint internal auditors and concluded that this is not currently
required given the size of the business, its relatively centralised operations and the risks identified tagether with the mitigating
controls.

External Audit

The Group's external auditors are PricewaterhauseCoopers LLP. The Audit Committee monitors the external audit process
to ensure high standards of quality and effectiveness. This was assessed throughout the year using a number of measures,
including:

» Reviewing the quality and scope of planning of the audit and the level of fees;

+ Manitaring the independence and transparency of the audit; and

= Obtaining feedback frorm management and the Directors on the quality of the audit team, their business understanding
and audit approach, and appraving reappointment.

PwC have been the Company’s external auditor since its incorporation in 2004. During the year, and in light of the
requirements of the new EU audit requlations adopted in the UK, the Committee undertook a formal tender process for the
external audit relating to the year ending 31 December 2017. The tender process resulted in the Committee recormmending lo
the Board that PwC be retained as external auditors. As part of a planned rotation, Julian Jenkins ook on the role of external
audit partner, replacing Philip Stokes.

The Audit Committee considered the independence and objectivity of the external auditors through a careful review of their
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terms of engagement, scope of work and level of fees lwhich are shown in note 3 to the financial statements|. This included
reviewing the nature and extent of non-audit services supplied by the external auditors to the Group, seeking to batance
objectivity and value for money.

In light of new regulations, the Committee reviewed and approved updates to the Group's policy regarding non-audit services
during 2016. The external auditars are excluded from providing any non-audit services that individually, or in aggregate, may
impair the independence of the auditor. Prior approval from the Audit Committee is required for any permitted audit related
or other services, and effective from 1 January 2017 fees for any such services may not exceed 70% of the fee for the external
audit in any given year.

During the year, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP provided non-audit services to the Group in respect of taxation compliance and
advisory. The Board is satisfied that there has been no impairment of their objectivity and independence. Following the update
to the Group's non-audit services policy, tax advisary and compliance services will not be supplied beyond 31 December 2016.
The external auditors report to the Directors and the Audit Committee also confirmed their independence in accordance with
auditing standards.

Self-Assessment

During the period the Audit Committee performed a formal, questionnaire based, self-assessment of the effectiveness of the
Audit Committee with satisfactory results.

Report to the Board

The Beard has requested the Committee to confirm that in its opinion the Board can make the required statement that the
annual repart taken as a whole is fair, balanced and understandable and provides the information necessary for shareholders
to assess the Company's position and perfermance, business model and strategy. The Committee has given this confirmation
on the basis of its review of the whole annual report, underpinned by involvement in the planning for its preparation, review of
the processes to ensure the accuracy of factual content and by assurances from the Remuneration Committee.

Independent auditors
A resolution is to be proposed at the Annual General Meeting for the re-appaintment as auditors of PricewaterhouseCoopers

LLP.

Robert Boyle
Chatrman of the Audit Commitiee
28 March 2017

46



NOMINATION COMMITTEE REPORT
Dear Shareholder,

I am pleased to present the report of the Nomination Committee for the year ended 31 December 2014, This report details the
Committee's ongoing responsibilities and key activities over the period.

The Committee comprised Ron Sandler {Chairman], Chris Satterthwaite {ta 27 July 2014], William Eccleshare (from 1 July
2014] and Rebecca Miskin, ensuring that there is a majority of independent Non-Exacutive Directors on the Committee.

Nominatien Committee Responsibilities
The Committee’s key responsibilities include:

» Reviewing the Board's structure, size and composition;

» Reviewing the cormpesitian of Board Committees;

» Defining the role and competencies required for appointments to the Board;

« [dentifying, nominating and reviewing candidates for appointment to the Board;

= Putting in place plans for succession for the Chairman and other members of the Board, the Chief Executive and the Chief
Financial Otficer; and

» Reviewing the leadership needs of the organisation, both Executive and Non-Executive.

The appointment of directors is a matter for the Board, which considers recommendatiens of the Nomination Committee. The
Committee is responsible for ensuring that the Board and the Board Committees are properly constituted and balanced in
terms of skills, experience and diversity. Qur policy on Board diversily is set out in the Directors’ Report above and during the
year we had two female Board members, comprising 33% of the Beard.

Activities during the year

During the first part of the year, the primary focus of the Committee was to identity and appoint a new Senior Independent
Directar wha would join the Board in greparation for the departure of Chrislopher Satterthwaite after mine years as a Non-
Executive Director of the Group. The Committee was led by Ron Sandler for this purpose and followed a rigorous process that
was approved by the Board and supporied by executive search cansultants. Following a comprehensive short list and interview
exercise, the appointment of William Eccleshare was recommended to the Beard by the Committee and he was confirmed as
a Non-Executive Director as well as Senior Independent Director and member of each of the Remuneration and Nomination
Comrmuttees effective 1 July 2014,

Following Mark Kerswell's resignation as Group Finance Qirector in May 2016, the main activity of the Committee was to
plan for his succession. The search process was approved by the Commuttee ang facilitated by executive search consultants,
In accordance with this process, Swag Mukerji was appointed as tnterim Chief Financial Officer from 29 July 2016. The
Committee recommended, and the Board appraved, Swag's permanent appaintment as Chief Financial Officer and
appointment to the Board of the Company as an Executive Director from 1 Dctober 2016. Neither of the external search
consultancies used in the search process for Wiltiam Eccleshare and Swag Mukerji have any other connection with Centaur
Media.

For the remainder of the year the Committee facused on the responsibidities set out abave, tncluding in particular undertaking
a review of the Board's structure, size and composition, as well as the effectiveness of the Board and its Commuttees.

Ron Sandler
Chairman of the Nomination Cammittee
28 March 2017
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE REPORT
Annual Statement
Dear Shareholder,

On behalf of the Board | am pleased to present to you the Remuneration Report for the year ended 31 December 2016 for
which we will be seeking approval at the Annual General Meeting on 9 May 2017. This is in three parts; this Annual Statement,
a Policy Report and an Annual Report on Remuneration.

Committee Membership

Durtng the year Centaur Media's Remuneration Commuttee comprised myself [Chairman], Ron Sandler, Robert Boyle, Chris
Satterthwaite [to 27 July 2014) and William Eccleshare (from 1 July 2014].

Context for Executive Remuneration at Centaur Media

The Company’s broader remuneration strategies remain unchanged from those autlined in last year's report; we are
cormmitted to simplification, performance-related remuneration and long-term share-based incentives.

During the year, Swag Mukerji was appointed to the Board as Chief Financial Officer from 1 October 2016 {following a period as
interim Chief Financial Officer from 29 July 2016], replacing Mark Kerswelt who received no payments in connection with his
resignation. Swag's remuneration was set in line with our Directors’ Rernuneration Policy and further details are provided in
the Annual Report en Remuneration.

2016 also saw sorme changes to the Executive Cormnmittee which was joined by Linda Smith as Chief Operating Officer, Jane
Turner as Divisionat Managing Director for Marketing and Suki Thempson, one of the Oystercatchers founders. Andrew Evans
and Kathieen Jones left the Group as Divisional Managing Director far Events and Group HR Director respectively and have not
been replaced.

Retention of staff at all levets within the Group continues to be a key focus of the Remuneration Committee, reflecting a priority
of the Executive Committee and the Group in general. In 2016, we adopted a new more progressive performance review
process for employees aimed at impraving our ability to recruit and retain employees and to track employee engagement. We
are also pleased to report that all Centaur employees are paid abeve the National Living Wage introduced on 1 April 2016 for
working people aged 25 and over.

Executive Remuneration

A review of Centaur Media’s executive remuneration was last undertaken in February 2013 by the Committee, and we believe
that aur remuneration palicy, which was last approved by our shareholders in 2014, continues to suppart our business
strategy. We have, however, decided to make some changes to the operation of our policy in respect of bath the annual bonus
and the Long-Term Incentive Plan and we cover this in mare detail below. As usual, we have consulted key shareholders on
significant changes.

Andria Vidler's base salary was increased in Aprit 2016 by 3%, and remains unchanged from that amount, disctosed in last
year's Remuneration Report. There has been no change to Swag Mukerji's base salary since his appointment. No bonuses
will be paid to Andria Vidler or Swag Mukerji for the financial year 2016 as minimum group financial performance criteria were
not fulfilled and ne bonus was paid to Mark Kerswell for the financial year 20146. The targets set in 2014 in respect of Group
revenue and Group adjusted profit before tax have been set out in the Annual Report on Remuneration below. No LTIP or other
share awards to the Executive Directors vested in the year and the Annual Report 6n Remuneration provides details of LTIP
awards granted to Andria Vidler and Mark Kerswell in March 2016, and to Swag Mukerji in October 2016. The LTIP awards
granted to Andria Vidler and Swag Mukerji are due to vest in March and October 2019 respectively and those granted to Mark
Kerswell lapsed upon his resignation,
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Share Schemes

Centaur Media's Long Term Incentive Plan {2016 LTIP'], which was adopted at the AGM in 2014, is the Company’s only
executive share scheme and will be used in March 2017 to grant the 2017 LTIP awards. Swag Mukerji's LTIP awards were
the only awards grantad under the 2016 LTIP during the year as other awards made earlier in the year were made under the
previous [2006) LTIP scheme. There are no plans to adopt any other schemes, meaning there will be no shareholder vote on
share schermes at the 2017 AGM. :

Remuneration and activities for 2017

In accordance with the Equality Act 2010 [Gender Pay Gap Information] Regutations 2017, we are required to publish the
resulls of our first annual gender pay gap analysis on our website by 4 Aprit 2018. To enable us to meet this new requirement,
we will be undertaking an analysis of this data for Centaur employees during 2017.

The Company has plans to implement a cormpany-wide professional qualification training programme during 2017 and this
will enable us to comply with our obligations under the government’s ‘apprenticeship levy’ which will come into legal force in
April 2017 and require larger employers, including the Campany. to pay an additional tax interided to be invested in training and
which can be rebated if qualifying training is offered to employees.

The budgeted average salary increase for annual pay reviews in April 2017 for management and staff across the Group will be
2% [3% in 2016}. This overall amount will be targated primarily at tower earning employees.

The salaries of the Executive Directors and the fees of the Chairman and Non-Executive Directors have been reviewed in 2014
but will not be increased during 2017, consistent with the context of pay reviews for the broader senior management of the
Company.

At the AGM on ¥ May 2017, the Annual Statement and Annual Report on Remuneration will be subject to an advisory vote. The
Directars’ Rernuneration Policy was approved by shareholders st our AGM in 2016 and applies for up to three years from such
appraval. The changes that we are making within the approved policy are all designed to focus the Executive Jirectors on
and to reward them for achieving stretching financial and strategic objectives. They are also designed to reward the Executive
Directors and the wider leadership team for delivering shareholder value in extremely challenging market conditions and
ensure the retention objective of the LTIP.

In addition to adjusted operating profit we have also set 2 number of specific financial and strategic goals. These will account
far the minority of the maximum bonus.

We also beligve that the current market conditions and retention requirements are such that exceptional circumslances exist
and the Committee has decided to enhance the share awards made in 2017 under the 2014 LTIP from 100% to 150% of salary
tor the Chief Executive and 125% of salary on grant to the Chief Financial Officer. The share awards will also be subject to
two additianal measures for each of which a single target has been set. EPS and relative TSR measured against the FTSE
SmallCap (exciuding investment trusts] will continue to be performance measures and each have a 30% weighting. The new
chailenging hurdles are adjusted EBITDA and cumulative free cash flow which reflect the long term plan of the Group. The
targets are disclosed in the Annual Report on Remuneration.

| hope that shareholders will vate in favour of the Directors’ Remuneration Report and | will of course be happy to answer any
questions that shareholders may have before ar at the AGM.

Rebecca Miskin
Chatr of the Remuneration Committep
28 March 2017
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DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION POLICY

Centaur Media's shareholders approved the Directors Remuneration Policy at the 20146 AGM held an 11 May 2016. We have
included an updated version of the Paolicy to provide context for the Annual Report on Remuneration. It has been updated only
to make it easier to follow and to take account of the changes to the Board during 2016, so the substance remains unchanged.
A copy of the Policy approved at the 2016 AGM can be found in the 2015 annual report and at www.centaurmedia.com/finvestors.

Centaur Media recognises the need to attract, retain and incentivise executives with the appropnate skills and talent to
manage and develop the Group's businesses, drive the Group's strategy and deliver shareholder value. The main principles of
the Directors’ Remuneration Policy are:

» To achieve total rernuneration packages that are competitive in the sector within which the Group operates and with the
market in general,

+ To provide an appropriate balance between fixed and vaniable remuneration which rewards high levels of performance;
and

= To incentivise and retain management and to align their inlerests with those of shareholders,

Considerations of Employment Conditions Elsewhere in the Group

The Committee considers the general base salary increases for all ermployees when determining the annual salary increases
for the Executive Directors. Employees have not been consulted in respect of the design of the Group’s Executive Director
Remuneration Policy, althaugh the Committee will keep this approach under review.

Consideration of Shareholder Views

The Committee considers shareholder feedback received in relation to the annual report and AGM each year. This feedback,
plus any additional feedback received during the course of the year is then considered as part of the Company's annual
review of its remuneration policy. In addition, the Committee will seek to engage directly with major shareholders and their
representative bodies should any material changes be made to the Directors’ Remuneration Policy. Details of votes for and
againsl the resolution to approve last year's Remuneration Report are set out i the Annual Report on Remuneration,

Directors’ Remuneration Policy - summary table

The table below sets out the remuneration policy that was approved by shareholders in 2016 and which became formally
effective from the date of the 2016 AGM. The policy adopted in 2014 was consistent with our first remuneration policy
disclosed in the 2014 Annual Report on Remuneration other than in relation to the Centaur Media Long Term Incentive Plan
2006 (2004 LTiP] which reached the end of its 10-year life in 2014, The 2016 LTIP that was approved at the 2016 AGM, provides
that, in exceptional circumstances le.g. recruitiment or retentionl, awards up to 200% of salary may be granted in any financial
year, although the normal maximum award continues to be 100%.

Note that payments may be made under arrangements in place prior to this policy becoming effective (including pension,
other benefits and incentives].

The rermuneration policy offered to employees of the Group will be adapted to reflect locat market practice and seniority.
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Element

Purpose and link to strateqy

Operation

Maximum

Performance targets and
tecovery provisions

Base salary

Annual bonus

Long term incentives

» Reflects the value of the
indivigual and their role

» Reflects skitls and
experience over time

* Provides an appropriate
leve( of basic fixed income
avoiding excessive risk
arising from over reliance on
variable incame

* Reviewed annuatly, normally
effective t April

* Paid in cash on a monthly
basis

* Pensionable

* Takes periodic account
against companies with
simitar characteristics and
sector comparators

» The Committee has not set
a maximum level of salary.
Increases will be set in the
context of salary increases
amongst the wider work
force

* The Committee retains the
discrelion ip make increases
above this level in certain
circumstances, for example,
but not imited to:

* Anincrease in the
individual's scope and
responsibilities

s Alignment to the external
market

® Anincrease to reflect an
individual's performance
and development in the
role, e.g. where a new
appointment is recruited
at a lower salary level
and is awarded stepped
increases

= Not applicable

 Incentivises annual delivery
of financial andg strategic
goals

« Maximum bonus only
payable for achieving
demanding targets

* Targets reviewed annually

* Not pensicnable

* Mandatory deferral of any
honus over 79% of base
salary into shares for 3 years

+ Dividend equivalents may be
payable on deferred share
awards

« 100% of salary

» Normally measured over a
one year performance pertod

» Primarily based on
Group’s annual financial
performance [majority, If
not all)

* Persanal and/for stralegic
objectives (minorityl

* Measures far the following
years will be set out in
the Annual Report on
Remuneration af the
retevant year

* Clgwback provisions apply

= Aligns to main strategic
objectives of delivering profit
growth and shareholder
return

« Annual grant of conditional
awards or nil ¢ast options
granted

» Dwvidend equivalents may
be payabie on shares to the
extent awards vest

+ Awards capped 2t 100% of
salary {200% in exceptional
circumstancesl

* Narmally a three year
performance period

» Performance is based on
financial and/ar share
price based measures {e.g.
relative Total Shareholder
Return and EPS|

« The Committee may alter
the weighting and largets
annually if it determines that
it is appropriate to do s0

s Targets for the following
years will be set out in
the Annual Regart an
Remuyneration

+ Awards vest as follows:
» Threshold performance:

25% of award
* Maximum perfarmance:
100% of award
* Clawback provisions apply
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Element

Purpose and link to strategy

Dperation

Maximum

Performance targets and
recovery provisions

Other benefits Pension

Share ewnership

¢ Provides competitive
retirement benefits

* Provides an oppertunity
tor Executive Girectors to
cantribute to their own
retirement plan

¢ Defined contributions made
to Executive Directors
own pension plans. Cash
supplements may slso be
paid

* Up to 15% of base salary

® Nat applicable

& Aids retention and
recruitment

Executive Directors are
provided with private
medical insurance

Other benetits including
company car allowance may
be provided if considered
appropriate by the
Committee

® There is no maximum. Set al

a level which the Committee
considers is apprepriate

in the context of the
circumstances of the role/
individual and local market
practice

* Not applicable

¢ To pravide alignmenl of
interests between Executive
Directors and shareholders

50% of the net of tax vested
LTIP shares required to be

retained untit the quideline
is met

* 100% of salary

* Not applicable

Notes

1.The Annual Report on Remuneration sets out how the Campany implemented the pol:cy presented above in 2014 and will apply it

in 2017.

2.Not all employees have a bonus epportunity, and below Executive Director level bonus opportunities are generally lower.
Participatian in the LTIP 15 imited to Executive Directors and certain selected sentor management. Other employees are eligible
to participate in the Compaﬁy's all employee share plan. In general, these dilferences arise to ensure remuneration arrangements
are competitive in the market, together with the fack that remuneration of the Executive Directors and senior executives typically
has a greater emphasis on performance related pay. All bonus schemes are discrelionary.

3.The choice of performance metrics applicable to the annual bonus plan reflect the Committee's belief that any incentive
compensatton should be appropriately challenging and primarily tied to financial measures.
4.The TSR and EPS performance conditions applicable to the LTIP were selected by the Committee on the basis that they reward
the delivery of long-term relurns to shareholders and the Group's financial growth, and are consistent with the Company’s

objective of delivering long-term value to sharehaolders.

5 Executive Directors may participate in any all-employee share plan, in line with HMRC limits, and to the extent offered.
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REWARD SCENARIOS

The chart below shows how the compasition of each Executive Director's remuneration package varies at
different levels of performance under the policy set out above, as a percentage of total remuneration oppartunity
and as a total value:

1,600

1.400

1,200

1,000

800

400

400

200

Nates

MiN

TARGET

Andria Vidler
£000s

1,338

900
800
700
400
500
400
300
200
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MAX
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TARGET

Swag Mukerji
€000s

B Lnp
Il Annual Banus

B Fixed Pay

t.Fixed pay consists of salary from 1 April 2017, which is unchanged from 2016. The value of benefits and pension have been estimated

for 2017.

2 Target performance is the tevel of performance required to deliver 50% of the maximum bonus and 25% of the maximum LTIP vaiue

[see below}.

3.Maximum perfarmance would result in 3 maximum bonus payment of 100% of salary and full vesting of the maximum LTIP award

{150% of salary for Andria Vidler and 125% of saiary for Swag Mukerijil.

4.Na share grice appreciation has been assumed,
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Approach to recruitment and promotions

The remuneration package for a new Executive Director would be set in accordance with the terms of the Company's prevailing
approved remuneration policy at the time cf appointment and would take into account the skills and experience of the
individual, the market rate for a candidate of that experience and the importance of securing the relevant indwidual.

On recruitment, satary may [but need not necessarily] be set below the normal market rate, with phased increases as the
executive gains experience. The maximum annual bonus would be no more than 100% of salary and grants under the LTIP
would be imited to a maximum of 100% of salary (200% in exceptional circumstances). In addition, on recruitment the
Company may compensate for amounts foregone from a previous employer lusing Listing Rule 2.4.2 if necessary) taking into
account the quanturn foregone and, as far as reasonably practicable, the extent to which performance conditions apply, the
form of award and the time left to vesting.

Far an internal appointment, any variable pay element awarded in respect of their prior role should be allowed to pay out
according to its terrms, Any other an-going remuneration obligations exsting prior to appointment may continue, provided that
they are put to shareholders for approval at the earliest opportunity.

The Committee may agree that the Company will meet relocation, legal fees or inctdental costs where appropriate.

Executive Director Service Contracts and Loss of Office Payments

The current Executive Directors have service contracts which have a twelve month notice period. In respect of Andria Vidler's
service contract (dated 30 October 2013], at the Board's discretion. a payment in lieu of any unexpired notice may be paid,
comprising an amount for base salary. pension and any accrued holiday entitlement. The amount may be paid in one lump
sum ar in two instalments and mitigation will be applied to the secand instalment. If termination is within six months of a
change of contral, a payment equal to 12 months’ salary, pension and accrued holiday pay is payabte. Where the Company
terminates the contract in any other manner, any damages shall be calculated in accordance with common law principles
including those relating to mitigation of loss. Notwithstanding the above, the Cornpany is entitled to terminate employment
without compensation, damages or payment in lieu of notice in specified circumstances [e.g. serious misconduct).

In respect of Swag Mukerji's service contract [dated 27 Septernber 20146), at the Board's discretion, a payment in lieu of any
unexpired notice may be paid, comprising an amaunt for base satary, pension and any accrued holiday entitlement. The
amount may be paid in one lump sum or in two instalments and mitigation will be applied to the second instalment. If
termination is within six months of a change of control, a payment equal to 12 months’ salary, pension and accrued haliday
pay is payable. This will be reduced to six manths’ salary if the termination date is wathin six months of the commencement
date. Where the Company terminates the contract in any other manner, any damages shall be calculated in accordance with
common law principles including those relating to mitigation of loss. Notwithstanding the above, the Company is entitled to
terminate ernployment without compensation, damages or payment in lieu of natice in specified circumstances {e.g. serious
misconduct).

An annual bonus will nermally be payable for the period of the financial year served, aithough it will be pro-rated and paid

al the normal pay-out date. Any share-based entitlements granted to an Executive Director under the Company's share

ptans will be determined based on the relevant plan rules. However, in certain prescribed circumstances, such as death,
disability, retirament or other circumstances at the discretion of the Committee, ‘good leaver’ status may be applied. For good
leavers, awards will normally vest at the vesting date set out In the relevant award, sukbject to the satisfaction of the relevant
performance canditions at the time, and reduced pro-rata to reflect the propartion of the perfarmance period actuaily served.
However, the Committee has discretion to determine that awards vest at cessation of employment or to dis-apply time pro-
rating.

In addition to the above, outplacement support may be provided and legal fees or any other minor incidental costs which are
considered appropriate may be payable.
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Remuneration Policy for the Chairman and Non-Executive Directors

The Company Chairman's fee is determined by the Remuneration Committee [other than the Company Chairman, if he sits on
the Committee]. The fees for the Non-Executive Oirectors are reviewed by the Board, exciuding the Non-Executive Directors.
The table summarises the key aspecls of the remuneration poticy for the Chairman and Nan-Executive Directars:

E Purpose and link to strategy | Operation Maximum Performance targets &
E recovery provisions
&
(]

Provides fees reflecting « Cash fee normally paid on 2 | There is no prescrided Not applicable

time commitments ang monthly basis maximum annual iee or fee

responsibilities of each role, » Reimbursement of incidental | increase.

in line with those provided by expenses where appropriate | The Committee and Board are

similarty sized companies » Fees are reviewed guided by the general increase

periodically in the Non-Executive market,

but may decide to award a
lower or higher fee increase
to recognise, for examale, an
increase in the scale, scope
or respensibility of the role
or take accaunt of relevant
market movernents,

Non-Executive Directors fees

Letters of Appointment

The Chairman and Non-Executive Directors have letters of appointment with the Campany, which are for an initial three-year
period with an extension for a further three-year period, and provide for a notice period of one manth. All existing Directors
have chosen to submit to annual re-election at each AGM.

First appointed as a director Curre;lt tetter of appointment Current letter of appointment
commencement date expiry date
Ronald Sandler t3 May 2015 13 May 2015 13 May 2021
William Eccteshare ’ 1 Juty 2016 1 duly 2016 Ululy 2019
Rabert Soyle 8 January 2010 8§ danyary 2016 8 January 2019
Rebecca Miskin 13 Janyary 2011 14 January 2017 14 January 20201

+ Rebecca Miskin's previaus letter of appontment commenced on 13 January 2011 and expired on 13 January 2017

Approach to Recruitment

For the appointment of a new Chairman or Non-Executive Director, the fee arrangement would be set in accordance with the
approved remuneration policy in force at that time.
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ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION
Implementation of the Remuneration Policy for the year ending 31 December 2017

A summary of how the Directors’ Remuneration Policy will be applied during the year ending 31 December 2017 is set aut
below.

Base Salary

The Executive Directors salaries will not be increased during 2017, The current and proposed salaries are therefore as
follows:

From 1 April 2017 As at 1 April 2014 % change
Andria Vidler £365,959 £365.95¢ 0%
Swagatam Mukerii £250.000 £250,000* 0%

* Salary an appointment at 1 October 2014

Pension and Benefits

The Cammittee intends that the implementation of its policy in relation to pension and benefits will be in line with the disclosed
policy on page 52 of this report.

Annual Bonus

Ouring 2017 the maximum bonus for Executive Directors will remain at 100% of salary. Performance will be measured against
financial results tprimarily adjusted operating profit?] which will account for the majority of bonus in accordance with sur
remuneration policy and a small number of stretching strategic objectives linked to key corporate goals. These goals will
account for the minority of the maximum banus award. Any annual bonus greater than 75% of basic salary will be awarded in
Centaur Media Plc shares and deferred for three years.

Long-term Incentives

It 1s intended that LTIP awards granted to Executive Directors in March 2017 under the Centaur Media Long Term Incentive
Plan 2016 ['2016 LTIP'), will be on an exceptional basis for the purpose of retention, enhanced to 150% of salary for the Chief
Executive and 125% of salary for the Chiel Financial Officer. The enhancements are key, in the opinion of the Committee,

to retain the Executive Directors and reward them only if they deliver exceptional results in extrernely challenging market
conditions. The share awards will be subject, as for previcus years, to both EPS and relative TSR performance targets. In
addition, two additional hurdles are being introduced and they are adjusted EBITDA? and cumulative free cash fiow (adjusted
vperating cash flow less cash paid for tax, interest and capital expenditure]. Both of these measures, in the opmion of the
Remuneration Committee, will be critical to our abtlity to create long-term value for our shareholders. The structure and the
targets are as follows:

*» 30% of the 2017 LTIP award witl be based on absolute adjusted earnings per share targets. 25% of this part of the award
will vest for a threshold adjusted dituted EPS of 6 7p, increasing pro-rata to 100% vesting for a maximum adjusled diluted
EPS of 10.7p for the year ending 31 December 2019, The EPS target range for these awards has been set in line with the
Company's leng-term business plan.

+ 30% of the 2017 LTIP award will be based on relative total shareholder return [ TSR'| measured against the censtituents
of the FTSE SmallCap (excluding investment trusts]. 25% of this part of the award will vest for median TSR increasing
pro-rata te 100% vesting for upper quartile TSR over the three years ending 31 December 2019, In addition to the TSR
performance condition, the Commitiee will need to be satisfied that the Company’s TSR perfarmance reflects the
undertying financial performance of the Company for this part ot an award to vest.
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* 20% of the 2017 LTIP award will be based on an adjusted EBITDA? hurdle of £20.5m for the year ending 31 December
2019. This part of the award will vest in full only if the hurdle is met or exceeded. The adjusted EBITDA hurdle has been
set in {ine with the Company’s long-term business plan.

 20% of the 2017 LTIP award will be based on a cumulative free cash flow hurdle of £26.1m for the three years ending 31
December 2019, This part of the award will vest in full only if the cumutative free cash flow hurdle bas been met. The
levet of ‘stretch” has been set in line with the Company’s long-term plan.

The Committee is satisfied that these financial targets represent an appropriate stretch on current forecasts.

We have consulted with our largest shareholders on significant changes which are wn ine with our approved policy.

Fees for the Chairman and Non-Executive Directors

The Company Chairman’s fee and those of the Non-Executive Directors are determined as described on page 55. The fees of
the Chairman and the Non-Executive Directars {excluding the Chairman] were reviewed in December 2018, and  is proposed
that the fees wilt not be increased during 2017. The current and proposed fees are as follows:

From 1 April 2017 As at 1 April 2014 % change
Ranald Sandler (Chairman] 125.008 125,000 0%
William Eccleshare 43,775 43,775 0%
Robert Boyle 43775 §3.775 0%
Rebecca Miskin 43.775 43,775 0%

Remuneration Received by Directors for the Year [audited]

Directors remuneration for the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015 was as follows:

Salary and Benefits Pension
fees (€] (£} Bonus (€] (3] Total l£)
Executive
Andria Vidler 2014 363,269 18,631 - 40,705 422.605
2015 351,475 16,056 7.106 41,070 415,707
Swagatam Mukerji {appointed t Octotier 20t4jt 20616 62.500 1670 - 1,616 45,7856
2015 - - . - -
Non-Executive
Ranald Sandler 2018 125,000 B - - 125,600
2015 79,187 - - - 79,167
William Ecclesbare {appointed 1 July 2014} 2016 21,888 - - - 21,888
2015 - - - - -
Raobert Boyle 06 43,456 - - - 43,456
2015 42,500 - - - 42,500
Rebecca Miskin 2016 43,456 - - - 43,456
2015 42,500 - - - 42,500

57



GOVERNANCE

Salary and Benefits Pension
fees €] {€]  Bonus (€] (€1 Total (£)
Fermer Directors
Mark Kerswell resigned 29 July 2016} 2016 150,747 1,864 - 13,754 146,364
2015 242,625 2,634 4,870 24,263 274,392
Christopher Satterthwaite fresigned 27 July 2016) 2016 24,768 - , - 24,768
2015 42,500 - - - 42,500

t Prior to his permanent appointment as Chief Financial Officer on 1 Dctober 2016, Swag Mukerji served as Internim Chief Financial
Ctficer under a ccntract for services, and received fees of £87,000 between 29 June and 30 September 2016. Swag Mukerji's remuneration
on appoiniment as Chiei Financiat Officer comprised a base salary of £250,000, benefits in line with our approved palicy and including a
cash allowance in lieu of a3 pension worth %% of salary less an amount for employer National Insurance Contributions, a bonus maximum
of 100% of salary and an annual award of performance shares under the Long-Term Incentive Plan worth 100% of salary.

Annual Banus for the Year (audited]

The Remuneration Commiittee set performance targets at the start of 2016 in respect of both annual revenue and adjusted
profit before tax, as well as, for the first time, personal and strategic objectives. The personal and strategic objectives
included leadership effectiveness, the communication of the mid-term strategy, and the development and execution of a

new growth strategy for the Group. Although good progress was made in these strategic areas, the financial performance
outturn of £72.5m and £8.6m respectively for 2016 did not reach the minimum threshold level of financial performance set by
the Committee for payment of banuses. These thresholds were £72.6m [Group revenue] and £10.8m [Group PBTA| and the
maxirmum of the ranges set were £79.5m and £11.9m respectively. As a consequence, no bonus was paid to either Andria
Vidier or Swag Mukerji in respect of 2014. This represented 0% of the potential opportunity over the peried from 1 January
2016 to 31 December 2014,

Mark Kerswell who left the Company in 2016 did not receive a bonus for the year ended 31 December 2016.
Scheme Interests Awarded during the Year
The Executive Directors received awards under the LTIP scheme during 20146, Mark Kerswell's awards subseguently

iapsed when he left the Company on 29 July 2016, These awards were in line with the policy table set out in the Directors’
Remuneration Policy and details of these awards are set out below.

Executive LTIP Scheme Award date Number Basis Face value Performance Performance
of shares of awards condition period
under
award
Andria Vidler LTIP 2004 30 March 2014 674,194 100% £355,300 Vesting will be t Janvary 2016
of base determined by to 31 December
salary absolute earnings 2018
per share ['EPS’]
Mark LTIP 2006 30 March 2014 462,049 100% £243,400 in the final year of
Kerswetlt of base the performance
salary period and total
shareholder
Swagatam LTIP 2016 4 Dctober 2016 573,395 100% £250.000 return 'TSR’') aver
Mukerit of base the performance
salary period.
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The LTIP awards were structured as nil cost optians and the quantum of shares awarded was calculated using a share price of
52.7p at 30 March 2016 and 43.6p al 4 October 2016. The performance conditions for these awards are set out below:

Performance condition % of shares under Measurement period Targets % of shares under
award subject to award which will vest
candition
EPS 50% Year ended 31 December  E£PS of 4.5p 25%
2018
EPS of 10.5p or more 100%
Belween 6.5p and 10.5p Straight line basis
between 725% and 100%
TSR against the 50% i tanuary 2014 1o 31 Median 25%
constituents of the FTSE December 2018
SmallCap {excluding -
investment trustsl at 1 Upper quartile 100%

January 2016

Between median and
upper quartile

Straight line basis
belween 25% and 100%

The TSR eternent will only vest if there has been sustained improverment in the Company’s underlying financial performance
gver the performance period.

Details of the Fxecutive Direclors’ awards in Novernber 2013 and March 2015 under the LTIP are detailed in the remuneration
table on page 60.

Andria Vidler purchased 3.767 shares during the period under the Share Incentive Plan. The Company matched these shares
on a 1 for 2 basis in accordance with the Plan rules, resuiting in 1,884 matching shares being awarded in the year.

Board changes and Payments for Loss of Office (audited)

Mark Kerswell (Group Financial Director} and Christopher Satterthwaite [Senior Independent Director) stepped down from the
Board with effect from 29 and 27 July 2016 respectively. No compensalion for loss of office was paid.

Payments to Past Directors [audited)

Consistent with a long-standing arrangement, Graham Sherren, former Chief Executive and Chairman, was paid £3,000 during
the year for advisory services performed.

Directors’ Shareholding and Share Interests (audited)

Share awnership plays a key role in the alignment of pur executives with the interests of shareholders. The Executive Directors
are expected 1o builg up and maintain a shareholding in the Company equal to 100% of salary. Where an executive does not
meet this guideline, they are required to retain at least 50% of the vested shares net of tax under the Company’'s LTIP until the

guidetine is met.

The tables below set out details of Executive Directors outstanding share awards under LTIP schiemes {which witl vest in future
years, subject to performance and continued service]. Under each scheme the exercise price is Enil.
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Executive At Granted Lapsed At31 Dateofaward Performance Exercise Share
December December period peried price on
2015 2016 date of
grant
Andria Vidler 518,182 - - 618,182 08/11/13 01/07/13 - 13/03/17 - 55.0p
3214 12/09/17
493,129 - - 493129 26/03/15 01/81/15 - 26/03/18 - 72.05p
g 25/09/18
- 674,194 - 674,194 3o/03/14 01/01/14- 30/03/19- 52.7p
31/12/18 29/09/19
1,111,311 674,194 - 1,785,505
Swagatam - 573,394 - 573.3%4 24/10/14 01/01/14- 04/10/19- 43.6p
Mukerjl azha 03/04/20
- 573,3% - 973,3%6
Mark Kerswell 436,364 - 1434,384) - 08/11/13 01/07/13 - 13/03/17 - 55.0p
31/12n6 12/09/17
337.959 - 1337959} - 28/03/15 01/01/15 - 26/03/18 - 72.05p
3112117 25/09/18
- 462,049 [462,049] - 30/03/16 01/01/16- 30/03/19- 52.7p
31/12/18 29/09/19

774,323 462,049 11,236,372 -

The tabie below sets out the number of shares held or potentially held by Qirectors [including their connected persons where
relevant].

Interests in ordinary shares Shareholding guideline Interests in share Total
achieved? schemes
Executive 31 December 2015 31 December LTIP
2016+
Andria Vidler 138,574 153,930 No 1,785,505 1,939,435
Swagatam Mukerij - 30,660 No 573,39 603,394
Mark Kerswell 333,108 333,108 No - 333,108
Non-Executive
Ronald Sandler - 45,000 N/A - 45,000
William Eccleshare - - NfA - -
Robert Boyle 117.037 117,037 N/A - 117,037
Rebecra Miskin 14,800 14,800 N/A - 14,800
Christogher 95,942 95,947 N/A - 95,942

Satterthwaite

* Or date of resignation it earlier
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Performance Graph

The graph telow shows the total shareholder return { TSR'] of Centaur Media Plc compared to the performance of the FTSE
SmallCap lexcluding Investment Trusts] over the last seven and a half years. This comparator has been chosen on the basis
that it is the group against which performance for the purposes of share awards made under the Long-Term Incentive Plan
is assessed. Owing to the change to the financial year end, there was ne financial year ended 30 June 2014 and, instead TSR
performance for the 18 months ended 31 December 2014 is shown.

The graph shows the value, by 31 December 2016, of £100 invested in Centaur Media Plc on 1 July 2009 compared with

the value of £300 invested in the FTSE SmallCap Index [excluding Investment Trusts). The other points plotted represent
intervening financial period ends.

Total Shareholder Return

Source: Thompson Reuters Datastream

300
250

200

VALUE

150

100

50

% % % "}b "}b u}'o
-~ ~ ~l
B % % % % %

] . .

-~
2 % 2 + 5 2

—— Centaur Media PLC —&— FTSE SmallCap [Excluding lnvestment Trusts]

é1



GOVERNANCE

History of Remunaration for the CEQ

The table below sets out the Chief Executive single figure total remuneration over the past seven and a half years.

Period ending Chief Executive Total remuneration Annual bonus Long-term incentives
(% of max| (% of max)

31 December 2014 Andria Vidler £422 505 0 0

31 December 2015 Andria Vidler €415,707 2 N/A

31 Decernber 2014 18 Andria Vidler (from 14 £670,077 54 N/A

month period) November 2013)

30 June 2013 Geof! Witmot £514,920 0 0

30 June 2012 Geofi Wilmaot £363.3211 7 0

30 June 2011 Geoff Witmot £548,673 58 0

30 June 2010 Geoff Wilmot £450,180 45 0

t Excludes £384,704 termination and cantractual notice payment as detaited in 30 June 2013 annual report and financial statements.

Change in the Chief Executive’s Remuneration

The table below shaws the movement in salary, benefits and annual bonus for the Chief Executive between the current and
previous financial year compared to all employees of the Company.

Element of remuneration % change
Salary Chief Executive 3%
Employees 4%
Benefits Chief Executive 10%
Employees 1%
Annual bonus Chief Execytive (1001%
Employees (39)%

Mo change was made to the value of the Chief Executive’s benefits in 2016. The percentage change during 2016 arises from
the comparison of value for a full year of a car-related benefit in 2016] with a part-year in 2015, The percentage change of
{100%] is the result of the zero bonus in 2014.

Relative importance on the Spend on Pay

The fotlowing table sets out the percentage change in distributions to shareholders and employee remuneration costs.

2016 2015 % Change
Employee remuneration costs £€29.7m €36.2m (2]%
Dividends paid and share repurchases £4.5m £4.0m 13%

52



External Directorships

The Executive Direciors did not hold any external directorships in the year.

The Remuneration Committee

The Rernuneration Committee is responsible for monitering, reviewing and making recommendations to the Board at least
annually on the broad policy far the remuneration of the Executive Directors, the Chairman and Company Secretary. it alsa
determines their individual remuneration packages, including pension arrangements, bonuses and all incentive schemes
and the determination of targets for any performance-related pay schemes operated by the Group. The Committee asks
the Board, when appropriate, to seek shareholder approval for any long-term incentive arrangements, bonuses, incentive
payments and any compensation payments and share option entitlernents. In addition, the Cormmittee monitors and
recommends the level and structure of remuneration for senior management.

During the year, the Committee consisted of the following Non~Executive Directors: Rebecca Miskin (Chair|, Robert Boyle,
Chris Satterthwaite (to 27 July 2016}, William Eccleshare {from 1 July 2016} and Ron Sandler. The Remuneration Cormmittee
meets at least twice each year and met twice formally as well as holding a workshop during 2016. Minutes of the Committee
are circulated to the Board once they have been approved by the Committee.

External Advisors

The Remuneration Committee has access to independent advice where it considers it appropriate. During the year, the
Remuneration Committee sought advice retating to executive remuneration from New Bridge Street [NBS'], part of Aon Plc
and from FIT Remuneration Consultants | FIT'), both of whom were appointed by the Remuneration Committee,

The Committee is satisfied that the advice received from NBS and from FIT in relation to executive remuneration matters
during the year under review was objective and independent. Both NBS and FIT are members of the Remuneration
Consultants Group and abide by the Remuneration Consultants Group Code of Conduct. The fees were charged on a time
spent basis and amounted to £12,253 to NBS and £2,260 to FIT.

Statement of Shareholder Voting

At last year's AGM, the Directors’ Remuneration Policy and the Directors’ Remuneration Report received the following votes
from shareholders:

Number of votes for Number of votes against

{and percentage {and percentage Nuntber of vatas Number of vates
Resolution of votes cast) of votes cast) cast withheld
Approval of Directors 107,205,929 (99.91%) 91,798 (0.09%] 107.297,727 12.250
Rermuneration Policy
Approval of Directers 167,256,209 (100.00%) 1,542 (0.00%} 107,257,751 52,226

Remuneration Report

Appraval
The Board of Directors has approved this Remuneration Committee Repert. including both the Policy and Annual
Remuncration Regort.

Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors
Rebecca Miskin

Chair of the Remuneration Commiitee
28 March 2017
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES

The Directors are responsible for preparing the annual report, including the Remuneration Committee Report and the financial
statements in accordance with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the Directors

have prepared the Group and Company financial statements in accordance with International Financiat Reporting Standards
'IFRSs'| as adopted by the Eurgpean Union. Under company law the Directors must not approve the financial statements
unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and the Company and of the profit
or loss of the Group for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the Directors are required to:

+ Select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,

* Make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

 State whether applicable IFRSs as adopted by the European Union have been followed, subject ta any material departures
disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

« Prepare the financial staterments on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Group and
Company will continue in business.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient te show and explain the Company's
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Campany and the Group and
enable them to ensure that the financial statements and the Remuneration Cornmittee Report comply with the Companies
Act 2006 and, as regards the Group financial statements, Article 4 of the IAS Requtation. They are alse responsible for
safequarding the assets of the Company and the Group and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection
of fraud and other irregularities.

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the Company's website. Legistation in the United Kingdom
governing the preparation and dissernination of financtal statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

The Birectors cansider that the annual report and financial statements, taken as a whole, is fair, balanced and understandable
and provides the information necessary for shareholders to assess a company’s position and performance, business model
and strategy.

Each of the Direciors, whose names and functions are listed in the Board of Birectors summary on page 30, confirms that, to
the best of their knowledge:

* The Group and Company financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU,
give 3 true and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial position and loss of the Group; and

* The Operational Review and Financial Review, contained in the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report contained in
the Governance Report, include 2 fair review of the development and performance of the business and the position of the
Group, together with a description of the principal risks that it faces.

<

By order of the Board

=

Grainne Brankin
Company Secretary
28 March 2017
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF CENTAUR MEDIA PLC
Report on the financial statements
OUR OPINION
In our opinion:
= Centaur Media Plc's Group financial staternents and Company financial statements (the “financial statemnents”} give a
true and fair view of the state of the Group’'s and of the Company's affairs as at 31 December 2014 and of the Group's loss

and the Group's and the Company's cash Flows for the year then ended;

 the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with International Financiat Reporting
Standards ["IFRSs’] as adopted by the European Union;

e the Company financial statements have been praperly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European
Union and as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006, and

« the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and, as
regards the Group financial statements, Article 4 of the |AS Regulation.
WHAT WE HAVE AUDITED
The financial statements, included within the Annual Repart, comprise:
¢ the Consolidated and Company Statements of Financial Position as at 31 December 2076;
« the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income for the year then ended;
+ the Consolidated and Company Cash Flow Statements for the year then ended;
= the Consolidated and Company Statements of Changes in Equity for the year then ended; and

« the notes to the financial statements, which include 3 surmmary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
infarmation.

Certain required disclosures have been presented elsewhere in the Annual Report, rather than in the notes to the financial
statements. These are cross-referenced from the financial statements and are identified as audited.

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the financial statements is IFRSs as adopted
by the European Union and, as regards the Company financial statements, as applied in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act 2006, and applicable law.
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AREA OF FOCUS - GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT

Refer to page 43 [Audit Committee Report], page 95 [Key accounting assumptions, estimates and judgernents] and page 108
(Note 9.

Determining if an impairment charge is required for Goodwill and Intangible assets involves significant judgements about the
future results and cash flows of the business, including forecast growth in future revenues and operating profit margins, as
well as determining an appropriate discount factar and long term growth rate.

Management used a Value in Use model to compute the present value of forecast future cash flows for each segment which
was then compared to the carrying value of the net assets of each segment [including Goodwill and Intangible assels} to
determine if there was an impairment.

Management aggregates cash generating units ' CGUs'| into segments which represent the level at which the cash flows of
the businesses {and Goodwill) are monitored and therefore this 1s the level at which management performs its impairment
assessment.

Market conditions remain challenging and performance has varied compared to expectations in certain parts of the business.
This has been particutarly the case within the Financial Services segment. Management's impairment assessment showed a
£7.2 million impairment of Goodwill in this segment which has been recognised in the financial statements.

We therefore focused on this area and the judgements applied to future forecasts to ensure these appropriately factored in
historical vanances and uncertain market conditions. We also focused on the amount of the impairment charge recognised
and checked that approgriate sensitivity disclosures were provided in the financial statements to explain any additional
impairment amaunts which would arise from reasonably possible changes to the model's key assumptions.

How our audit addressed the area of focus

We checked and confirmed that the allocation of CGUs to segments was consistent with internal managernent reporting and
the prior year.

We avaluated the directors future cash flow forecasts for each segment, and the proceass by which they ware drawn up, Where
historical variances o budget had been unfavourable, management applied a ‘reduction factor” to the latest Baard forecast

to reflect the risk of forecasting inaccuracy and any stretch in the Board forecast. The resulting forecast after application of
management's reduction factor was used in the Value in Use model.

We checked the approval of the Board's forecast to 2020 and that management’s additional reduction factor to this was
reasonably aigned with the historical levels of budgeting inaccuracy.

We considered:

« the directors’ key assumptions including revenue and EBITDA growth rates used in the cash flow forecasts by comparing
them to historical results, and economic and ingustry farecasts;

« the discount rate by assessing the cost of capital for the Group and camparable organisations; and

» the long term growth rale by camparing management’s rate to forecast long term GOP growth in the UK and industry
growth reports and then sensitising management's Value ia Use model for reductions in this rate.

We found that the key assumptions were reasonable and the discount and leng term growth rates were within our expected
range. With regard to the above procedures, including the reflection of historical levels of variance from budget into the future
forecasts, we determined that the inputs to the base case Value in Use model were appropriate. This provided sufficient
evidence for the impairment charge in the Financial Services segment, All other segments showed headroom above the
carrying value of the net assets including Goodwill.

We evaluated the results and disclosure of the sensitivity analyses performed by management {as set out in Note 9]. As the
carrying value of the Financial Services segment was impaired down to the Value in Use there was no further headroom,
and any unfavourable change in assumptions used in the additional sensitivities showed further impairments to Goodwill.
tn addition, sensitivity disclosures have been made for the Professionat segment which was impaired in the prior year and
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therefore continues te have a lower level of headroom. We determined the results of these sensitivities are appropriately
disclosed and the sensitivities present a fair reflection of reasonably possible changes to assumptions used in the Value in
Use model. For the other segments, the sensitivities showed remaining headroom in all scenarios. This included goodwilt
attributable to the Oystercatchers acquisition which was included in the impairment testing.

AREA OF FOCUS - RECOVERABILITY OF TRADE RECEIVABLES

Refer to page 43 [Audit Committee Report], page 96 {Key accounting assumptions, estimates and judgementsi and page 127
(Naote 27).

As set out in the Financial Review on page 19 and the Audit Committee Report on page 43, at the year end a significant portign
of older invoices remain uncollected. Throughout 2016 management has actively focussed on pursuing these amounts. At 31
December 2016, trade receivables, inclusive of VAT, over 90 days past due date was £4,1 million [2015: £5.0 million} and the
associated provision for impairment of trade receivables was £2.5 million [2015: €0.9 million).

The determination of whether trade receivables are collectable involves managerment judgement, Accordingly, with regard to
the amount of aged trade receivables at the year end, we considered whether management’s judgements were appropriate
and that this estimate reflected the latest available evidence.

We alse considered the application of management’s palicy for providing against aged trade receivables, including the ordinary
provisioning policy and the approach taken in 2014 specifically for the increased level of aged receivables. Management
recognise provisions for impairment of trade receivables based on specific known facts or circumstances surrounding the
invaice or customers’ abilities to pay. For example, certain trade receivables may be being pursued through legal avenues and
these are mainly provided against. Custormers on direct debit payment plans or where deferred income exists are also factors
taken into account in determining if a provision for impairment is required.

How our audit addressed the area of focus
We were able to confirm that the policy for prowding against trade receivables had been implemented consislently year on year.
For the year end balance, we tested:

+ the ageing of trade receivables and that this was accurately determined;

« the accuracy of management's computations of previsions reflecting the history of bad debt write-offs. This included
checking that amounts exctuded from this camputation were appropriate, such as amounts invoiced in advance of
exhibitions {where there is an assaciated liability hetd within deferred incomel; and

« the levels of post year end cash received and allocated against aged trade receivables at the year end.

We considered any residual exposure against the circumstances giving rise to the ageing, the ongoing actions taken and in
place to collect the aged debt [and what has been achieved to date]. together with the history of write-offs in the business. As
noted, determining an appropriate level of provision at the year end is a judgemental area and there could therefore be a range
of possibte outcomes. We concluded that the evidence obtained supports the averall level of provision at the year end of £2.7
millien and is within our acceptable range.

We also considered the appropriateness of disclosures made with regard to the additional provision recognised this year.
We confirmed the basis and reason for the incrementai provision was explained, that this was reflective of 2016 specific
circumstances and actions, and that the amount separately reported related only to this additional portion,
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AREA OF FOCUS - CLASSIFICATION AND MEASUREMENT OF ADJUSTING ITEMS

Refer to page 43 {Audit Committee Report], page 96 [Key accaunting assumptions, estimates and judgementsj and page 101
[Note 4l.

An Alternative Performance Measure is presented in a separate column on the face of the Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income, This adjusts statutory profit for “exceptional items’ and a number of other adjusting items. This
Alternative Performance Measure is considered by management as relevant to the assessment of the Group’s performance in
2016

The Group’s accounting policy is to separate items of income and expenses as exceptional items where the nature of the item,
or its size, is likely to be material and non-recurring in nature so as to provide a better understanding of the results of the
operations of the Group.

The axceptionat iterns related mainly to redundancy costs of £0.9 millian as part of the Group's ongoing restructuring.
Determining whether such items satisfy the Group’s policy for exceptional items requires a degree of management judgement
and so we focused on the application of poticy in this area and the appropriateness of disclosures.

Other adjusting items include amortisation charges on acquired intangible assets of £2.3 million, the annual share based
gayments charge lcredit of €0.1 multion for 2014], the goodwill impairment charge and the additional, separately reported
charge for impairment of Trade Recewabtes. The former two itens have been historically separated from underlying profit
mainly due to their non-cash nature and this is consistent with the presentation used by a number of other industry peers. Due
ta their significance, the incremental impairment charge of trade receivables and the goodwill impairment charge have also
been separately reported as management believe these are useful and relevant to users for an alternative assessment of the
Group's results.

How our audit addressed the area of focus

We considered whether the exceptional items recarded were non-recurring in nature and recagnised and presented in
accordance with the Group’s disclosed accounting pelicy.

Strategic costs include professional fees associated with the group-wide restruciunng programme and prospective acquisition
activities. The redundancy costs include payments made to certain members of semor management as part of the Group's
restructuring of segment reporting lines and roles. We iested the accuracy and completeness of the costs incurred, including
checking the actual payments made Lo those employees. We also checked that these positions were removed from the Group's
structure permanently, checking that these costs did not just relate to replacing specific individuals.

Redundancy costs hat been incurred in both the current year and in prior years so we challenged management as to whether
such costs were therefore non-recurning in nature. Management's view was that whilst these charges have recurred in 2014,
they have directly arisen as part of a significant restructuring ‘transformation programme’ which is ongoing as set gut in
further detail in the Chairman's Statement on page 5 and the Chief Executive’s Report on page 7. Following completion of the
restructuring these charges will not recur. Given the scate of this restructuring programme, and that only the redundancy
costs specific to this are being separated, we accepted this treatment for the current year.

In respect of other adjusting itamns, including the amortisation of acquired intangibles and the share based payments charge,
we checked management's computations of the costs. Our work on Goodwill impairment and the additional. separately
reported impairment of trade receivables is set out separately in this report. As part of this we considered whether adequate
explanation was provided of the basis for separately reporting these items.

We also focussed on ensuring that the explanation of Alternative Performance Measures was appropriate, including that the
adjusting items were explained, reconciled o statutory measures, and ace not given undue prominence. From the evidence
obtained, we concurred with management’s assessment to classify and disclose these items as separately reported adjusting
items, in line with the disclosed accounting policy.
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AREA OF FOCUS - ACQUISITION ACCOUNTING FOR OYSTERCATCHERS

Refer to page 44 (Audit Committee Report), page 95 {Key accounting assumptions, estimates and judgements] and page 113
(Note 13).

The Group acquired the business and assets of The Oystercatchers LLP an 30 Septernber 2016 for consideration of £2.3
million. Accounting for the acquisition required a fair value exercise to assess the assets and liabilities acquired, including
valuing any separately identifiable intangible assets and Goodwill. The valuation of intangibles requires management to make
estimates.

Management performed an in-house valuation exercise ta quantify the fair vatues of identified intangible assets. Management
identified £1.1 million of intangible assets in respect of Oystercatchers’ customer relationships, a specific contract and the
brand.

The fair value of these intangible assets was judgemental as it required management assumptions including on customer
attrition and growth rates for existing customer revenues. The determination of the discount rate applied to the fair value
madels was also judgemental as it required the calculation of a risk adjusted weighted average cost of capital.

How our audit addressed the area of focus

We assessed the completeness of intangible assets identified by management against our own expectations, formed
from review of the acquisition agreements, our independent understanding of the business acquired and meeting with its
management, and a review of disclosures surrounding the rationale for the acquisition. We concluded that the intangtble
assets identified were appropriate and there were no material omissions.

in retation to the quantum of intangible assets, we examined forecasts and historical information supporting assumgptions
made, and that determined uselul Lives were within an acceptable range. From our procedures, we concluded that the
identified intangible assets’ arising values were within a materially reasonable range.

In forming this conclusion, we considered the level of resulting goodwill as a proportion of the total consideration paid and
benchmaiked this against simitar transactions in the market. We discussed the results of this analysis with management
and the Audit Committee and and ensured appropriate disclosure was included within the Annual Report which describes the
nature of the arising goodwill.

Based on the work performed in this area, we have determined that the relevant intangible assets and goodwill had been
identified and valued appropriately.

In addition, we verified that the basis for allocating the acquired goodwill and intangible assets to the Marketing segment is
reasanable and consistent with internal management reporting.

HOW WE TAILORED THE AUDIT SCOPE
We tailored the scope of our audit to ensure that we performed enough work to be able to give an opinion on the financial
statements as a whole, taking into account the geographic structure aof the Group. the accounting processes and controls, and

the industry in which the Group operates.

The Group operates a centralised accounting function in the UK that is responsible for processing transactions for all entities
within the Group and for consolidated financial reporting.

The whole Group was audited by the UK audit team at the centralised accounting function which is based in London.
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MATERIALITY

The scope of our audit was influenced by our application of materiality. We set certain quantitative threshelds for materiality.
These. together with qualitative considerations, helped us to determine the scope of our audit and the nature, timing and
extent of our audit procedures on the individual financial statement line items and disclosures and in evaluating the effect of

misstatements, both individually and on the financial statements as a whole.

Based on our professional judgement, we determined materiality for the financial statements as a whole as follows:

Overall Group materiality €0.4 miltion [2015: £0.5 million].

How we determined it 5% of Adjusted profil before tax [as presented on the face of the Consolidated Statement of
Caomprehensive Incomel].

Rationale for benchmark applied We believe that Adjusted profit before fax prowides us with a consistent period on period
basis for determining materiality and eliminates the disproporticnate eftect of a discrete
number al items on the benchmark, which was also used last year.

We agreed with the Avdit Committee that we would report to them misstatements identified during our audit above £21,500
[2015: £24,500] as well as misstatements below that amount that, in our view, warranted reporting for qualitative reasons.

GOING CONCERN

Under the Listing Rules we are required to review the Directors’ Statement, set out on page page 35, in retation to going
concern. We have nothing to report having performed our review.

Under ISAs (UK & Ireland] we are required to report ta you if we have anything material to add or to draw attentian to in
relztion to the Directors’ Statement about whether they considered it appropriate to adopt the going concern basis in preparing
the financial statements. We have nothing material to add or to draw attention to.

As noted in the directors’ statement, the Oirectors have concluded that it is appropriate 1o adopt the going concern basis in

preparing the financial statements. The going concern basis presumes that the Group and Company have adequate resources
to remain in operation, and that the Directors intend them to do so, for at least one year from the date the financial staternents
were signed. As part of our audit we have conctuded that the Directors’ use of the going concern basis is appropriate. However,

because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, these statements are not a quarantee as to the Group's and
Company's ability to continue as a going concern.

OTHER REQUIRED REPORTING

CONSISTENCY OF OTHER INFORMATION AND COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE REQUIREMENTS
Companies Act 2006 reporting

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

s the information given in the Strategic Report and the Oirectors’ Report for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared is consistent with the finanoal statements; and

« the Strategic Report and the Directars’ Report have been prepared in accardance with applicable legal requiremients.
In addition, in light of the knowledge and understanding of the Group, the Company and their environment obtained in the

course of the audit, we are required to report it we have identified any material misstatements in the Strategic Report and the
Directors’ Report. We have nothing to report in this respect.
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In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

* the information given in the Corporate Governance Statement set out pages 40 to 41 with respect to internal control and
risk management systems and about share capital structures is consistent with the financial statements and has been
prepared in accordance with applicable tegal requirements; and

« the information given in the Corporate Governance Staternent set out pages 37 to 41 with respect to the Company's
corporate governance code and practices and about its administrative, management and supervisory bodies complies
with rules 7.2.2. 7.2.3 and 7.2.7 of the Disclosure Guidance and Transparency Rules sourcebook of the Financial Conduct
Authority.

In addition, in tight of the knowledge and understanding of the Group, the Company and their environment obtained in the
course of the audit, we are required to report if we have identified any material misstatements in the information referred to
above in the Corporate Governance Statement. We have nothing to report in this respect.

ISAs {UK & Ireland] reporting

Under 1SAs {UK & Ireland] we are required to report to you if, in our apinian:

= information in the Annual Report is: We have no exceptions to report.
- materially inconsistent with the information in the audited financial statements; or
- apparently materially incarrect based on, or materially inconsistent with, our knowledge of the
Group and Company acquired in the course of performing our audi; or
- otherwise misleading.

the statement given by the directars on page 44, in accordance with provision C.1.1 of the UK We have no exceptions to report.
Corparate Governance Code [the "Code™], that they consider the Annual Report taken as a whole
to be lair, balanced and understandable and provides the information necessary for members

to assess the Group's and Cempany’s position and performance, business model and strategy is
materially inconsistent with our knowtedge of the Group and Company acquired in the course of
performing our audit.

the section of the Annual Report on pages 42 to 46, as required by provision £.3.8 of the Code, We have no exceptions {o report.
describing the work of the Audit Cammittee does nat appropriately address malters communmnicat-
ed by us to the Audit Committee.

THE DIRECTORS' ASSESSMENT OF THE PROSPECTS OF THE GROUP AND OF THE PRINCIPAL RISKS THAT WOULD
THREATEN THE SOLVENCY OR LIQUIDITY OF THE GROUP

Under ISAs (UK & Ireland) we are required to report to you if we have anything material to add or to draw attention to in
relation to:

= the Directors’ confirmation on page 23 of the Annual Repart, in accordance with provision C.2.1 of | We have nathing material to add
the Code, that they have carried cut a robust assessment of the principal risks facing the Group, [ or to draw attention to.
including those that would threaten its business model, future performance, solvency or liguidity.

s the disclosures in the Annual Report that describe those risks and explain how they are being We have nothing material to add
managed or mitigated. or le draw altention to.

= the Directors explanation on pages 26 and 27 of the Annual Report, in accordance with provision | We have nothing material to add
C.2.2 of the Code, as to hew they have assessed the prospects of the Group, aver what period or lo draw attention to.
they have done so and why they cansider that period to be appropriate, and their statement as to
whether they have a reasonahle expeclation that the Group will be able ta continue in gperation
and meet tts Liabilities as they fall due over the period of their assessment, including any related
disclosures drawing attention (o any necessary qualificalions or assumptions.

Under the Listing Rules we are required to review the Qirectors’ statement that they have carried out a robust assessment of the principat
risks facing the Group and the Directors’ statement in relation to the longer-term wiability of the Group. Our review was substantially less in
scope than an audit and only consisted of making inguiries and cansidering the directars process supporting therr statements, checking that
the statements are in alignment with the relevant previsions of the Code: and considering whether the statements are cansistent with the
knowledge acquired by us in the caurse of performing cur audit. We have nathing to report having performed our review,
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ADEQUACY DF ACCOUNTING RECORDS AND INFORMATION AND EXPLANATIONS RECEIVED
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:
» we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

+ adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Company, or returns adequate for gur audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us, er

« the Company financial statements and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Committee Report to be audited are not in
agreement with the accounting records and returns.

We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.

DIRECTORS REMUNERATION
Directors’ Remuneration Cemmittee Report - Companies Act 2006 opinion

In our opinion, the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Committee Report to be audited has been properly prepared in
accordance with the Companies Act 2006.

Other Companies Act 2006 reporting

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our apinion, certain disclosures of Oirectors’
remuneration specified by law are not made. We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility. '
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

Under the Companies Act 2004 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion, a Carporate Governance Staterment has nat
been prepared by the Company. We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.

Under the Listing Rules we are required to review the part of the Corporate Governance Statement relating to ten further
provisions of the Code. We have nothing to report having performed our review.

RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND THE AUDIT
OUR RESPONSIBILITIES AND THOSE OF THE DIRECTORS

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities set out on page 64, the directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view.

Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and ISAs
{UK & Iretand). Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors,

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the Company’s members as a body in accordance
with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for ng ather purpose. We do not, in giving these opinions, accept or
assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any ather person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may
come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.
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WHAT AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS INVOLVES

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give
reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error,
This incluges an assessment of:

» whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Group's and the Company’s circumstances and have been
consistently applied and adequately disclosed;

. * the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the Directors; and
« the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We primarily focus our work in these areas by assessing the Directors’ judgements against available evidence, forrming our
own judgements, and evaluating the disclosures in the financial statements.

We test and examine information, using sampling and other auditing techniques, to the extent we consider necessary to
provide 2 reasonable basis for us to draw conclusions. We obtain audit evidence through testing the effectiveness af controts,
substantive procedures or a combination of both.

In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information in the Annuai Report to identify material inconsistencies
with the audited financial statements and to identify any information that 1s apparently materially incorrect based on, or
materally inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in the course of performing the audit. If we become aware of any
agparent material misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report. With respect to the Strategic
Repert, Directors’ Report and Corporate Governance Statement, we consider whether those reports include the disclosures
required by applicable legal requirements.

Jutian Jenkins (Senior Statutory Auditor)
tor and on behatf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors

London
28 March 2017
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

Adjusted  Adjusting  Statutory  Adjusted  Adjusting Statutory
Results* ltems* Results  Resuits* ltems* Resuits
2016 2016 2014 2015 2015 2015
Nate €m £m Em Em Em Em
Revenue 2 725 - 72.5 70.5 - 705
Net operating expenses 3 163.4) (13.0) {76.4) {60.0 15.2] 75,2}
Operating profit / (loss) 2.1 [13.0) 3.9) 10.5 {15.2 [4.71
Finance costs 5 0.5¢ - (0.5} (6.7t (0.2t (0.9
Profit / {loss] befare tax 8.4 112.0) 14.4} 9.8 [15.4) 15.6
Taxation 7 1.8] 0.8 11.01 1.9] 0.6 {1.3)
Profit / (loss] for the period attributable to 4.8 (12.21 (5.4} 7.y {14.81 {6.91
owners of the parent
Total comprehensive income / {loss] attribut- [ X:) (t2.2) (5.4} 7.9 (14.8] [6.9]
able to owners of the parent
Earnings / [loss] per share attributable to 8
awners of the parent
Basic 4.7p (8.5]p (3.8)p 5.5p (10.3]p 14.8)p
Diluted 4.5p [8.31p (3.8]p 5.3p {10.0p [4.8)p

* Alternative performance measure, refer to note 1(b]
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE PARENT COMPANY

Reserve
for shares
Share Own Share tobe Deferred Retained Total
capital shares premium issued shares  earnings equity
£m £m £m €m €m £m £m
At 1 January 2015 as previously reported 15.0 o) 07 44 0.1 76,7 84.8
Transfers relating to prior periods® - 34 - {4.0] - 0.4 -
Restated balance at 1 January 2015 15.0 16.5) 0.7 0.4 0.1 771 86.8
Loss and total comprehensive loss - - - - - (6.9 [6.93
Transactions with owners:
Dividends Inate 25| - - - - - {s.00 (4.0t
Fair value of employee services
{note 24| - - - 0.5 - - 05
As at 31 December 2015 15.0 [6.5] 0.7 0.9 0.1 66.2 76.4
Loss and total comprehensive toss - - - - - 15.4) (5.4]
Transactions with owners:
Dividends (note 25 - - - ‘ - (4.3] 14.3]
AFquisitiun of treasury shares
{note 23] - {0.21 - - - - (0.2)
Acquisition of business and assets [nole 13] a1 - 0.4 - - - 0s ’
Exercise of share awards - g3 - {0.2] - (0.1} -
Fair vatue of emplayee services
[note 24} - - - 0.1 - - at
As at 31 December 2014 15.1 {6.4) 11 0.8 0.1 56.4 671

* See note 1(3)
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COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

Reserve
Share Own Share for shares Deferred  Retained Total
capital shares premium tobeissued shares  earnings equity
£m €m £m £m £m £€m £€m
At 1 January 2015 as previously reported 15.0 (8.2] 0.7 4.4 0.1 100.8 112.8
Transfers relating to prior periods* - 2.2 - (4.0) - 0.3 {1.5]
Restated batance at 1 January 2015 15,0 [6.0) 0.7 0.4 0.1 101.1 113
Loss and total comprehensive loss - - - - - (2.0 (2.0]
Transactions with owners:
Dividends {note 25| - - - - - (4.0 [4.0)
fair value of employee services [note 24] - - - a5 - - 05
As at 31 December 2015 15.0 16.0) 0.7 0.9 0.1 95.1 105.8
L.oss and total comprehensive loss - - - - - (2.2 2.2)
Transactions with owners:
Divideads (nate 25) - - - - - (6.3) {4.3]
Acquisitiaon of treasury shares - {0.2) - - - - {0.21
Acquisition of business and assets (note 131 0.1 - 0.4 - - - 05
Exercise of share awards - - - 0.2t - 0.2 -
Fair value ot employee services [note 24) - - - 0.1 - - 0.1
As at 31 December 2014 15.1 6.2} 1.1 6.8 0.1 88.8 9.7

* See note 1(al
The Company has taken advantage of the exemption available under section 408 of the Compames Act 2006 and has not

amounted to £2.2m {2015: loss of £2.0m).

presented its own statement of comprehensive income in these financial statements. The parent company’s loss for the year
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014

REGIST R 0494807 31 December 31 December
EGISTERED NUMBER 04948078 2016 2015
Note £m £m

Non-current assets

Goodwill 4 721 78.1
Other intangible assets 10 167 18.3
Property, plant and equipment' 1 2.0 23
Deferred income tax assets 22 0.6 0.6

1.4 99.3

Current assets

Inventories 14 25 20
Trade and other receivables 15 15.7 25.0
Cash and cash equivalents 146 3.4 3.1

21.8 30.1
Total assets 113.0 129.4

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables 19 (9.7 [12.4)
Deterred income {16.9) [17.0}
Current incomne tax liabilities 20 0.7 (0.91
Borrowings 17 - {r.a
Provisions 21 (0.4} -

27.7 (31.4]
Net current liabilities 6.1} 11.3}

Non-current liabilities

Borrowings 17 117.4] [20.9]
Oeferred incorme tax liabilities 22 {0.8] (0.7)

(18.2) [21.6]
Net assels 671 76.4

Capital and reserves attributable to owners of the parent

Share capital 23 181 15.0
Dwn shares* (6.4) {6.5
Share premium 1.1 0.7
Other reserves* 0.9 1.0
Retained earnings* 56.4 66.2
Total equity 871 76.4

* Comparstive restated - see note 1/al

The financial statements on pages 75 to 132 were approved by the Board of Directors an 28 March 2017 and were signed on its

behalf b{:

Swag Mukeriji
Chief Financial Officer
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COMPANY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2016

REGISTERED NUMBER 04948078

31 December 31 December
2016 2015
Note Em £m
i Non-current assets
fnvestments 12 134.0 134.0
134.0 134.0
Current assets
Trade and other receivables* 15 21 1.2
Cash and cash equivalents 16 - -
2.1 1.2
Total assets 134.1 135.2
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 13 119.0) i8.5)
Borrowings 17 - -
{19.00 [8.5]
Net current liabilities (16.9) [7.3]
Non-cyrrent liabilities
Borrowings 17 (17.4) 120.9]
117.4) 20.9}
Net assets 99.7 105.8
Capital and reserves attributable to owners of the parent
Share capital 23 15.1 15.0
Own shares* (6.2} (6.0
Share premium 1.1 07
Other reserves* 0.y 1.0
Retained earnings™® 88.8 951
Total equity 99.7 105.8

* Cornparative restated - see note 1(a)

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption available under section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 and has nat
presented its own statement of comprehensive income in these financial statements. The parent company’s loss for the year
amounted to £2.2m (2015: loss of £2.0m}.

The financial statements on pages 77 to 132 were approved by the Board of Directors on 28 March 2017 and were signed on its

behalf by:,l l

Swag Mukerji
Chief Financial Officer

79




FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

2014 2015
Note £m £m

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations 26 15.3 61
Tax paid (1.31 [1.4}
Net cash generated from operating activities 14.0 4.7

Cash flows from investing activities
Other acquisitions - settlement of deferred consideration 21 - 0.1]
Disposal of trade and other assets [A - 0.4
Purchase of properly, ptant and equipment " 0.3 [0.5)
Purchase of intangible assets 10 2.3 (2.8)
Acqguisition of business and assets 13 (1.5) -
Net cash flows used in investing activities (4.1] (3.0

Cash flows from financing activities
Payment for shares baught back 23 {0.2) -
Interest paid (0.5) (0.9
Dividends paid to Company's sharehalders % (4.3 {4.0)
Proceeds from barrowings 26 1.5 21.0
Repayment of borrowings 26 I5.00 8.1
Repayment of loan naotes 17 (111 -
Net cash flows used in financing activities [9.6] (2.0)
Net increase / {decrease] in cash and cash equivalents 0.3 (0.3
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 3.1 3.4
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 16 34 31




COMPANY CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

2018 2015
Note £m £m

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operating activities 26 8.5 20

Cash flows from financing activities
Interest pait 10.5) 10.9]
Payment for shares bought back 3 0.2) -
Dividends paid te Company’s shareholders 25 14.3} (4.0
Proceeds from borrowings 26 1.5 21.0
Repayment of borrowings 26 (5.0 118.11
Net cash flows used in financing activities (8.5) i2.0]
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents - -
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the financiat year - -
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 14 - -
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principat accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these consotidated and Company financial statements
are set out below, to the extent they have not already been disclosed in the other notes below. These policies have been
consistently applied to all the periods presented, unless otherwise stated. The financial statements are for the Group
consisting of Centaur Media Pic and its subsidiaries. Centaur Media Plc is a public company limited by shares and
incorporated in England and Wales.

(A] BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consolidated and Company financiat statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards ['IFRS’] as adopted by the Eurogean Union and IFRS Interpretations Cornmittee {IFRS IC'} and with
those parts of the Companies Act 2006 applicable to companies reporting under IFRS. The financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis.

Going concern

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. The Directars have carefully assessed the Group's
ability to continue trading, and have a reasanable expectation that the Group and Company have adequate resources to
continue in operational existence for at least twelve months from the date of approval of these financial statements and for
the foreseeable future.

Nel debt [see reconciliation in note 28] at 31 December 2016 amounted to £14.1m (2015: £17.9m). 1n June 2013, the

Group agreed a four year £25m multi-currency revolving credit facility with the Royal Bank of Scotland and Lloyds, which
runs te 31 August 2019. Cash conversion® during 2016 was strang, with the Group returning to positive working capital
trends after disappointing cash canversion during 2015. The business model is expected to continue to being highly cash-
generative in the future.

The Group has net current liabilities which mainly arise from its normal high levels of deferred income relating to events
in the future rather than an inability to service its liabilities. An assessment of cash flows for the next four financial years,
which has taken into account the factors described above, has indicated an expected level of cash generation which would
be sufficient to allow the Group to fully satisfy its working capital requirements and the guarantee given in respect of its
UK subsidiaries, to cover all principal areas of expenditure, including maintenance, capital expenditure and taxation during
this period, and to meet the financial covenants under the revolving credit facility.

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with IFRS requires the use of estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the year. Aithough these estimates are based on managernent's best knowledge of the
amount, events or actions, the actual results may ultimately differ from those estimates.
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1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUEDI
{A] BASIS OF PREPARATION [CONTINUED}
New and amended standards adopted by the Group

Nene of the new standards and amendments ta standards lincluding the Annual Improvements (2014] to existing
standards) that are mandatory for the first time far the financial year commencing 1 January 2016 affected any of the
amounts recognised in the current period or any prior period, and is not likely to affect future periods.

New standards and interpretations nat yet adopted

The following new accounting standards and interpretations have been published that are not mandatory for 31 December
2016 reporting periods and have not been early adopted by the Group:

« JFRS 9: Financial Instruments is 3 new standard which enhances the ability of investors and other users of financial
informatian to understand the accounting for financial assets and reduces complexity. The standard uses a single
approach to determine whether a financial asset is measured at amortised cost or fair value, replacing the various
rules in 1AS 39, and also introduces a new expected loss impairment model. This standard is effective for accounting
periods commencing on or after 1 January 2018, and the impact is not expected to be material.

IFRS 15: Revenue from Contracts with Customers is a2 new standard based on a five-step model frarmework, which
replaces all existing revenue recognition standards. The standard requires revenue to depict the transfer of promised
goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled
in exchange for those goods or services. This standard 1s effective for accounting periods comrnencing on or after 1
January 2018.

IFRS 16: Leases is @ new standard which sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation

and disclosure of leases for both parties to a contract. The standard eliminates the classification of leases as

either operating leases or finance {eases as required by IAS 17 and, instead, introduces a single lessee accounting
model. A lessee will be required ta recognise assets and liabilities for all leases with a term of more than 12 months
and depreciate lease assets separately from interest on lease liabilities in the income statement. This standard is
effective for accounting periods commencing on or after 1 January 2019,

The Directors anticipate that the adoption of these standards and interpretations in future periods, particularly IFRS 15
and IFRS 16 will impact an the financial statements of the Group. Management is currently undertaking an exercise to
quantify the impact of IFRS 15.

There are no other standards that are not yet etfective and that would be expected to have a material impact on the entity
in the current ar future repoarting periods and on foreseeable future transactians.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES [CONTINUED]
(Al BASIS GF PREPARATION ([CONTINUED]

Prior period adjustment

Group financial statements

As at 1 January 2015, the value of treasury shares and shares held in the Employee Benefit Trust in the own shares
reserve relating to the vesting of employee share plans {£3.6m| has been transferred to retained earnings. reflecting
shares transferred to employees in prior periods. A transfer has also been made from the reserve for shares to be issued
of £4.0m to retained earnings, to account for the vesting of these share ptans up to t January 2015, There is no overall
impact from these adjustments on total shareholders’ equity or other reported measures as at 1 January 2015.

Company financial statements

As at 1 Japuary 2015, the value of treasury shares and shares held in the Employee Benefit Trust in the own shares
reserve relating to the vesting of employee share plans (£2.2m)] has been transferred to retained earnings, reflecting
shares transferred to employees in prior periods. A transfer has also been made from the reserve for shares to be issued
of E£4.0m to retained earnings, to account for the vest of these share plans up to 1 January 2015. In addition, the loan
balance between the Company and the Employee Benefit Trust previously reported as £1.8m has been written down to
account for share plan vests up to 1 January 2015, resulting in a reduction of £1.5m to opening retained earnings and
equily.

(B] PRESENTATION OF NON-STATUTORY MEASURES

In addition to statutory measures, the Directors use various non-GAAP key financial measures to evaluate the Group’s
performance, and consider that presentation of these measures provides shareholders with an additional understanding
of its core trading performance. The measures used are explained and reconcited to their equivalent statutory headings
below.

Adjusted operating profit and adjusted earnings per share

The Directors believe that adjusted results and adjusted earnings per share provide additional useful information on the
core operational performance of the Group to shareholders, and review the results of the Group on an adjusted basis
internally. The term "adjusted’ is not a defined term under IFRS and may not therefore be comparable with similarly
titted profit measurements reported by other companies. It is not intended to be a substitute for, or superior to, iIFRS
measurements of profit.

Adjustments are made in respect of:

» Exceptional items - the Group considers items of income and expense as exceptional and excludes thern from the
adjusted results where the nature of the item, or its size, is material and likely to be non-recurring in nature (in
the medium term| so as to assist the user of the financial statements to better understand the results of the core
operations of the Group. Details of exceptional items are shown in note 4.
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1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED]
(B PRESENTATION OF NON-STATUTORY MEASURES {CONTINUED])

= Amortisation of acquired intangible assets - the amortisation charge for those intangible assets recognised on
business combinations is excluded from the adjusted results of the Group since they are non-cash charges arising
fram nen-trading investment achivities. As such, they are not considered reflective of the core trading performance of
the Group. Details of amortisation of intangible assets are shown in note 10.

» Share-based payrnents - share-based payment expenses or credits are excluded from the adjusted resuits of the
Group as the Directors believe that the volatitity of these charges can distort the user's view of the core trading
performance of the Group. Details of share-based payments are shown in note 24.

« Impairment of goodwill - the Directors believe that as well non-cash impairment charges in relation ta goadwill
are generally volatile and material, and therefore exclude any such charges from the adjusted results of the Group.
Previous impairment charges were presented as exceptional items. As this charge has recurred in the current year,
it is not deemed to be exceptional, but given its matertality it has been separately reported for the reasons set out
above. Details of goedwill impairment are shown in note 9.

» Earn-put consideration - deferred or contingent consideration in reiation to business combinations recognised in
the income statement as a result of being classified as remuneration under IFRS 3] is not considered reflective of
the core trading of the Group since it results from investment activities and is volatile in nature. As such, income
statement items relating to business combinations are removed from adjusted resutts. See notes 13and 21.

» Profit or loss on disposal of assets or subsidiaries ~ profit or loss on disposals of businesses are excluded from
adjusted results of the Group as they are unrelated to core trading, and can distort a user’s understanding of the
performance of the Group due to their infrequent and volatile nature. See note 4.

= Other separately reported iterns -~ certain other items are excluded from adjusted results where they are considered
. large or unusual enough to distort the comparability of core trading results year on year. Details of these separately
disclosed items are shown in note 4.

The tax related to adjusting items is the tax effect of the items above that are allowable deductions for tax purposes
{primarity exceptional items), catctlated using the standard rate of corparation tax. See nate 7 for a reconciliation between
reported and adjusted tax charges.

Further details of adjusting items are included in note 4. A reconciliation between adjusted and statutory earnings per
share measures ts shown in note 8.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(B] PRESENTATION OF NON-STATUTORY MEASURES {CONTINUED]

Loss befare tax reconciles to adjusted operating profit as follows:

2014 2015
Note €m Em
Loss before tax 14.4) {5.6]
Adjusting items
Impairment of goodwitl ¢ 7.2 1.9
Amortisation of acquired intangible assets 10 2.3 2.2
Share-based payments 24 {0.1 0.7
Earn-out consideration 13 0.8 01
Additional impairment of trade receivables 4 1.8 -
Exceptional aperating costs 4 1.2 0.7
Prafit on disposal of trade and assets 4 - 0.4
Exceptional finance costs 4 - 0.2
Adjusted profit before tax 8.6 9.8
Adjusted finance costs 5 0.5 a7
Adjusted operating profit 9.1 10.5
Cash impact of adjusting items (1.3) {09
Tax impact of adjusting items : 08 0.6

Adjusted operating cash flow

Adjusted operating cash flow is not a measure defined by IFRS. It is defined as cash flow from operations excluding the
impact of adjusting items, which are defined above, and including capital expenditure. The Directors use this measure to
assess the performance of the Group as it excludes volatile items not related to the core trading of the Group, and includes
the Group’'s management of capital expenditure. Statutory cash fiow from eperations reconciles to adjusted operating
cash as below:

2016 2015

£m £m

Reported cash flow from operations 153 6.1
Cash impact of adjusting items 1.3 0.5
Warking capital impact of adjusting itemns (0.1] -
Capital expenditure (2.5 13.31
Adjusted operating cash flow 13.9 3.3

86




Undertying revenue grawth

or disposed businesses.

1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED]

[B) PRESENTATION OF NON-STATUTORY MEASURES ICONTINUED)

Statutory revenue growth reconciles te underlying revenue growth as follows:

The Directors review underlying revenie growth in order to allow a like for like comparison of revenues between periods.
Underlying revenues exclude the impact of event timing differences, as well the revenue cantributian arising from acquired

Financial Home

Marketing Professional Services Interest Total

Em Em £m £m £m

Reported revenue 2015 27.9 19.7 12.0 11.8 70.5
Biennial events - AMS - {0.4) - - (0.4}
Underlying revenue 2015 27.8 19.3 12.0 1.8 70.1
Reported revenue 20146 2.7 20.2 9.7 12.9 72.5
Acquired business - Oystercatchers (1.2 - - - (1.2l
Underlying revenue 2014 285 20.2 9.7 12.9 73
Reported revenue growth 10% 3% {191% 9% 3%
Underlying revenue growth 6% 5% 119)% 9% 2%

Adiusted EBITDA

Adjusted EBITDA is not a measure defined by IFRS. Itis defined as adjusted operating profit befare depreciation and
amortisation of intangible assets other than those acquired through 3 business combination, It is used by the Directors as
a measure to review performance of the Group, and forms the basis of some of the Group's financial covenants under its
revolving credit facility. Adjusted EBITDA is calculated as follows:

2016 2015

Em Em

Adjusted operating profit las above) 9.1 10.5
Depreciation [note 11) 0.6 09
Amortisation of camputer saftware (note 10 2.7 2.1
Adjusted EBITDA 12.4 135

Net debt

Net debt is not a measure defined by JIFRS, Net debt is calculated as cash less overdrafts and bank borrowings under the
Group’s financing arrangements. The Directors consider the measure usefut as it gives greater clarity over the Group’s
liquidity as a whole. A reconciliation between net debt and statutory measures is shown in nate 26.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONTINUED)
{C| PRINCIPLES GF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of Centaur Media Plc and all of its subsidiaries
after elimination of intercornpany transactions.

{il Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has
rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power
to direct the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the
Group. They are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains an transactions between Group companies are eliminated. The
accounting policies of subsidiaries are consistent with the policies adopted by the Group.

{ii} Business Combinations

The acquisition method of accounting is used o account for all business combinations. The consideration transferred for
acquisition of a subsidiary is measured at the aggregate of fair values of assets transferred, liabilities incurred or assumed
to the former owners of the acquired business and equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
subsidiary. Acquisition-related costs incurred are expensed as incurred and included in the Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income.

Any deferred consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is recognised at fair vatue. lf the conditions attached to

the consideration indicate that the payment forms part of the acquisition, a provision is made far the future liability

at the acquisition date. Where the deferred consideration is contingent on the continued employment of the vendors,

such arrangements are recognised in the Consotidated Statement of Comprehensive Income on a straight line basis

aver the period over which the contingent consideration is earned with an associated provision on the balance sheet. .
Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration are recognised in accordance with 1AS 3% through the
Consolidated Staternent of Comprehensive [ncome.

The excess of the aggregate consideration transferred, amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquired entity, and
acquisition date fair valve of any previous equity interest in the acquired entity over the fair value of the net assets acgquired
is recorded as gaodwill.

{D} FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION

{i} Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group's entities are measured using the currency of the primary
ecanomic envirgnment in which the entity operates ['the functional currency’]. The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Pounds Sterling, which is the Group and Company’s functional and presentation currency.




1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES [CONTINUED)

[D} FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION ICONTINUEDI

lii} Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the
transiation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange raies are recognised
in the statement of comprehensive income.

fiii} Group Companies

The results and financial position of the Group entities that have a functional currency different from the presentation
currency are translated inte the presentation currency as follows:

+ Assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are translated at the clasing rate at the date of that balance
sheet;

« Income and expenses for each income statement are translated at average exchange rates (unless this average is not
a reasonahble approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are transtated at the rate on the dates of the transactions]; and

* All resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income.

On consalidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of the net investment in foreign operations and of
borroewings are recognised in other comprehensive income, When a foreign operatian is sold, exchange differences that
were recorded in equity are recegnised in the income statement as part of the gain or loss on sale. Goodwill and fair
value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign entity are ireated as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity and
translated at the closing rate.

{E] REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue is measured at the tair value of the consideration received or receivable and represents amounts recoverable by
the Group for the sales of advertising space, subscriptions and individual publications and revenue from events provided in
the normat course of business, net of discounts and value added tax.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is praobable that future ecanomic
benefits will flow to the entity and specific criteria have been met for each of the Group's activities as described below.

Sales of advertising space are recogmised in the period in which publication occurs. Sales of publications are recognised
in the periad in which the sale is made. Sales of online advertising are recognised over the periad during which the
advertisements are ptaced. Consideration received in advance for events is deferred and revenue i1s recognised in the
period in which the event takes place.

Revenue from subscriptions to publications and digital services is deferred and recognised on a straight-line basis over
the subscription period. .
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES [CONTINUED]
[F) INVESTMENTS

In the Company’s financial statements, investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less provision for impairment in
value.

(G)INCOME TAX
The tax expense represents the sum of current and deferred tax.

Current tax is based an the taxable profit for the period. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the statement of
comprehensive income because it excludes iterns of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in ather years, and it
further includes items that are never taxable or deductible. The Greup and Company’s liability for current tax is catculated
using tax rales that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets
are recognised 1o the extent that it is probable that taxable profits wilt be available to utilise those temparary differences
and losses. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from goadwill ar the inttal
recognition [other than in a business combination] of other assets and liabilities in 3 transaction that affects neither the
tax profit nor the accounting profit. .
Deferred tax is calculated at the enacted or substantively enacted tax rates that are expected to apply in the

period when the Liability is settled or the asset is realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited to the statement of
comprehensive incame, except when it relates to items charged or credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred
tax is recognised in other comprehensive income,

{H} LEASES

Agreements under which payments are made to owners in return for the right to use an asset for a period are accounted
for as leases. Leases that transfer substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership are recognised at the
commencement of the lease term as finance leases within property, plant and equipment and debt at the fair value of the
leased asset or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. Finance lease payments are apportioned
between interest expense and repayments of debt. All other leases are classified as operating leases and the costis
recognised in income on a straight-line basis.

{1 IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS

Assets that are subject 1o depreciation er amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events indicate that the
carrying value may not be recoverable. An imgairment lass is recognised to the extent that the carrying value exceeds
the higher of the asset’s fair value less cost of disposal and its value-in-use. An asset’s value in use is calculated by
discounting an estimate of future cash flows by the pre-tax weighted average cost of capital.
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1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED]
[JVINVENTORIES

inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Work in progress comprises of costs incurred relating
to publications and exhibitions grior to the publication date or the date of the event. Cost of sales entirely represents
inventories expensed during the period.

(K] PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment is stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

The historical cost of property, plant and equipment is the purchase cost together with any incidental direct costs of
acquisition. Depreciation is catculated to write aff the cost. less estimated residual value, of assets, on a straight line-basis
over the expected useful economic lives to the Group over the following periods:

Leasehold improvements - 10 years or the expected length of the lease if shorter
Fixtures and fittings - 10 years
Computer equipment -310 Syears

Residual values, where applicable, are reviewed annually against prevailing market rates at the balance sheet date for
equivalent aged assets and depreciation rates adjusied accardingly on a prospective basis. An assel’s carrying amount
is written down immediately to its recoverabte amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estirated
recoverable amount. Each year, a review of the estimated useful ecenomic life of each asset is carried out to ensure
depreciation rates are adegquate.

{LI INTANGIBLE ASSETS

{i) Goodwill

Where the cost of 2 business acquisition exceeds the fair values attributable to the separable net assets acquired, the
resulting goodwill is capitalised and allocated to the cash-generating unit ['CGU’] er groups of CGUs that are expected to
benefit from the synergies of the business combination. Goodwill has an indefinite useful life and 15 tesied for impairment
annually on a Group tevel or whenaver events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable.

Each segment is deermed to be a3 CGU. Goodwill and acquired intangible assets are tested for impairment in accordance
with 1AS 36. In assessing whether a write-down of goodwill and acquired intangible assets is required, the carrying value
of the segment is compared with its recoverable amount. Recoverable amount is measured as the higher of fair value
less cost of disposal and value-in-use. Any impairment is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income (in net
operating expenses) and is classified as an adjusting item. Impairment of goodwill is net subsequently reversed.

On the disposal of 3 CGU, the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the profit and loss on
disposal.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES [CONTINUED)
(L) INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)
lii} Brands and publishing rights, customer relationships and non-compete arrangements

Separately acquired brands and publishing rights are shown at historical cost. Brands and publishing rights, customer
relationships and non-compete arrangements acquired in a business combination are recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. They have a finite useful life and are subsequently carried at cost less accumutated amortisation and
impairment losses.

liii) SoRtware

Computer software that is not integral to the operation of the related hardware is carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation. Costs associated with the development of identifiable and unigue software products controlled by the
Group that will generate probable future economic benefits in excess of costs are recognised as intangible assets when
the criteria of IAS 38 ‘Intangible Assets” are met. They are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment
losses.

{ivl Amortisation methods and pericds

Amortisation is calculated to write off the cost or fair value of assets on a straight-line basis over the expected useful
economic lives to the Group over the following periods:

Computer software - 3 to 5 years g 1
Brands and pubtishing rights - 5to 20 years

Custemer relationships - 5 to 10 years ar over the term of any specitied contract

Websites and content -3toHyears

Non-compete arrangements - Over the term of the arrangement

- (M] EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

{i] Post-employment obligations

The Group and Campany contribute to a defined contribution pension scheme for the benefit of employees. The assets of
the scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an independently administered fund. Contributions to defined
contribution schemes are charged to the statement of comprehensive income when emplayer contributions become
payable.

lii) Share-based payments

The Group operates 3 number of equity-settled share-based compensation plans for its employees. The fair value of the
share-based compensation expense is estimated using either a Monte Carlo or Black-5choles option pricing model and is
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income over the vesting period with a corresponding increase in equity. The
total amount to be expensed is determined by reference to the fair value of the awards granted:

* Including any market performance conditions;

= Excluding the impact of any service and non-market performance vesting conditions (for examnple, profitability, sales
growth targets, cash flow performance and remaining an employee of the entity over a specified time period}; and
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1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUEDI
{M] EMPLOYEE BENEFITS [CONTINUED]
{ii} Share-based payments [continued)
* Including the wnpact of any non-vesting conditions (for example, the requirement for employees to savel.

The total expense is recognised over the vesting period, which is the period over which all of the specified vesting
conditions are to be satisfied. At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its estimates of the number of
options that are expected to vest based on the non-market vesting and service conditions. It recognises the impact of
the revision to original estimates, if any, in the statement of comprehensive income, with a corresponding adjustment to
equity. The Company issues new shares or transfers shares from treasury shares to settle share-based compensation
awards.

The award by the Company of share-based compensation awards over its equity tnstruments to the employees of
subsidiary undertakings in the Group is treated as a capital contribution, only if it is (eft unsettled. The fair value of
employee services received, measured by reference to the grant date fair value, is recognised aver the vesting period as an
increase to investment in subsidiary undertakings, with a corresponding credit to equity.

[N] PROVISIONS

Provisians are recognised when the Graup has a present abligation [legal or constructivel as a result of 2 past event; it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settie the obligation and the abligation can be reliably estimated.

Provisions for deferred contingent consideration are measured at fair valug. Where the deferred consideration is
contingent on the continued employment of the vendors, such arrangements are recognised in the Consolidated
Staterment of Comprehensive Income on a straight line basis over the period of the arrangement.

{0] SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM

Ordinary and deferred shares are classified as equity. The excess of consideration received in respect of shares issued over
the nominat value of those shares is recognised in the share premium account. Incremental costs directly attributable to
the issue of new shares ar options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Where any Group company purchases the Company's equity instruments, for exampie as the result of a share buyback or
share-based payment plan, the consideration paid, including any directly attributable incremental costs [net of incame
taxes) is deducted from eguity attributable to the owners of the Company as treasury shares until the shares are cancelled
or reissued. Where such ordinary shares are subsequently reissued, any consideration received, net of any directly
attributable incremental transaction costs and the related income tax effects, is included in equity attributable to the
owners of the Company.

Shares held by the Centaur Employees’ Benefit Trust are disclosed as treasury shares and deducted from contributed
equity. The Company also holds a non-distributable reserve representing the fair value of unvested share-based
compensations plans.

93




FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
tP) DIVIDENDS

Dividends are recognised in the period in which they are paid or, in respect of the Company’s final dividend for the year,
approved by the shareholders in the Annual General Meeting.

(Q] SEGMENTAL REPORTING

Operating segments are reporied in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The Executive Committee has been identified as the chief operating decision-maker, respansible for
allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments. The Group operates in four market-facing
divisions: Marketing, Financial Services, Professional, and Home Interest.

{R] FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Group has applied IFRS 7, Financial instruments: Disclasures, and IAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement, as outlined below:

(il Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories where relevant: at fair value through profit or loss; +
loans and receivables; and available-for-sale. The classification depends an the purpose for which the financial assets
were acquired. Management determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

All of the Group's financial assets have been classified as loans and receivables. Loans and receivables are nen-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quated in an active market. They are included in current
assets, except for maturities greater than 12 months after the balance sheet date. These are classified as non-current
assets. The Group's loans and receivables comprise trade and other receivables and cash and cash eguwvalents in the
balance sheet. Leans and receivables are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

{ii] Trade receivables

Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
tnterest method, less provision far impairment.

A provision for impairment of trade receivables is established when there is objective evidence that the Group will not be
able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of the receivables. Significant financial difficulties of the
debior, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation and default or delinquency in payments
{more than 90 days overduel are considered indicators that the trade receivable is impaired. The amount of the provision

is the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted

at the original effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance
account, and the amount of the loss is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income within net operating
expenses. When a trade receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against the altowance account far trade receivables.
Subsegquent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against net operating expenses in the statement of
comprehensive income,

4




1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES [CONTINUED)

R} FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS {CONTINUED]

(iii) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand and deposits repayable on demand or maturing within three months of
the balance sheet date.

livl Financial liabilities

Cebt and trade payables are recognised initially at fair value based on amounts exchanged, net of transaction costs, and
subsequently at amortised cost,

Interest expense on debt is accounted far using the effective interest method and is recognised in income.
(vl Trade payables

Trade payables are recognised initiatly at fair value and subsequently measured at amaortised cost using the effective
interest method.

{vi] Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred and carried subsequently at amortised
cost. Costs of borrowings are recogrised in the statement of comprehensive income as incurred or, where appropriate,
across the term of the related barrowing.

(vii] Derivative financial instruments

The Group does not hold derivative financial instruments either for trading purposes or designated as hedges.

(S} KEY ACCOUNTING ASSUMPTIONS, ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

The preparation of financial statements under IFRS requires the use of certain key accounting assumptions and requires
management to exercise its judgement and to make estimates. The areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the consolidated financial statements are as follows:

i] Carrying value of goodwill and other intangible assets

In assessing whether goodwill and other intangible fixed assets are impaired, the Group uses a discounted cash flow
model which includes forecast cash flows and estimates of future growth. If the results of operations in future periods
are lower than included in the cash flow model, impairments may be triggered. Further details of the assumptions and
sensitivities in the discounted cash flow modet are included in note 9.

Intangible assets arising on business combinations are identified based on the Group’s understanding of the acquired
business and previous experignce of similar businesses. Consistent methods of valuation for similar types of intangible
asset are applied where possible and appropriate, using infarmation reviewed at Board level where avaitable. Discount
rates applied in calculating the values of intangible assets arising on the acquisition of subsidiares are calculated
specifically for each acquisition, and adjusted to reflect the respective risk profile of each individual asset based on the
Group's past experience of similar assets.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 SUMMARY DF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(S KEY ACCOUNTING ASSUMPTIONS, ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

lii) Recoverability of trade receivables

The recoverability of trade recewvables requires judgement. The Group uses all available evidence to determmne the
appropriate level of provision for impairment of trade receivables, including known disputes, historical trends in write-offs,
collections post year end and the ageing of the receivables., Further details about trade receivables are included in note
15 and information about the credit risk and impairment of recevables are shown 1n note 27.

{iii) Adjusting items

The term ‘adjusted’ is not a defined term under IFRS. Judgement is required to ensure that the classification and
presentation of certain items as adjusting, including exceptional items, is appropriate and consistent with the Group's
accounting policy. Further details about the amounts classified as adjusting are included in notes 1{b} and 4.

fivl Contingent consideration

The vatuation of contingent consideration arising from business combinations {'earn-out’ consideration] requires
judgement, including the assessing the probability and quantum of the expected payment. The Group uses all available
information, including current and forecasted performance under earn-out arrangements to assess the required level of
provision. ltems relating to earn-out consideration are treated as an adjusting item under the Group’s accounting policy.
Further details about the classification of earn-out consideration are included in notes 1{bl and 4, and details of current
and prior year earn-out arrangements and provistons are shown in notes 13 and 21.

2 SEGMENTAL REPORTING

The Executive Committee has been identified as the chief operating decision-maker, reviewing the Group's internal
reporting on a monthly basis in order to assess performance and allocate resources.

The Group is organised around four reportable market-facing segments: Marketing, Financial Services, Professional and
Home Interest. The Professional segment aggregates the Legal, Human Resources, Engineering and Travel & Meetings
portfalios, which are deemed to have similar profiles of risk and return. All segments derive revenues from a combination
of live events, premium content and advertising revenues. Corporate income and costs are aliocated to these segments
on an appropriate basis, depending on the nature of the costs, including in proportion to revenues or headcount. There is
no inter-segmental revenue.

Segment assets consist primarily of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets including goodwill, inventories and
trade receivables, Segment liabilities comprise trade payables, accruals and deferred income.,

Corporate assets and liabilities comprise current and deferred tax batances, cash and cash equivalents and barrawings.

Cagpital expenditure comprises additions to property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and includes additions
resulting from acquisitions through business combinations.
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2SEGMENTAL REPORTING (CONTINUED)

Financial Home
Marketing Services Professional interest Group
m £m £m €m £m
2016
Revenue 29.7 9.7 20.2 12.% 725
Adjusted operating profit 42 0.6 21 2.2 9.1
Amaortisation of acquired intangibles {1.6] (0.2) 10.11 (0.4 (23]
Impairment of goadwill - {7.2) - - 17.2)
Earn-out consideration {C.6) - - - {0.8)
Additicnal impairment of trade receivables (0.8 0.2) (0.5 16.3] 11.8]
Exceptional operating costs 10.4) 0.2) 10.5) lo.1 i1.2)
Share-based payments a1 - - - 0.1
Opersting loss 0.9 7.2} 1.0 1.4 3.9
Finance costs 0.5
Loss before tax (4.41
Taxation on
Loss for the year from continuing operations [5.4]
Segment assets 56.1 7.3 295 13.2 108.1
e Corporate assets 4.9
Consglidated total assets 113.0
Segment liabilities [11.6] 2.0 7.21 14.5) {25.3i
Corporate liabilities {20.8)
Consolidated total liabilities {45.91
Other items
Capital expenditure
[tangible and intangible assetsl 1.1 0.3 0.7 0.5 2.4
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2 SEGMENTAL REPORTING [CONTINUED)

Financial Home
Marketing Services Professional Interest Group
£m £m £m £m £m

2015
Revenue 27.0 12.0 19.7 11.8 70.5
Adjusted operating profit 4.1 2.1 2.2 21 10.5
Amortisation of acquired intangibles (1.5} 03 0.1 10.3) 12.2)
impairment of goodwitl - - (119 - f11.9]
Earn-put consideration - - 10.1) - {0.1]
Exceptional aperating costs [0.11 0.2) i0.2) 10.21 0.7
Profit on disposal of trade and assets - - D.4 - 0.4
Share-based payments (0.3 0.1 0.2 0.1 0.7
Operating loss 2.2 1.5 [9.91 1.5 (4.7
Finance costs 0.3
Loss befare tax {5.6]
Taxation (1.31
Loss for the year from continuing operations (6.9
Segment assets 571 17.9 30.6 15.2 1208
Corporate assets 8.6
Consolidated total assets 129.4
Segment liabilities 117.5) (3.3 £4.31 11.8) (28.7]
Corporate liabilities {26.3]
Consolidated total liabilities (53.01
Other items
Capital expenditure
{tangible and intangible assets| 1.4 0.5 a9 0.6 3.4
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2 SEGMENTAL REPORTING (CONTINUED]

Supplemental infarmation - Revenue by Geographical Location

The Group’s revenues from external customers by geographical location are detailed below.

2016 2015

€m Em

Undted Kingdom 5¢.5 59.7
Europe lexcluding United Kingdom| 4.0 37
North America 6.2 3.9
Rest of wortd 2.8 3.2
725 70.5

Group currently operates in a single geographical segment. being the United Kingdam.

The Group's revenue by type is as follows:

Substantially atl of the Group's net assets are located in the United Kingdom. The Directors therefore consider that the

2046 2015
£m £€m
Sale of goods and services

Premium content 20.8 19.9
Live events 30.7 212
Advertising 20.2 225
Other 0.8 0%
72.5 705
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 NET OPERATING EXPENSES

Operating loss is stated after charging / [crediting]:

Adjusted Adjusting Statutory Adjusted Adjusting Statutory
Results ltems Results Results Items Results
2014 2014 2016 2015 2015 2015
Note £m £m £m Em £m £m
Net foreign exchange gains 03 - 0.3 - - -
Employee benefits expense [} 30.3 0.9 31.2 30.2 0.6 308
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment 1 0.6 . 0.6 09 ) a9
Amortisation of intangible assets 10 2.7 23 5.0 2.1 22 43
Impairment of goodwill 9 - 2.2 7.2 - 1.9 ne
Earn-gut consideration 13 - 0.4 0.4 - 0. 0.1
Other exceptionat operating costs 4 - 0.3 03 - 0.1 a1
Operating lease rentals 1.8 - 1.8 18 - 1.8
Repairs and maintenance expenditure 0.3 - 0.3 0.2 - 0.2
Impairment of trade receivables 27 0.5 1.8 23 0.6 - 0.6
Share-based payment lcredit] / expense 24 - 10.11 (0.1} £ a7 0.7
Profit on disposal of trade and assets 4 - - - - (0.4 [0.4)
Other aperating expenses 26.9 - 269 24.2 - ’ 242
63.4 13.0 76.4 60.0 15.2 75.2
Cost of sales 343 - 343 33.2 - 33.2
Distribution costs 1.1 - 11 1.3 - 1.3
Administrative expenses 28.0 130 41.0 255 15.2 40.7
83.4 13.0 76.4 40.0 8.2 75.2

Rental incame for the sub-lease of properties under leases totalled £0.7m (2015: £0.6m}.

See note 1Ib] and 4 for details of adjusting items.
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... |
3 NET OPERATING EXPENSES {CONTINUED]
Services provided by the Company’s auditor
2014 2015
£000 £000
Fees payable to the Company's audilors for the audit of parent company and consolidated financiat 150 139
statements
Additional audit tees relating to prior year 55 -
Fees payabie to the Company's auditors and its associates for other services:

The audit of the Campany’s subsidiaries pursuant to legislation 10 30
Total audit fees 215 169
Audit related assurante services 28 28
Taxation compliance services 17 131
Other taxation advisory services &8 104
Other assurance services 29 10
Total non-audit fees 140 273
Total fees 355 442

4 ADJUSTING ITEMS
As discussed in note 1(bl, certain items are presented as adjusting. These are detailed below:

2016 2015

Note £€m £m

Exceptional operating costs

Staff related restructuring costs 3 09 0.é
Costs relating to strategic corperate restructuring initiatives 0.3 0.1
Exceptional operating costs 1.2 0.7
Impairment of goadwill ¢ 7.2 11.9
Prafit an disposal of trade and assets - {0.4]
Amortisalion of acquired intangible assets 10 2.3 2.2
Additional impairment of trade receivables 27 1.8 -
Share-based payments 24 [0.1] 0.7
£arn-out consideration 13 0.6 0.1
Adjusting itemns (o operating profit 13.0 15.2
Exceptional finance costs 3 - 0.2
Adjusting itemns to profit before tax 13.0 15.4
Tax relating to adjusting items 7 {0.8] (0.6
Total adjusting items after tax 12.2 14.8
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4 ADJUSTING ITEMS (CONTINUED)

Exceptional costs
5talf related restructuring costs

During 2014, exceptional restructuring costs of £0.9m were incurred as a result of the cost reduction programme and
regrganisation of the operational management structure, including the Executive Committee. Whilst similar costs have
been incurred previousiy, such costs linked to the Group's transformation programme are not expected to recur once this
is completed, and as such these costs are deemed to be exceptional in nature.

In 2015 exceptional restructuring costs of £0.6m were recognised as a result of restruciuring activities and changes in
senior management.

Costs relating to strategic corporate restructuring initiatives

These costs relate to professional fees relating to strategic corporate restructuring initiatives £6.2m (2015: €0.1m| and
non-trading costs arising on prior disposals £0.1m.

Exceptional finance costs

2015 costs of £0.2m related to unamortised casts of £0.1m relating to the previous facility and legal fees of £0.1m
associated with refinancing of the Group's revolving credit facitity in 2015,

QOther adjusting items

Other adjusting items relate to the amortisation of acquired intangible assets [see note 10} and share-based payment
costs [see note 24] as well as the items discussed below:

Impairment of trade receivables

An additional, separately reported charge has been recognised in relation to impairment of trade receivables of £1.8m
(2015: £nil). As a result of disruption during the secand half of 2015 and into the early part of 2016 arising from 2 new
accounting system implementation in 2015 an amount of legacy and older debt remains unpaid at 31 December 20154,
which is significantly in excess of levels historically experienced by the Group. A detaited review and risk assessment

lo ascertain the recoverability of this debt has been undertaken. This review, together with the fact there is further
extended ageing despite active pursuit of the amounts in 2016 has meant the Group considers it necessary to provide
against potentially uncollectible aged debt at {evels in excess of those which would be required under normal trading
conditions. The quantum of this additional provision arises from unique circumstances following an accounting system
implementation, therefore the charge of £1.8m (2015: £nill has been separately reported in adjusting items. In addition, an
ordinary £0.5m {2015: €0.6m| charge has been recorded in adjusted operating profit, which is not separately reported.

impairment of goodwill

DOuring 2016, an impairment of £7.2m was recognised against the goodwill in the Financial Serwvices segment. During
2015, the impairment charge of £11.9m related to goodwill in the Professional segment. More detail is given in note 9.
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4 ADJUSTING ITEMS (CONTINUED)

Earn-out consideration

In 2014, a charge of £0.6m has been recagnised in relation to the Oystercatchers acquisition earn-out, see note 13 for
further details. The charge in 2015 of £0.1m related to an increase in the deferred contingent consideration associated
with the acquisition of Venture Business Research Limited ['VB Research’].

Profit on disposal of trade and assets

On 6 February 2015, the Group sold the trade and assets of the Aidex Exhibition brand sitting within the Professional
segment for total consideration, and profit on disposal, of £0.4m.

S FINANCE COSTS

2015 2015

£m £m

Interest payable on revolving credit facility 0.4 0.5
Commitment fees and amortisation of arrangement fee in respect of revolving credit facitity 0.1 02
Adjusted finance costs 0.5 0.7
Exceptional finance costs - 0.2
Reported finance costs 0.5 0.9

Exceptional finance costs in 2015 related to unamortised facility costs (£0.1m) and legal fees (E0.1m) associated with the
refinancing of the Group’s revolving credit facility.

6 DIRECTORS AND EMPLOYEES

7014 2015 2816 2015

Group Group Company Company

£m £€m £m Em

Wages and salaries 255 25.6 0.9 1.2
Sacial security costs 3.4 30 a1 0.2
Other pension costs 0.9 0.9 0.1 -
Adjusted staff casts 29.8 29.5 1.1 1.4
Exceptional redundancy costs [note 4} 0.9 0.6 - -
Earn-out cansideration fnote 13] 0.6 0.1 - -
Equity-settled share-based payments [note 24) (0.1) 0.7 - 0.7
Total staff costs 3.2 30.9 11 21
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& DIRECTORS AND EMPILOYEES [CONTINUED)

The average monthly number of employees employed during the year, including directors, was:

2016 2015 2016 2015
Group Group Company Company
Number Number Mumber Number
Marketing 168 146 - -
Financial Services 48 42 - -
Professional 93 78 - -
Home Interest 61 59 - -
Central 184 239 4 [
854 564 4 4
The Company's employees have contracts of service with Centaur Communications Limited and are paid by Chiron
Communications Limited, both Group companies. As the employees provide services to the Company, thair costs are
recharged and the relevant disclosures are made in the financial statements.
Key management compensation
2016 2015
Em £m
Salaries and short term employment benefits 1.9 1.9
Termination benefits a3 0.3
Post-employment benefits 0.1 0.t
Share-based payments {0.11 0.4
Earn-out consideration 0.2 -
2.4 2.7
Key management is defined as the Executive Directors and Executive Committee members,
Aggregate Directors’ remuneration
20%46 2015
£m £m
Salaries, fees, bonuses and benefits in kind 1.0 1.0
Amounts receivable under long term incentive schemes {0.1] 0.2
Post-employment benefits 0.1 0.1
1.0 1.3

.
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6 DIRECTORS AND EMPLOYEES (CONTINUED|

Highest paid director's remuneration

2016 208

£m £€m

Salaries, fees, boenuses and benefits in kind 0.4 0.4
Amounts receivable under long term incentive schemnes 0.1 a1
Post-emplayment benefits 0.1 0.1
0.6 0.6

No directors exercised share options during the current or prior year. No directors were paid compensation in respect of
loss of office during either year. Further details of Directors’ remuneration are included in the Remuneration Committee
Report between pages 48 to 63.

7 TAXATION
2014 2015
£m £m
Analysis of charge for the year
Current tax
UK Corporation Tax 1.2 1.5
Overseas tax 0.t a.5
Adjustments in respect of priar years 0.2} LR
1.1 21
Deferred tax Inote 22]
Current period (0.3} (0.8)
Adjustments in respect of prior years 0.2 -
(0.] {0.8}
1.0 1.3

Taxation

105




FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7 TAXATION (CONTINUED)

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the loss in the statement of comprehensive income as follows:

2016 2015
€m Em
Loss before tax l4.4) i5.41
Tax at the UK rate of corporation tax of 20.0% (2015: 20.25%!} [0.9) (1.1}
Effects of:
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 0.5 0.1
Goodwill impairment not deductible 1.4 2.4
Effects of changes in tax rate on deferred tax balances - 0.1}
Relating to intra-group debt simgplification - [0.6)
Adjustments in respect of prior years - 01
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries in other jurisdictians - 05
1.0 1.3

The Finance Act 2015 included legislation to reduce the main rate of corporation tax from 20% to 19% from 1 April 2017
and to 18% from 1 April 2020. This change had been substantively enacted at the balance sheet date and, therefore, the
Group's deferred tax balances are recorded at 19%.

Buring 2015, the simplification of intragroup financing structures resulted in 3 waiver of certain loan and financing
arrangements between Group companies. The Group held a related deferred tax liability connected to these balances
which was written off to the income statement upon the waiver. No current tax arose given the transaction was non-cash
N nature.

A reconciliation between the reported tax expense and the adjusted tax expense, taking account of adjusting items as
discussed in note {b] and 4 15 shown below:

2016 2015

£m £m

Reported tax expense 1.0 1.3
Effects of:

Amoartisation of acquired intangible assets 0.3 03

Additional impairment of trade receivables 0.4 -

Share-based payments 0.1) 0.1

Exceptional expenses 0.1 0.2

Earn-out consideration 0.1 -

Adjusted tax expense 1.8 1.9
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8 EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share [[EPS’] is calculated by dividing the earnings attributable to ordinary shareholders by the
weighted average number of shares in issue during the year. 91,191 (2015: 473,859] shares held in the Employee Benefit
Trust and 6,870,437 (2015 6,472 9901 shares held in treasury have been excluded in arriving at the weighted average
number of shares.

For diluted earnings per share the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue is adjusted to assume cenversion
of all potentially dilutive ordinary shares, This comprises share options and awards {including those granted under the
Sharesave plan] granted to Directors and employees where the exercise price is less than the average market price of

the Company's ordinary shares during the year. Basic and diluted earnings per share have also been presented on an
adjusted basis, as the Directars believe that this measure is more reflective of the care perfarmance of the Group.

2016 204 2015 2015
Earnings Weighted Earnitigs Weighted

attributable average 2016  attributable average 2015

toownersof numberof Earnings to owners of number of Earnings

the parent shares  per share the parent shares per share

Em miltions Pence €m millions Pence

Basic (5.4} - 143.6 (3.8 16.91 143.2 {4.81
Effect of dilutive securities

Options* - - - - - -

Dituted (5.4] 143.6 (3.8 {6.9] 143.2 14.8)

Adjusted
Basic (5.4] 143.6 [3.8] (6.9] 143.2 {4.8)
Amortisation of acquired intangible assets 2.3 1.6 22 1.5
[note 10)

Exceptional finance costs - - 0.2 0.1

Additional impairment of trade receivables 1.8 1.3 - -

Earn-out consideration 0.4 0.4 01 -

Other exceptional operaling costs [note 4] 1.2 08 0.7 0.6

Share-based payments {0.1] (@.1) 0.7 05

Impairment of goodwill 7.2 5.0 11.9 8.3

Prolit on disposal of trade and assets - - [0.4] (0.3

Tax effect of abeve adjustments (0.8l (0.5] 10.8) (0.4l

Adjusted basic 6.8 143.6 4.7 7.9 143.2 8.5
Effect of ditutive securities

Optians - 8.2 0.2) - 45 0.2)

Adjusted dituted 6.8 149.8 4.5 79 Y47.7 5.3

* Due to the reported losses during 2016 and 2015, the effect of share options and awards was not dilutive
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9 GOODWILL

Group

£m

Cost
At 1 January 2015 and 31 December 2015 155.1
Additions in the year 1.2
At 31 December 2014 156.3
Accumulated impairment
A1 January 2015 5.1
Charge for the year 1n.?
At 31 December 2015 770
Charge for the year 7.2
At 31 December 2014 84.2
Net book value
At 31 December 2014 72.1
At 31 Decernber 2015 78.1

Additions in the year relate to the acquisition of the business and assets of The Oystercatchers LLP ('Oystercatchers’). See
note 13 for further details,

Goodwill by segment
Each segment is deerned to be a Cash Generating Unit {/CBU), being the lowest level for which cash flows are separately
identifiable. See note 2 for details regarding how the Group's segments are determined. The majarity of the Group's

goodwill arose on the acquisition of the Centaur Communications group in 2004.

Goodwill is allocated to segments as follows:

Financial Home
Marketing Services Professional Interest Total
€m £m £m £m £m
At 3t December 2014 37.9 5.1 21.6 75 721
At 31 December 2015 356.7 123 216 75 78.1

Impairment testing of goodwilt and acquired intangible assets

Puring the year, goodwill and acquired intangible assets were tested for impairment in accordance with 1AS 36. In
assessing whether a write-down of goodwill and acquired intangible assets is required, the carrying value of the segment
is compared with its recoverable amount. Recoverable amount is measured based on the higher of value-in-use and fair
value less costs of disposal.
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¢ GOGDWILL {CONTINUED)

The Group estimates the value-in-use of its CGUs using a discounted cash flow model, which adjusts the cash flows for
risks associated with the assets and discounts these using a pre-tax discount rate of 12.6% (2015: 13.2%). The discount
rate used is consistent across all segments, which are all based predominantly in the UK and considered to have similar
risks and rewards.

The key assumptions used in talculating value-in-use are revenue growth, margin, adjusted EBITDA, discount rate and
the terminal growth rate, The Group has used formally Board approved ferecasts for the first four years of the calculation
and applied a terminal growth rate of 2.0% {2015: 2.25%). For impairment testing purposes, these are then adjusted to
reflect any historical levels of forecasting inaccuracy. This timescale and the terminal growth rate are both considered
appropriate given the cyclical nature of the Group’s revenues and are consistent with the Group’s strategic planning
horizons.

The assumptions used in the calculations of value-in-use for each segment have been derived based on a combination of
past experience and management’'s expectations of future growth rates in the business.

At 31 December 2016, before impairment testing, goodwill of £37.9m, £12.3m, £21.6m and £7.5m was allocated to the
Marketing, Financial Services, Professional and Home Interest segments respectively. The Financial Services segment
has been affected by weaker print and advertising trends leading to 3 reduced growth outlook. The goodwdl relating

to the Financial Services segment has therefore been reduced to its recoverable amount through recognitian of an
impairment loss of £€7.2m. During 2015, an impairment of £11.9m was recognised against the carrying value of goodwill
in the Professional segment. Impairment charges are recognised as an adjusting item in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy [see note 1(b]).

For the remaining segments, Marketing, Professional and Home Interest, the value-in-use calculations exceed the
carrying values in the sensitivity scenarios at 31 December 2014, However, as a result of the impairment recognised
during 2015, the headroom in the Professional segment is significantly reduced once sensitivities have been applied.

Sensitivity analysis has been performed on the value-in-use calculations, holding all other variables constant, to:

i} apply a 5% reductron to forecast adjusted EBITDA in each year of the modelled cash flows. This would result
in 8 further impairment of £0.6m in the Financial Services segment [2015: further impairment of £1.2m in the
Professional segment]. No impairment would occur in any of the other segments.

il  apply a 8.5% increase in discount rate from 12.6% to 13.1%. This would result in a further impairment of £0.4m
in the Financial Services segment {2015: increase to 13.7% would result in a further impairment of £1.0m in the
Protessional segment|. No impairment would occur in any of the other segments,

{iil  reduce the terminal value growth rate from 2.0% to 1.75%. This would result in a further impairment of £0.1m in
the Financial Services segment (2015: 0.25% recguction to 2.0% would resuit in a further impairment of £0.4m in
the Professional segment]. No impairment woutd occur in any of the other segments,

10¢
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10 OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Separately
Brands and acquired
Computer publishing Customer websites and Non-compete
software rights* relationships* content* arrangements* Total
Em tm £m £m £m £m

Cost
At 1 January 2015 9.5 5.6 11.8 4.7 0.5 31.9
Additions - separately acquired 1.7 - - - - 1.7
Additians - internally generated 1.2 - - - - 1.2
Disposals or expiry (1.5 - - - - {1.5)
At 31 December 2015 10.9 5.6 1.6 47 0.5 333
Additions - separately acquired 1.3 - - - - 1.3
Additions - internally generated 10 - - - - 1.0
Additions - business combination - 02 0.9 - - 14
{note 13}
Disposals or expiry - - - - [0.5] [0.51
At 31 December 2016 13.2 5.8 12.5 AT - 36.2 R
Accumulated amortisation . ' '
At 1 January 2015 34 1.5 4.0 2.6 . 0.5 12.0
Amartisation charge for the year ' 2.1 0.2 1.2 g8 - 4.3
Disposals or expiry {1.3] - - - - (1.3]
At 31 December 2015 4.2 1.7 5.2 3.4 0.5 15.0
Amortisation charge for the year 2.7 0.4 1.1 0.8 - 5.0
Disposals or expiry - - - - 10.5] [0.5]
At 31 December 2014 6.9 21 6.3 4.2 - 12.5
Net book value at 31 December 2016 6.3 3.7 6.2 0.5 - 167
Net book vatue at 31 December 2015 47 39 6.4 1.3 - 18.3
Net book value at t January 2015 6.1 4.1 7.6 2.1 - 1%.9

* Amortisation of £2.3m [2015: £2.2m) of acquired intangible assets from business combinations is presented as an
adjusting item {see note 1(b] for further information).

The Company has no intangible assets {2015: £nil]. Amortisation of intangible assets is included in net operating expenses
in the Statement of Comprehensive incame.
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11 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Leasehold Fixtures Computer
improvermnents and fittings equipment Total
£m £€m €m £m
Cost
At 1 January 2015 29 09 0.7 45
Additions a1 0.2 05 0.8
Disposats 0.9 {0.5 {0.31 v
At 31 December 2015 21 0.5 0.9 3.6
Additions - separately acquired 0.1 - (18] 0.2
Additions - business combination Inote 12 - | - 0.1
At 31 December 2014 22 0.7 1.0 .9
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2015 15 0.5 - 20
Depreciatian charge for the year 0.3 0.2 0.4 0.9
Disposals {0.8) 10.5) {0.31 (1.8
At 31 Decernber 2015 1.0 0.2 0.1 13
Additions ~ business combination (nate 13] - - - -
Depreciation charge for the year 0.2 0.1 6.3 0.6
At 31 December 2016 1.2 0.3 0.4 1.9
Net book value at 31 Qecember 2016 1.0 0.4 0.6 20
Net book value at 3t December 2015 11 0.4 0.8 2.3
Net book value at 1 January 2015 t.4 04 07 2.5

The Company has no property, plant and equipment [2015: £nil).
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12 INVESTMENTS
Investments
in subsidiary
undertakings
Company £m
Cost
At 1 January 2015, 31 Decernber 2015 and 31 December 2016 146.2
Accumulated impairment
At 1 January 2015, 31 December 2015 and 3t December 2016 12.2
Net book amount
134.0

At 1 January 2015, 31 December 2015 and 31 Decerber 2016

Name

Proportion of
ordinary shares
and voting
rights held (%)

Principal activities

Country of incorporation

Ascent Publishing Limited

Centaur Communications Limited *
Centaur Cansumer Exhibitions Limited
Centaur Media USA Inc.?

Chiron Communications Limited
E-consultancy.com Limited
E-consultancy Asia Pacific Pty Limited #
E-consultancy Australia Pty Ltd
E-consultancy LLC ®

Investment Platforms Limited

Mayfield Publishing Ltd

Pro-talk Ltd

Taxbriefs Holdings Limited

Taxbriefs Limited

The Forurn for Expatriate Management
Limited

Tne Profile Group [UK] Limited
Your Business Magazine Limited

Venture Business Research Limited

100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
160
100

100
100
00

Digital and print publishing

Holding company and agency services
Exhibitions

Oigital information, training and events
Digital information, training and events
Digital informatian, training and events
Digitat information, training and events
Digital information, {raining and events
Digital information, training and events
Research data and analysis
[nvestment company

Digital Publishing

Hotding campany

Digital and print publishing

Events and information services

Digital information services
Investment company

Research data and analysis

United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United States
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
Singapore
Australia
United States
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
Umited Kingdom

United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom

! Directly owned by Centaur Media Ple

2 Registered address 1s 2711 Centerville Road, Suite 430 Witmington, DE19808, USA. Functional currency is USD.
3 Registered address is 30 Cecil Street, #19-08 Prudential Tower, Singapare 049712, Functional currency is USD.

% Registered address 1s Level 17, 383 Kent Street, Sydney, NSW, 2006, Australia. Functional currency is AUD.
% Registered address is 41 East. 11 Street, 11FI, New York, NY 10003, USA. Functional currency is USD.

The registered address of all subsidiary companies is 79 Wells Street, London, W1T 30N, United Kingdom, with the
exception of thase identified above. The functional currency of all subsidiaries is GBP except for those identified above.
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of all entities controlled by the Company at 31

December 2014.
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13 BUSINESS COMBINATION

On 30 September 2016, Centaur Communications Limited, a Group company, acquired the business and assets of The
Oystercatchers LLP [ Oystercatchers’), a specialist marketing consultancy. Oystercatchers will build on the Group's
Econsultancy and other marketing assets to provide an international leading consultancy in the marketing sector. The
results of Dystercatchers is included in the Marketing segment. Details of the purchase consideration, the net assets
acquired and goodwill are as follows:

2016
£m

Purchase consideration:
Cash paid 1.5
Ordinary shares issued 0.5
Deferred consideration 0.2
Working capital 0.1

Tatal purchase consideration 2.3

The fair value of the 1,202,266 Centaur Medha Plc shares issued as part of the consideration paid for Oysfercafchers
{£0.5m] was based on the agreed issue value of 45.747p per share.

The assets and liabilities recognised as a result of the acquisition are as follows:

2016

Fair value

£m

Intangible assels - brands 0.2
Intangibles assets - customer contracts and relationships 0.9
Total intangible assets lnote 10) 1.1
Property plant and equipment 0.1
Trade receivables 0.9
Prepayments and other debtors 0.1
Cash -
Trade payables [0.11
Accruals {¢.2
Deferred Income 10.51
Social security and other taxes fo.1}
Ceferred tax liabiifies {0.21
Net identifiable assets acquired 1.1
Goodwiil {note 9] 1.2
Total purchase consideration 23

The gaodwill 1s attributable to the workforce of the acquired business. it will not be deductible for tax purposes. Certain
intangible assets have been separately identified on acquisition, including customer contracts and relationships of £0.9m
and the brand of £0.2m. The fair value of the customer contracts and relationships was estimated using a discounted
cash flow approach based on revenue and profit forecasts over a period of five years, and discounted using the Group's
pre-tax discount rate of 12.6%.
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13 BUSINESS COMBINATION (CONTINUEDI
The useful economic life of the intangible assets is as follows:

+ Brands - 5 years
» Customer contracts and relationships - 5 years

Contingent consideration

In the event that certain pre-determined EBITDA levels are achieved by Oystercatchers for the year ending 31 March 2017,
additional consideration of up to £1.2m may be payable in cash {75%] and shares [25%] during Q2 2017. The contingent
cansideration is dependent an the continued employment of 5 key persons by Oystercatchers and is therefore treated

as reruneration. It will be recognised in profit and toss under 1AS 19 [for the cash element] and IFRS 2 [for the share-
based payment element] to the extent it becomes payable. An expense of £0.6m has been recognised in the income
staternent in the year as an adjusting item with a provision of £0.4m and credit ta equity of £0.2m, which assumes earn-out
performance measures witl be achieved and all employees will stay in employment. See notes 21 and 24.

The potential undiscounted amount payable under the agreement is between £nil for EBITDA below £0.7m and £1.2m for
EBITDA above £0.9m. The fair value of the contingent consideration is undiscounted as the payment is due in less than
one year.

Deferred consideration .

£0.2m of deferred consideration is payable in cash on 1 October 2017 subject to any claims'made under the purchase
agreement. £0.2m has been recognised in other liabilities in respect of this deferred consideration.

Acquired receivables

The fair value of acquired trade receivables is £0.9m. The gross contractual amount for trade receivables due is £0.9m, all
of which has since been collected.

Revenue and profit contribution
Oystercatchers contributed revenues of £1.2m and net profit of £0.3m to the Group for the period from 1 October to 31
December 2016. If the acquisition had occurred on 1 January 2016, Oystercatchers pro-forma revenue and profit for the

year ended 31 December 2016 would have been £3.9m and £1.0m respectively. :

There were no acquisitions during the year ended 31 December 2015.
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14 INVENTCORIES
2016 2015
Group Group
£m £m
Work in progress 2.5 20
The Company had no inventary at 31 December 2016 (2015: £nill.
15 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
2018 2015 2014 2015
Group Group Company Company
£m £m £&m £m
Amounts falling due within one year
Trade receivables 15.8 20.8 - -
Less: provision for impairment of receivables [note 27) (2.7 (0.9} - -
frade receivabiles - net 13.1 19.9 - -
Receivables frarm subsidiaries - - 1.6 0.7
Receivable from Employee Senefit Trust * - - 0.2 g3
QOther receivables 0.8 23 0.3 0.2
Prepayments 1.2 17 - -
Accrued income 0.6 11 - .
15.7 250 21 1.2

* As resiated, see nota 1[a).

Receivables from subsidiaries are unsecured, have no fixed due date and bear interest at an annual rate of 2.43% (2015
2.71%).

16 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

2016 2015 20146 2015

Group Group Company Company

£m £m £m £m

Cash at bank and in hand 3.4 3.1 - .
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17 BORROWINGS
2016 2015 2014 2015
Group Group Campany Company
£m £m £m €m
Current liabilities
Loan notes - 1.1 - -
- 1.1 - -
Non-current liabilities
Finance lease payables - 01 - 0.1
Arrangement fee in respect of revolving credit facility (0.1) (0.2 [0.1) 0.2)
Revolving credit facility 17.5 21.0 17.5 210
17.4 209 17.4 209

Loan notes totalling £1.3m were issued in Navember 2015 to settle the deferred consideration in relation to the VB
Research earn-oul. Interest was payable on these loan notes at a variable rate of 1% above LIBOR. The loan nates were
settled during 2016. Further details about the Group's borrowings are provided in note 27.

18 FINANCE LEASES

Lease payables are secured as the rights to the leased assets revert to the lessor in the event of default.

2016 2015 2016 2015
Group Group Company Company
£€m £m £m €m

Grass finance lease liabilities - minimum lease payments
tater than 1 year and no later than 5 years - 0.1 - 0.
Present value of finance lease liabilities - 0.1 - Q.1

The present value of finance lease liabilities is as follows:

2014 20158 2014 2015
Group Group Company Company
€m £m £m £m
Later than 1 year and no later than 5 years - Q.1 - 0.1
Present value of finance lease liabilities - 0.1 - 0.1

The Group leases office equipment with a carrying amount of £8.1m (2015: £0.1m] under a finance lease expiring in one
year. There were no new finance leases during 20146 or 2015.
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19 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

2016 2015 2016 2015

Graup Group Company Company

£m £€m £&m €m

Trade payables 7 a0 - -
Payables to subsidiaries - - 18.9 83
Social security and other taxes 0.8 11 - 0.1
Other payables 1.3 2.4 - .
Accruals 3.9 5.9 0.1 0.1
9.7 12.4 19.0 8.5

Payables to subsidiaries are unsecured, have no fixed date of repayment and bear interest at an annual rate of 2.43%
(2015: 2.71%].

The Directors consider that the carrying amount of the trade payables approximates their fair value.

20 CURRENT INCOME TAX LIABILITIES

2016 2015

Group . Group

£m £m

Corporation tax a.7 0.9
21 PROVISIONS Oeferred
consideration

Group

£m

At 1 January 2015 A
Charged to the statement of comprehensive income during the year Q.1
Utilised during the year (1.2)
At 3% December 2015 -
Charged to the statement of comprehenswe income during the year 0.4
As at 31 December 2016 0.4

Deterred consideration in the current year relates to the acquisition of Oystercatchers and is payable within 1 year [see
note 13}, The amount prowided was dependent on continued employment of the former owners of the business and was
treated as post-acquisition remuneration accruing over the period to the end of the performance period. All amounts
represented the Directors’ best estimate of the amount to be paid at the balance sheet date.

Deferred consideration in the prior year related to VB Research. The amount of deferred contingent consideration payable
with respect to the acquisition of VB Research was dependent on the profits generated by VB Research in the peniod 1

July 2014 to 30 June 2015 (the performance period), subject lo 3 maximum earn-out payment of £5.0m. The deferred
consideration was settled in the prior year through the payment of £0.1m in cash and the 1ssue of loan notes for the
remaining balance Isee note 17 for more details).
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22 DEFERRED INCOME TAX
The movernent on the deferred income tax account is shown below.
Accelerated Other
capital temporary Tax
allowances differences losses Total
£m £m Em £m
Net asset / [liability] at 1 Januvary 2015 0.3 [1.7] 0.5 10.9]
Recognised in the statement of comprehensive income 0.1 1.0 {0.3] o8
Net asset / (liability) at 31 December 2015 0.4 {0.7) 0.2 {01
Adjustments in respect of prior years 0.21 - - 9.2)
Recognised in the statement of comprehensive income 0.2 0.1 - 0.3
Arising on business combination - 0.2 - 0.2)
Net asset / {liability] at 31 December 2014 0L {0.8) 0.2 0.2

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are only offset where there is a legally enforceable right of offset and there is an
intention to settle the balances net.

2014 2015

Group Group

€m £m

Deferred tax asset , 0.6 0.6
) iRl

Deferred tax liabilities 10.8} . (@71

Total 0.2} (@11

At the balance sheet date, the Group has unused tax losses of £1.3m (2015 £1.4m] available for offset against future
prafits. A deferred tax asset of £0.2m [2015: £0.2m) has been recognised in respect of £1.0m [2815: £1.1m) of such
tax losses. No deferred tax has been recognised in respect of the remaining £0.3m (2015: £0.3m} as it is not currently
considered probable that there will be future sufficient taxable profits available. Unrecognised losses may be carried
forward indefinitely. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are expected to be materially realised after 12 months.
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23 EQUITY
Nominal Number
value of
Ordinary shares of 10p each £m shares
Authorised share capital - Group and Company
At 1 January 2015, 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2016 200 200,000,000
lssued and fully paid share capital - Group and Company
At 1 January and 31 December 2015 15.0 150,207,940
Acquisition of business 0.4 1,202,266
At 21 December 2014 151 151,410,226
Deferred shares reserve

The deferred shares reserve represents 800,000 (2015: 800,000] deferred shares of 10p each, which carry restricted veting
rights and have no right to receive a dividend payrent in respect of any financial year.

Reserves for shares to be issued

The reserve for shares to be issued is in respect of equity-settled share-based compensation plans. The changes to the
reserve for shares to be issued represent the totat charges for the year relating to equity-seltled share-based payment
transactions with employees as accounted for under IFRS 2 and prior year restatement relating to previous vests (see note
T(ali.

See note 24 for information regarding the number of shares subject to options, the periods in which they were granted and
the periads in which they may be exercised.

Own shares reserve

The own shares reserve represents the value of shares held as treasury shares and in an employee benefit trust. At
31 December 2014, 6,870,437 (2015: 4,472,990) 10p ordinary shares are held in treasury and 91,191 [2015: 473,859 10p
ordinary shares are held in the Employee Benefit Trust.

During 2016, the Campany purchased 397,447 ordinary shares to be held in treasury in order to meet future obligatians
arising from share-based rewards to employees, The buyback programme was approved by shareholiders at the Annual
General Meeting held on 11 May 2016 up 10 a value of £1.0rm. The shares were acquired at an average price of 42.75p per
share, with prices ranging from 3%p to 46p. The totat cost of £0.2m [2015: Enil} has been recognised in other reserves in
the own shares reserve in equity.

See note 1(al for details of the prior year restatement of this reserve,
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24 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

The Group's share-based payment expense for the year by scheme:

2016 2015
Equity-settied Plans £m £m
LTie 10.1) 0.6
Retention Plan - 0.1
SELTIP - -
Share Incentive Plan - .
Tatal equity-settled incentive plans (0.1l 0.7
Deferred contingent consideration [note 13| 0.2 -
Total share-based payment expense 0.1 0.7

The Group’s share-based payment schemes are equity-settled. Opening reserves in equity have been restated to account
for historical share plan vests. See note 1(a] for details.

Long Term Incentive Plan

The Group operates a Lang Term Incentive Plan ['LTIP'} for Executive Directors and selected senior management. This is ,'_‘
an existing incentive policy and was approved by shareholders at the 2006 AGM. The share awards are valued at date of

grant and the consolidated income statement is charged over the vesting period, taking into account the number of shares
expected to vest. Full details of how the scheme operates are included in the Remuneration Report.
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24 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (CONTINUED]

These awards were priced using the following models and inputs:

LTIP 2016 LTIP2014 LTIP 2006 LTIP 2006 LTIP200& LTIP2006 LTIP 2006 LTIP 2004

Grant date 04.10,16 22.09.16 30.03.16 271016 10.08.15 26.03.15 04.08.14 08.11.13
Share price at grant date lp] 44.00 41.00 49.00 78.25 80.5 9.5 58.75 54.25
Fair vatue (p} 18,66 16,81 20.92 &T.42 48,22 42.43 48.94 4716
Exercise date 04.10.19  22.09.19 30.03.19 28.10.18  10.08.18 23.03.18  04.08.17  15.03.17
Exercise price €nil £nil £nil £nil £nil £nil £nil Enit

Number of awards

Balance at - - - 143,034 108,556 2,218,574 155,897 1,438,909
1 January 2018

Granted during the year 573,395 344,867 3,752,937 - - - - -
Forfeited during the year - - 1,238,140 - (1,103,135l - 436,284

Balance at
31 December 2016 573,395 366,667 2,514,797 142,036 108,556 1,115,439 155,897 1,002,545

Exercisable at
31 Decermnber 2016 - - - - - . - .

Balance al 1 January 2015 - - - - - - 155,897 1,706,182
Granted during the year - - - 143,036 108,554 2,847,749 - -
Forfeited during the year - - - - - (629.1751 - [267.273]
Balance at

31 December 2015 - - - 143,036 108,554 2,218,574 185,897 1438909

Exercisable at
31 December 2015 - - - - . - . -

The shares outstanding at 31 December 2616 had a weighted average exercise price of £nil [2015: £nill and a weighted
remaining life of 2.0 years [2015: 2.0 years).

LTIP2016 LTIP2016 LTIP 2006 LTIP 2006 LTIP 2006  LYIP 2004 LTIP 2006 LTIP 2006

Grant date 04.10.14 22.09.1% 30.03.14 27.10.15 10.08.15 26.03.15 04.08.14 08,1113

Expected volatility (%! 43.8 438 318 28.1 36.8 9.4 43,6 43.8

Expected dividend yield (%] - - - - - - - -

Risk free interest rate (%) 0.04 0.06 Q.48 0.69 1.0z .58 117 0.92

Model of valualion used Stochastic Stochastic Stochastic  Stochastic  Stochastic  Stochastic  Stochastic  Stochastic
2014 Retention Plan

The 2014 Retention Plan was introduced in June 2014 and is now closed to new participants, Awards vested over a period
of two or three years, with the only condition teing continued employment. Awards were granted under this scheme in
2014 for no consideration and no exercise price. The Retention Plan did not result in the issue of any new ordinary shares
as this plan was nat approved by Shareholders. The awards were settled from the shares held in the Employee Benefit
Teust during 2016.
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24 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS [CONTINUED]

Senior Executive Long-Term Incentive Plan {'SELTIP’]

The Centaur Media Plc 2010 Senior Executive Long-Term Incentive Plan (the "'SELTIP’} was introduced during 2011 and
was approved by shareholders at the 2010 AGM. This is not an HMRC approved scheme and vests over a 3 year period

with service and performance conditions. Awards were granted under this scheme in 2011 far no consideration and no

exercise price. This scheme has closed to new awards.

Awards of bonus units were made in 2013 as summarised in the following table:

Threshold PBTA Profit SELTIP  Total bonus Benus paol Number of shares
Financial year profit achieved growth contribution pool allocated* awarded in total**
2013 £8.0m £8.6m £0.6m 30% £0.1m £0.1m 118.851

“The Remuneration Committee did not allocate the entire bpnus pool in 2013
** Awards were only made to participants with continuing employment

Retention Plan and Senior Executive Long-Term Incentive Plan

R} : . '

These awards were priced using the following models and inputs: : et
2014 Retention Plan SELTIP 2013
Grant date 30.06.14 15.09.11
Share price at grant date 62.38 33.88
Fair value 52.64 23.76
Exercise date 31.12.16 17.09.14
Exercise price €nil €nil

Number of awards

Belance at 1 January 2015 382,668 6,862
Exercised during the year [382,648) -
Bzlance at 31 December 2016 - 6,862
Exercisable at 31 Decermnber 2014 - 6,862
Average share price at date of exercise (p) 41.21 -
Balance at 1 fanuary 2015 382,668 6.862
Balance at 31 December 2015 382,668 6.862
Exercisable at 31 December 2015 - 6,862

The shares outstanding at 31 December 2014 had a weighted average exercise price of £nil {2315: Enill and a weighted
remaining life of 5.7 years {2015: 1.0 years).
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These awards were priced using the following models and inputs:

2014 SELTIP

Retention Plan 2013

Grant date 30.08.14 15.09.11
Expected votatility %] &5 54.0
Expected dividend yield (%] 8.79 5.26
Risk free interest rate (%} 1.22 a.57
Maodel of valuation used Black-Scholes Black-Scholes

Share Incentive Plan

The Group has a Share Incentive Plan, which is a HRMC approved Tax-Advantaged plan, which provides employees with
the opportunity to purchase shares in the Company. This plan is open to all employees who have been employed by the
Group for more than 12 manths. Employees may invest up to £1.800 per annum [or 10% of their salary it less| in ordinary
shares in the Company, which are held in trust. The shares are purchased in open market and are held i trust for each
employee. The shares can be withdrawn with tax paid at any time, or tax-free after five years. The Group matches the
contribution with a ratio of one share for every two purchased. Other than continuing employment, there are no other
performance conditions attached to the plan.

The Executive Directors are eligible to participate in the Share Incentive Plan, as are all employees of the Group.

2016 m1s
Group Group
Number of outstanding matching shares 27,727 78,602

Deferred contingent consideration

The Graup may have to pay additional consideration in relation to the acquisition of Oystercatchers made on 30 September
2014 fgrant datel which is to be partly settled by shares in the Group. The total consideration payable in shares is up to the
maximum value of £3.3m and will be 1ssued at the share price an the settlement date. The total cost is being spread over
the vesting period from 1 October 2016 to 31 March 2017 and a charge of £0.2m has been recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive [ncome, with a credit recognised in equity during the year. The fair value of the share based payment is
deerned to be the maximum value of consideration payable. See note 13.
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25 DIVIDENDS
2016 2015
£m £€m

Equity dividends
Final dividend for 2014: 1.3p per 10p ordinary share - 1.9
Interim dividend tor 2015: 1.5p per 10p ardinary share - 2.1
Final dividend for 2015: 1.5p per 10p ordinary share 2.2 -
Interim dividend for 2016: 1.5p per 10p ordinary share 21 -
43 4.0

A final divdend for the year ended 31 December 2016 of £2.2m (1.5p per share| is proposed by the Directors and. subject
to shareholder approval at the Annual General Meeting, will be paid on 26 May 2017

26 NOTES TO THE CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Reconciliation of loss for the period to net cash inflow from operating activities:

2016 2015 2016 2015
Group . Group Company Company
£m £m £m £m
Loss for the period {5.4) {6.9] [2.21 (2.0
Adjustments for: '
Tax 1.0 1.3 lo.5) -
Interest expense 2.5 0.9 1.0 0.9
Depreciation 0.6 6.9 - -
Amartisation of intangible assels 5.0 43 - -
Impairment of goodwill 7.2 (AR - -
Earn-out costs 0.6 0.1 - -
Share-based payment lcrediti / charge 0.1 0.7 - 0.7
Profit on disposal of trade and assets - {0.4) - -
Other (0.9} (0.31 - (0.2}
Changes in working capital [excluding effects
of acquisitions and dispasals of subsidiaries|
Increase in inventories 0.5) (0.2 - -
Decrease / lincrease] in trade and other receivables 9.2 {9.3] - (0.6
[Decreasel / increase in trade and other payables (2.8) 1.4 10.2 3.2
[Decrease| / increase in deferred income (0.1) 1.7 - -
Cash generated from operating activities 15.3 6.1 8.5 2.0
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26 NOTES T0 THE CASH FLOW STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

Analysis of changes in net debt

At Q1 At 21

December Net December

2015 cash flow 2014

Group Note £m £m £m
Cash and cash equivalents 16 a 03 3.4
Revolving credit facility 17 (21.01 35 {17.5}
Net debt [17.9) 38 {14.1)
At 31 At 31

December Net December

2015 cash flow 2016

Company Note £m £m £m
Cash and cash eguivalents 16 - ~ -
Revolving credit facility 17 121.0) 35 (17.5)
Net debt f21.01 35 {12.5)
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27 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
Financial risk management

The Board has overall responsibility for the determination of the Group’s risk management policies. The Board receives
monthly reports from the Chief Financial Officer through which it reviews the effectiveness of policies and processes put
in place to manage risk. The Board sets policies that reduce risk as far as possible without unduly affecting the operating
etfectiveness of the Group.

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial nisks, including interest rate risk, credit risk, liquidity risk, capital
risk and currency risk, Of these, credit risk and liquidity risk are considered the mast significant. This nate presenls
informalion about the Group's exposure to each of the above risks.

Categories of financial instruments

Details of the significant accounting policies and methods adopted, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of
measurement and the basis on which income and expenses are recognised in respect of each class of tinancial asset,
financial liability and equity instrument are disclosed in note 1ir], All financial assets and liabilities are measured at
amortised cost,

2016 2015
Note £Em £Em
Financial assets
Cash and bank balances % 3.4 an
Trade receivables - net 15 13.1 19.9
Other receivables 15 08 23
Total financial assets 17.3 253
Financial liabilities
Bank borrowings 17 17.5 21.0
Loan notes 17 ) - 1
Finance lease payables 18 - 0.1
Trade payabtes 19 3.7 390
Accruals ' 19 3.9 59
Provisions ral 0.4 -
Other payables 19 1.3 2.4
Total financial liahdities 268 335

Credit risk

The Group's principal financial assets are trade and other receivables [note 15] and cash and cash equivalents. Credit risk
refers to the risk that a counterparty will default an its contractual cbligations resulting in financial loss to the Group. The
carrying amaunt of financial assets recorded in the financial statermnents, which is net of impairment losses, represents
the Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to financial assets. Credit risk 1s managed on a Group basis. The
Group does not consider that it is subject to any significant concentrations of credit risk.
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27 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUEDI

Trade receivables

Trade receivables consist of a large number of customers, of varying sizes and spread across diverse industries and
geographies. The Group does not have significant exposure to credit risk in relation to any single counterparty or group
of counterparties having similar characteristics. The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced predominantly by the
circumstances of individual custemers as opposed to industry or geographic trends.

The business assesses the credit quality of customers based on their financial position, past experience and other
gualitative and quantitative factors. The Group’s policy requires custemers to pay in accordance with agreed payment
terms, which are generally 30 days from the date of invoice. Under normal trading conditions, the Group is exposed
to relatively low levets of risk, and potential losses are mitigated as a resuit of a diversified customer base and the
requirement for events and certain premium content subscription invoices to be paid in advance of service detivery.

The credit control function within the Group's finance department monitors the outstanding debts of the Group, and trade
receivables balances are analysed by the age and value of outstanding balances.

Any trade receivable balance which is objectively determined to be uncollectible is written off the ledger, with a charge
taken through the Statement of Comprehensive Income. The Group also records a provision for estimated impairment
losses on its trade receivables balances. All balances past due are reviewed, with those greater than 90 days past due
considered to carry a higher level of credit risk. Specific provision is made against custamer balances with known credit
issues or where debt has been referred to a collection agency. The remaining past due balances are then analysed.
with balances relating to revenue recognised in advance, customers on payment plans and non-payment resulting

from admimnistrative queries considered to be of lower risk. A judgement is applied to the net balance based an histaric
experience on a percentage basis taking inte accownt both the age and the reason items rernain unpaid.

Impairment losses are taken through administrative expenses in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

An additional, separately reported, charge for impairment of trade receivables of £1.8m has been made during 2016 in
excess of the charge which would arise under normal trading conditions and recarded in adjusted operating profit of
£0.5m (2015: £€0.6m]. Following the disappointing working capital performance in 2015, and notwithstanding the return

to strong cash generation in 2014, there remains a legacy of old debt which arose during a period of disruption during the
second halfl of 2013 and into the early part of 2016 arising from the implementation of a new accounting systern. The gross
trade receivables batance at 31 December 2014 of £15.8m remains in excess of historicat levels, atbeit reduced from the
level at 31 December 2015 of £20.8m. Whilst the Group continues 1o makea every elfort in collecting all amounts due o it,
given the age and magritude of this putstanding debt, the Directors believe there remains significant uncertainty in being
able to coliect these amounts and therefare consider the value of this debt ta be impaired. The underlying risk profile of
the Group's debtors has not fundamentally worsened, however the ageing has made the debt balances harder to coilect.
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27 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

The ageing of trade receivables according to their ariginal due date is detailed below:

2016 20146 2615 2015

Gross Provision Gross Pravision

£€m £m £m £m

Not due &4 - 2.0 -
0-30 days past due 3.2 - 3.7 -
31-40 days past due 1.2 (0.1) 17 -
61-90 days past due 0.9 0.1 1.4 -
Over 90 days past due 4.1 [2.5) 50 10.7]
15.8 2.7 20.8 0.9

Trade receivables that are less than 3 months past due are generally not censidered to be impaired, except where specific

credit issues or delinquency in payments have been identified. At 31 December 2014, there are debtors greater than

90 days past due with a carrying value of £1.6m (2015: £4.1m] which have not been provided against. In making the

assessment that these amounts are not impaired, the Directors have considered the quantum of amounts included in

gross trade receivables which relate to amounts not yet inctuded 1n income, including pre-event debt included in deferred

income and amgunts refating to VAT. The credit quality of trade receivables not yet due nor impaired has been assessed e
as acceptahle. A sensitivity analysis has been performed based on the Group’s exposure.to unimpaired trade receivables
at 31 December 2016. If the provision methodology was expanded to increase the age of all recewables by an additional 30
days, without receiving any further payments in relation to those receivables, the provision requirement woutd increase by
£0.2m.

The movement in the provision for impairment of receivables i1s detailed below:

2014 2015

Group Group

£m £m

Balance at start of year 0.9 0.5

Utilised (0.5 [0.2}
Additional provision charged to the statement of comprehensive income:

Recorded tn adjusted operating profit 0.5 0.6

Adjusting item in operating lass 1.8 -

Balance at end of year 2.7 0.9

The Directors consider the carrying value of trade and other receivables approximates to their fair vatue.

Cash and cash equivalents

Banks ang financial institutions are independently rated by credit rating agencies. We choose only to deal with those with
a minimum ‘A’ rating. We determine the credit quality for cash and cash equivalents to be strong.




27 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT {CONTINUED)

Other receivables

Other receivables are nerther past due nor impaired. These are grimanly made up of sundry receivables, including
employee-related debtors and receivables in respect of distribution arrangements.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk s the risk that the Groug will not be able to meet Hs financial obligations as they fall due. Throughaut the
year ended 31 December 2015, and for the foreseeabie future, the Group was and is expected to be in a net borrowings
position. The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves and working capital credit facilities, and by
continuously monitoring forecast and actuat cash flows.

The total facility available to the Group is £25.0m and is available through to August 201%. As at 31 December 2016, the
Group had cash of £3.4m {2015: £3.1m) and undrawn loan facilities to further reduce its tiquidity risk of £7.5m (2015:
£4.0m].

The faliowing tables detail the financial maturity for the Group's financial liabilities.

Book Fair Less than
value value 1year 2-Syears
Em €m £m £m
At 31 December 2014
Financial liabilities
Variable interest rate instruments 17.5 17.5 - 17.5
Non-interast hHearing 9.3 9.3 9.3 -
26.8 26.8 9.3 175
At 31 December 2015
Financial liabilities
Variable interest rate instruments 221 221 1.1 214
Fixed interest rate instrumsants 01 21 0.1 -
Non-interest bearing 113 1.3 11.3 -
335 335 12.5 21.0

The Directors consider that book value is matenally equal to fair vatue.
The book value of primary financial insiruments approximates 1o fair value where the instrument is on a short maturity, or
there are no fixed or contractual repayment requirements within the borrowing period, or where they bear interest at rates

approximate to the market

All trade and other payables are due in one year or less, or on demand.
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27 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Interest rate risk

The Group has no significant interest-bearing assets but is exposed to interest rate risk as it borrows funds at floating
interest rates through its revolving credit facility. Borrowings issued at variable rates expose the Group to cash flow
interest rate risk, The Group evaluates its risk appetite towards interest rate risks reqularly, and may undertake hedging
activities, including interest rate swap contracts, to manage interest rate risk in relation to its revolving credit facility if
deemed necessary.

The Group did not enter into any hedging transactions during the current or prior year and, as at 31 December 2014, the
onty floating rate to which the Group is exposed was LIBOR. The Group's exposure to interest rates on financial assets and
financial liabilities is detailed in the liquidity risk section of this note.

Interest rate sensitivity

The Group has exposure to interest rate risk, and sensitivity analysis has been performed based on exposure to variable
interest rates at the reporting date.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher or lower and all other variables were held constant, the Group's net profit
after tax would increase / decrease by £0.1m.

,
.

¢

Capital risk

The Group manages its capital to ensure that all entities in the Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising return to stakeholders, as well as sustaining the future devetopment of the business.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which includes borrowings [note 17] and cash and cash equivalents
[note 14], and equity attributable to the owners of the parent, comprising issued share capital {note 23], other reserves and
retained earnings. The Board also cansiders the levels of own shares held for employee share schemes, and the ability to
1ssue new shares for acquisitions, in managing capital risk in the business.

The Group continues to benefit from its banking facilities [as renewed during June 2015}, which features both a working
capital facility, to assist in managing the Group’s liquidity risk, and an acquisition facility to support the Group’s acquisition
strategy. The facitity, available until August 2019, allows for 2 maximum drawdown of £25m.

Interest is catculated on LIBOR plus a margin dependent on the Group's net leverage pasition, which is re-measured
guarterly in line with covenant testing. The Group’s borrawings are subject to financial covenants tested quarterly. At 31
December 2016 and throughout 2016 all of these covenants were achieved.

Currency risk

Substantially all of the Group's net assets are located in the United Kingdom. The majority of revenue and profits is
generated in the United Kingdom and consegquently foreign exchange risk is currently limited. The Group continues

to monitor its expasure to currency risk, particularly as the business expands into overseas territories such as North
Armerica, however the results of the Group are not currently considered to be sensitive to mavements in currency rates.
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28 OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS ~ MINIMUM LEASE PAYMENTS

At 31 December 2016, the Group had committed to the following payments in respect of operating leases on (and and
buildings.

2016 2015
£m £m

Commitments payable under non-cancellable operating lease
Within 1 year 21 2.1
Later than one year and tess than 5 years 4.9 &5
7.0 8.6

on land and buildings.

At 31 December 2016, the Group had contracted with tenants to receive payments in respect of aperating leases

2014 2015
£m £Em

Commitments receivable under non-cancellable subleases
Within t year 0.5 Q.5
Later than ane year and less than § years 0.8 18
1.3 2.3

29 PENSION SCHEMES

The Group contributes to individual and collective defined contribution pensian schemes in respect of Directors and
employees once they have completed the requisite period of service. The charge for the period in respect of these

pension schemes.

30 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

A1 31 December 2014, the Group had no capital commitments [2015: £nit).

schemes 1s shown in note 6. Included within other payables is an amount of £0.1m (2015: £0.1m|] payable in respect of the
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31 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Group

Key management compensation is disclosed in note 6, There were no other material related party transactions.

Company

During the year, interest was recharged from subsidiary companies as follows:

2016 2015
£m E€m
{nterest payable 0.4 0.2

Borrowings of £1.5m were received [2015: £2.9m)] by subsidiaries on behalf of the Company.

The batances outstanding with subsidiary companies are disclosed in notes 15 and 19.

Audit Exemption

For the year ended 31 December 2014 the Company has provided a guarantee pursuant to sections 477A-C of the
Companies Act 2006 over the iiabilities of the following subsidiaries and as such they are exempt from the reguirements
of the Act relating to the audit of individual financial statemnents, or preparation of individual financial statements, as
appropriate, for this financial year.

Outstanding

Company liabilities
Name number €m
Centaur Communications Limited 01595235 1.4
Centaur Consumer Exhibitions Limited 07276298 34
Chiron Communications Limited 01081808 13.9
Ascent Publishing Limited 02561341 0.9
The Forum for Expatriate Management Limited 046776355 0.3
Pro-Talk Ltd 0393911¢% -
Taxbriefs Holdings Limited 03572049 -
Taxbriefs Limited 01247321 0.2
Investment Platforms Limited 06439194 0.5
Venture Business Research Limited 05663936 0.4
The Profile Group (UK] Limited 05243851 4.0
Econsultancy.com Limited 04047149 3.4
Mayfield Publishing Ltd 02034820 -
Your Business Magazine Limited 01707331 -

32 POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

The Board believes that the Home Interest partfolio is no longer core ta Centaur's BZB focus, and that as a distinct
business unit, it will accelerate its growth under more aligned ownership. Accordingly, following the year end, the Group
commenced a process to sell this partfolio.
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’ L1

FIVE YEAR RECORD [UNAUDITED)

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
Revenues {Em]} 493 744 728 70.5 725
Live events and premium content revenues
as % of whole 60% 88% 68% 67% "M%
Operating prolit / {loss) (Em] 09 (3331 3.0 (6.7] 13.9)
Adjusted operating profit 10.4 10.0 10.2 10.5 9.1
Adjusted operating profit margin 5% 13% 14% 15% 13%
[Loss} / profit belare tax {Em] 10.8) 135.7) 14.2 15.4] {4.4)
Adjusted profit before tax {£m] 2.1 88 92 9.8 8.6
Adjusted diluted EPS [pence} 4.4 o1 50 53 45
Dividend per share [pence) 1.5 2,425 30 30 0
Net operating cash flow lEm} 10.4 9.9 12.3 4.7 14.90
Average permanent headcount [FTE} 557 598 574 564 854
Revenue per head {£'600] 124 124 124 125 121
Revenue by type
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
€m £m £m Em £m
Live events 2.8 28.0 28.9 212 30,7
Premium content 19.0 211 0.6 19.9 208
Advertising 263 246 22.4 225 20.2
Dther 1.2 a7 0.9 0.9 0.8
493 4.4 728 70.5 728
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
€m £m £m €m £m
Goodwill and other intangible assets 160.0 1227 109.9 96.4 88.8
Dther assets and liabilities 119.0] (18 4] 18 4} 12.1) {7.61
Net assets before net debt 1410 1041 101.5 94.3 81.2
Net debt (24.5] 127.01 ne7’ (17.9} 14.1)
Total equity 1185 779 86.8 764 &7.1
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